

Australian Government

Department of Immigration and Border Protection

LABOUR AGREEMENT - MEAT INDUSTRY

Under the Migration Act 1958

Between

Commonwealth of Australia as represented by the Minister for Immigration and Border Protection (Minister)

and

Ralph's Meat Company Pty Ltd

Table of Contents

Backgroun	d4
Operative I	Part
1	Definitions 4
2	Interpretation
3	Period8
4	Pre-contractual representations
Sponsorshi	p and nomination of overseas workers
5	On-hire prohibited
6	Labour market need
PART A -	Subclass 457
7	Nomination9
8	Approval of nominations
9	Sponsorship obligations
PART B-S	Subclass 186
10	Nominations12
11.	Approval of nominations
PART C: 0	Other provisions
12.	Training and recruitment of Australian workers
13.	Supporting Primary Sponsored Persons
14.	Reporting obligations
15.	Monitoring
Miscellaneo	ous Provisions
16.	Relationship between the parties14
17.	Confidential information and information sharing
18.	Suspension
19.	Termination16
20.	Sanctions
21.	Dispute resolution
22.	Assurances, counterparts and assignment
23.	Variation and entire agreement
24.	Fettering and publishing

25.	Legal expenses	18
26.	Survival after termination	18
27.	Notices	18
28.	Governing law and jurisdiction	19
29.	Indemnity	19
Schedule 1	Particulars	20
Schedule 2	Training and recruitment obligations	21
Schedule 3	Occupations; Ceiling numbers; Location; Qualifications and Experience; and Concessions covered by this Agreement	22
Schedule 4	Concessions to tasks of occupations in ANZSCO	24
Schedule 5	Additional requirements for nomination	25
Schedule 6	Variation of sponsorship obligations	26
Schedule 7	Variations to Reporting Requirements	30
Schedule 8	Domestic Recruitment Efforts Template	31
Signing pag	ge	32

Labour Agreement

Effective Date: Date signed by the Commonwealth.

Parties

The Commonwealth of Australia (the "Commonwealth") as represented by the Minister for Immigration and Border Protection (the "Minister"). The Commonwealth's particulars are set out in **Item 1** of **Schedule 1**.

AND

The party specified in **Item 2** of **Schedule 1** (the "Approved Sponsor"). The Approved Sponsor's particulars are set out in **Item 2** of **Schedule 1**.

Background

- A. This labour agreement (the "Agreement") is a "labour agreement" as defined in the Migration Regulations. This Agreement will be administered by the Department of Immigration and Border Protection ("DIBP or the Department") on behalf of the Commonwealth.
- B. This Agreement sets out the terms and conditions by which the Approved Sponsor may recruit, employ or engage the services of overseas workers who are intended to be employed or engaged by the Approved Sponsor as holders of Subclass 457 Temporary Work (Skilled) or Subclass 186 Employer Nomination Scheme visas in its business undertaking as described in **Item 3** of **Schedule 1**.
- C. The Approved Sponsor is an "approved sponsor", as defined in subsection 5(1) of the Migration Act by virtue of entering into this Agreement.

Operative Part

1 Definitions

- 1.1 Unless the context indicates a contrary intention, words and phrases in this Agreement have the same meanings attributed to them in the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations.
- 1.2 In the event of any inconsistency between this Agreement and the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations, the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations will prevail.
- 1.3 In this Agreement:

Accredited English Language Training means for the purpose of this Agreement English language training that is undertaken through a Registered Training Organisation.

Accredited Training Institution means for the purpose of this Agreement a Registered Training Organisation. Registered Training Organisations are registered by State and Territory training authorities to deliver nationally recognised training.

Address means a party's address set out in Schedule 1.

Agreement means this labour agreement, any schedules, attachments and any documents incorporated into this labour agreement by reference.

Annual Salary means for the purpose of this Agreement remuneration paid to a Primary Sponsored Person on an annualised basis and is calculated from the date the Primary Sponsored Person commences employment, excluding those periods when the Primary Sponsored Person is offshore on approved leave without pay.

ANZSCO means the Australian and New Zealand Standard Classification of Occupations.

AQF means the Australian Qualifications Framework.

Australian where the context so admits, means an Australian citizen (whether born in Australia or elsewhere) or a non-citizen who, being usually resident in Australia is the holder of a permanent visa granted under the Migration Act.

Base rate of pay means the rate of pay payable to an employee for his or her full time ordinary hours of work, but not including any of the following:

- (a) incentive-based payments and bonuses;
- (b) loadings;
- (c) monetary allowances;
- (d) overtime or penalty rates;
- (e) any other separately identifiable amounts.

Ordinary hours of work is determined under the relevant industrial award or agreement.

Where there is no industrial award or agreement, the full time ordinary hours will be 38 hours per week.

Business Day means a day on which business is generally conducted in the Australian Capital Territory, and excludes Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays.

Business Address means the physical address at which a business is located.

Ceiling number means the number of primary Subclass 457 or Subclass 186 Employer Nomination Scheme visas that can be nominated as defined in **Schedule 3**. Nominations made but withdrawn prior to a decision are not included in the ceiling number.

Confidential Information in relation to a Party, means information that is:

- (a) by its nature capable of being protected in law or equity as confidential;
- (b) designated by a Party as confidential in **Item 5** of **Schedule 1**: or
- (c) in the case of the Commonwealth's Confidential Information, the Approved Sponsor knows or ought to know is confidential;

but does not include information:

- (d) which is or becomes public knowledge other than by breach of the Contract or any other confidentiality obligations; or
- (e) that has been independently developed or acquired without reference to the other Party's Confidential Information.

Concessions means any variations to the requirements prescribed in the Migration Legislation in relation to the skills, qualifications, employment background, level of English Language proficiency and the Temporary Skilled Migration Income Threshold (TSMIT) required for the nomination and grant of a Subclass 457 or Subclass 186 Employer Nomination Scheme visa.

Damages means all liabilities, losses, damages, costs and expenses, including legal fees and disbursements and costs of investigation, litigation, settlement, judgment, interest and penalties.

Deductions Plan means a plan submitted by the Approved Sponsor to the Commonwealth, seeking approval of fair, reasonable and lawful deductions from the gross salary of Skilled Meat Workers (other than deductions required by Australian law or statute), which if approved by the Commonwealth, could be made available to the Company's Skilled Meat Workers should they freely choose to avail themselves of this opportunity to which the deductions relate.

DIBP means the Department of Immigration and Border Protection ("the Department").

Effective Date means:

- (a) the date (if any) specified in **Item 4** of **Schedule 1**;
- (b) if no such date is specified, the date on which this Agreement is signed by the parties, or if signed on separate days, the date of the last signature.

Email Account means a party's email address set out in Schedule 1.

IELTS means the International English Language Testing System.

Industrial instrument means an instrument in force under a law of the Commonwealth or the State/Territory that regulates workplace relations and prescribes terms and conditions of employment between employers and employees including, but not limited to, an award or agreement made under the Commonwealth Fair Work Act 2009 (Cth) and an award or agreement made by a relevant State/Territory industrial tribunal or court.

Meat Processing Company means a company registered, licensed or accredited by the relevant Commonwealth or State/Territory authority to operate an abattoir and/or boning room and which is a Party to this Agreement and the direct employer of Skilled Meat Workers.

Meat Processing Establishment means for the purpose of this Agreement an establishment wholly or predominately concerned with any one or more of the activities of killing, dressing, boning, slicing, preparation and/or packing of fresh meat and is owned and operated by the Approved Sponsor at which Primary Sponsored Persons are to be employed.

Migration Act means the Migration Act 1958, as varied from time to time.

Migration Legislation means the Migration Act and/or the Migration Regulations.

Migration Regulations means the Migration Regulations 1994 made under the Migration Act 1958, as varied from time to time.

Minister means "the Minister" for Immigration and Border Protection, the Assistant Minister, and his or her authorised representative performing relevant functions as the Minister under the Migration Legislation.

MINTRAC means the Meat Industry National Training Advisory Council.

Nominate means a nomination referred to in section 140GB of the Migration Act.

Nominee means the holder of, or an applicant or proposed applicant for, a Subclass 457 or Subclass 186 Employer Nomination Scheme visa.

On-hire¹, under a labour agreement, means a person's business activities which include activities relating to either or both of:

- (a) the recruitment of labour for supply to another business; and
- (b) the hiring of labour to another business;
- (c) the reference to 'another business' in paragraph (a) and (b) above, includes any other business that is related to a person's business.

Occupations means those occupations prescribed in Schedule 3.

Postal Address means the address to which mail is delivered.

Primary Sponsored Person takes the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Relevant Industrial Instrument means an industrial instrument that applies to a Primary Sponsored Person and regulates the terms and conditions of employment of that Primary Sponsored Person.

¹ An example of On-hire is where a person proposes to sponsor someone to come to Australia for the purpose of hiring out the visa holder's services to client organisations, rather than to work directly in the person's business.

Secondary Sponsored Person takes the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Stand-down means "the employer has the right to deduct payment for any period on which an employee cannot be usefully employed, because of any industrial action (other than industrial action organised or engaged in by the employer), or through any breakdown of machinery if the employer cannot reasonably be held responsible for the breakdown or any stoppage of work for any cause for which the employer cannot reasonably be held responsible, or for any period which an employee cannot be usefully employed because of any industrial action in the meat industry".

Terms and conditions of employment takes the same meaning as Regulation 2.57 of the Migration Regulations.

The Department means the Department of Immigration and Border Protection.

Top Up is defined for the purpose of this Agreement as an amount needed to restore the Skilled Meat Worker's salary to the Temporary Skilled Migration Income Threshold as prescribed under **Schedule 6. Item 2. Clause 2**.

TSMIT means the Temporary Skilled Migration Income Threshold specified in an instrument made under regulation 2.72(10)(cc) of the Migration Regulations, as routinely indexed.

TSMIT Fortnightly Rate means the (annual salary x 12) divided by 313.

TSMIT Hourly Rate means the TSMIT Weekly Rate divided by 38.

TSMIT Weekly Rate means the (annual salary x 6) divided by 313.

Workforce means the total number of Australian workers (including permanent residents), subclass 457 visa holders, and other temporary visa holders engaged by the Approved Sponsor.

Workplace law means the *Fair Work Act 2009 (Cth)*, and any other law of the Commonwealth, a State or a Territory that regulates the relationships between employers and employees (including by dealing with occupational health and safety maters).

Workforce plan means a report that outlines the current, and where requested, projected future composition of an Approved Sponsor's workforce. It should include details of the total number of Australian workers (including permanent residents), subclass 457 visa holders, and other temporary visa holders engaged by the Approved Sponsor.

Year means the period of 12 months commencing on the day this Agreement commences, or a period of 12 months commencing on an anniversary of that day.

2 Interpretation

(**corresponding meanings**) a word that is derived from a defined word has a corresponding meaning.

(headings) clause headings, the table of contents and footnotes are inserted for convenience only and do not affect interpretation of this Agreement.

(**references**) a reference to a party, clause, paragraph or schedule is a reference to a party, clause, paragraph or schedule to, or of this Agreement.

(**requirements**) a requirement to do anything includes a requirement to cause that thing to be done, and a requirement not to do anything includes a requirement to prevent that thing being done.

(**including**) including and **includes** are not words of limitation, and a list of examples is not limited to those items or to items of a similar kind.

(**rules of construction**) neither this Agreement nor any part of it is to be construed against a party on the basis that the party or its lawyers were responsible for its drafting.

(singular and gender) the singular includes the plural and vice-versa, and words importing one gender include all other genders.

(**legislation**) a reference to any legislation or provision of legislation includes all amendments, consolidations or replacements and all regulations, directions or instruments issued under it.

(day) unless stated otherwise a reference to a day is a reference to a calendar day.

(month) a reference to a month is a reference to a calendar month.

(**person**) a reference to a person includes an individual, a body corporate, statutory corporation, partnership, body politic and permitted assigns, as the context requires.

(writing) a reference to a notice, consent, request, approval or other communication under this Agreement or an agreement between the parties means a written notice, request, consent, approval or agreement.

3 Period

- 3.1 This Agreement commences from the date signed by the Commonwealth specified in **Item 4** of **Schedule 1**.
- 3.2 Unless terminated earlier in accordance with clause 19 of this Agreement, the period of this Agreement will be the time specified in **Item 4** of **Schedule 1**.
- 3.3. For the purpose of Migration Regulation 457.511, the end of the period specified for a Subclass 457 visa granted pursuant to this Agreement, will be
 - (a) in the case of a holder who is in Australia at the time of grant to remain in Australia for a period of not more than four (4) years from the date of grant; and
 - (b) in the case of a holder who is outside Australia at the time of grant to remain in Australia for a period of not more than Four (4) years from the date of entry that is specified by the Minister.

4 Pre-contractual representations

4.1 The Approved Sponsor warrants that information supplied to the Commonwealth with respect to the Approved Sponsor being a fit and proper person to enter into this Agreement and upon which the Commonwealth relied, was true and correct.

Sponsorship and nomination of overseas workers

5 On-hire prohibited

- 5.1 On-hire is prohibited under this Agreement. Specifically:
 - (a) the Approved Sponsor must not nominate a proposed occupation for a Nominee, for On-hire;
 - (b) any such nominations will not be approved under this Agreement; and
 - (c) the Approved Sponsor must not utilise the services of a visa-holder engaged pursuant to a nomination under this Agreement, for On-hire.

6 Labour market need

6.1 The Approved Sponsor must take all reasonable steps to ensure it recruits suitably skilled Australians who are available before nominating a Nominee under this Agreement.

PART A – Subclass 457

7 Nomination

- 7.1 A nomination under this Part means a nomination referred to in section 140GB of the Migration Act.
- 7.2 The Approved Sponsor acknowledges the general requirements of the Subclass 457 visa programme and agrees that Primary Sponsored Persons engaged through this Agreement may only be engaged in occupations, and with concessions referred to in **Schedules 3** and **4**.
- 7.3 The Approved Sponsor may only nominate Nominees for:
 - (a) Occupations and Concessions outlined in **Schedule 3** and **4**; and
 - (b) up to the Ceiling Number specified in **Schedule 3**; and
 - (c) an Occupation to be performed in a location listed in **Item 1** of **Schedule 3**.
- 7.4 The Approved Sponsor will ensure that the number of nominations made under this Agreement in the occupations listed in **Schedule 3** does not exceed:
 - (a) the Ceiling Number identified in **Schedule 3**; or
 - (b) where one or more ceiling numbers have been approved by a subsequent variation, the most recently approved Ceiling Number.
- 7.5 The Approved Sponsor acknowledges that the Minister may, in his/her absolute discretion:
 - (a) vary the Ceiling Numbers up or down;
 - (b) vary the Concessions;
 - (c) vary the Occupations.
- 7.6 In addition to the information specified in the Migration Regulations, the Approved Sponsor must provide written certification that the Nominee:
 - (a) has the commensurate qualifications and experience in relation to the nominated occupation as specified in **Item 2** of **Schedule 3**;
 - (b) unless varied in accordance with Item 4 of Schedule 3,
 - i. has undertaken a test of English language proficiency and achieved the score specified for the relevant test in the instrument made under paragraph 457.223(4)(eb) of the Migration Regulations; or
 - ii. is the current holder of a valid passport issued by:
 - A. Canada; or
 - B. New Zealand: or
 - C. the Republic of Ireland; or
 - D. the United Kingdom; or
 - E. the United States of America; or
 - iii. has completed at least five (5) years of full-time study in a secondary and/or higher education institution where instruction was conducted in English; or
 - iv. will be paid a Base Rate of Pay which is at least the level of salary worked out in the way specified in the instrument made under paragraph 457.223(6)(a) of the Migration Regulations;
 - (c) will, when engaged under this Agreement, hold any licence, registration and /or membership that is required by Australian law to perform the Nominee's nominated occupation.

- 7.7 In addition to the information specified in the Migration Regulations, the Approved Sponsor must demonstrate, through written evidence, at nomination, that the Nominee will:
 - (a) be engaged full time and will receive terms and conditions of employment which are no less favourable than the terms or conditions of employment that are, or would be provided, to an Australian performing equivalent work in the Approved Sponsor's workplace at the same location, and
 - (b) receive a Base Rate of Pay, under the terms and conditions of employment referred to in clause 7.7 (a) that is equal to or greater than the TSMIT, unless varied in **Item 3** of **Schedule 3**.
- 7.8 Where no Australian is performing equivalent work in the Approved Sponsor's workplace at the same location, the Approved Sponsor must, in addition to the information specified in the Migration Regulations, demonstrate through written evidence, at nomination that:
 - (a) the Nominee will be engaged on a full-time basis; and
 - (b) the terms and conditions of employment received by the Nominee will be no less favourable than that paid to an Australian performing equivalent work; and
 - (c) the Nominee will receive a Base Rate of Pay, under the terms and conditions of employment referred to in clause 7.8 (b) that is equal to or greater than TSMIT, unless varied in **Item 3** of **Schedule 3**.
- 7.9 In addition to the information in the Migration Regulations, the Approved Sponsor must provide written certification; that the following information provided in support of a nomination application, is true and correct:
 - (a) that the Approved Sponsor has taken all reasonable steps to ensure it recruits suitably skilled Australians, before engaging Primary Sponsored Persons under this Agreement; and
 - (b) that the tasks of the position include a significant majority of the tasks of the nominated occupation as described in ANZSCO, unless varied in **Schedule 4**; and
 - (c) that the Nominee will complete a skills assessment where:
 - i. such is required in accordance with the standard subclass 457 visa programme as prescribed in the Migration Legislation; or
 - ii. where the Minister specified that a skills assessment is required in **Item 1** of **Schedule 5**.
- 7.10 The Approved Sponsor must comply with any additional requirements for nomination that are stipulated by the Minister in **Item 1** of **Schedule 5**.

8 Approval of nominations

- 8.1 The Minister will approve nominations in accordance with the Migration Legislation.
- 8.2 The Minister will notify the Approved Sponsor of a decision on the nomination application.
- 8.3 The period of an approval of a nomination will be in accordance with the Migration Legislation.

9 Sponsorship obligations

- 9.1 The Approved Sponsor must satisfy its sponsorship obligations in Division 2.19 of Part 2A of the Migration Regulations and in Migration Legislation.
- 9.2 The Approved Sponsor is specifically required to meet the following obligations in the Migration Regulations and as varied, if at all, in **Schedule 6**, as follows:
 - (a) to cooperate with inspectors (Regulation 2.78);
 - (b) to ensure equivalent terms and conditions of employment (Regulation 2.79);

- (c) to pay travel costs to enable sponsored persons to leave Australia (Regulation 2.80);
- (d) to pay costs incurred by the Commonwealth to locate and remove unlawful non-citizen (Regulation 2.81);
- (e) to keep records (Regulation 2.82);
- (f) to provide records and information to the Minister (Regulation 2.83);
- (g) to provide information to the Minister when certain events occur (Regulation 2.84);
- (h) to ensure a Primary Sponsored Person does not work in an occupation other than an approved occupation (Regulation 2.86);
- (i) not to recover certain costs (Regulation 2.87).
- 9.3 The Approved Sponsor must meet the following additional obligations which are imposed in accordance with subsection 140H(3) of the Migration Act:
 - (a) ensure that every Primary Sponsored Person engaged under this Agreement holds any licence, registration and/or membership that is required by Australian law to perform the Primary Sponsored Person's approved occupation (the occupation listed in the most recently approved nomination);
 - (b) as at the commencement date provide information to the Commonwealth that is true and correct with respect to matters dealt with in this Agreement and/or matters relevant to the Approved Sponsor's sponsorship of Primary Sponsored Persons pursuant to this Agreement;
 - (c) pay wages and salary directly to the Primary Sponsored Person;
 - (d) ensure all Primary Sponsored Persons are engaged on a full-time basis and will receive terms and conditions of employment which are no less favourable than the terms and conditions of employment that are, or would be, provided to an Australian performing equivalent work in the Approved Sponsor's workplace at the same location;
 - (e) ensure any payments (including, but not limited to, repayments of salary advances made to the Primary Sponsored Person at the discretion of the Approved Sponsor) deducted from the Primary Sponsored Person's salary may only be made with the consent and written permission of the Primary Sponsored Person and must be consistent with Workplace Laws and the requirements of the relevant award; and
 - (f) any other additional obligations specified in **Item 10** of **Schedule 6**.
- 9.4 The obligation in paragraph 9.3(a) is applicable and commences when the Primary Sponsored Person commences his or her employment or engagement with the Approved Sponsor, and ends on the earlier of:
 - (a) the day on which the Primary Sponsored Person is granted a further substantive visa that:
 - i. is not a Subclass 457 visa; and
 - ii. is in effect; and
 - (b) the day on which the Primary Sponsored Person ceases employment or engagement with the Approved Sponsor.
- 9.5 The obligations in paragraphs 9.3(c), (d), (e) and (f) commence and end in accordance with subregulation 2.79(4) of the Migration Regulations.
- 9.6 The Approved Sponsor must comply with Workplace law.

PART B - Subclass 186

10 Nominations

- 10.1 A nomination under this Part means a nomination referred to in Migration Regulations for a permanent residence visa specified in **Item 5** of **Schedule 3**.
- 10.2 The Approved Sponsor acknowledges the general requirements for permanent residence and agrees that Primary Sponsored Persons engaged through this Agreement may only be engaged in occupations, and with concessions referred to in **Schedules 3** and **4**.
- 10.3 The Approved Sponsor may only nominate Nominees for:
 - (a) occupations as specified in Item 1 of Schedule 3;
 - (b) up to the ceiling number specified in **Schedule 3**
 - (c) an occupation to be performed in a location listed in **Item 1** of **Schedule 3**.
- 10.4 The Approved Sponsor will ensure that the number of nominations made under this Agreement in the occupations listed in **Schedule 3** does not exceed:
 - (a) the Ceiling Number identified in Schedule 3; or
 - (b) where one or more ceiling numbers have been approved by a subsequent variation, the most recently approved Ceiling Number.
- 10.5 The Approved Sponsor acknowledges that the Minister may, in his/her absolute discretion:
 - (a) vary the Ceiling Numbers up or down;
 - (b) vary the Concessions;
 - (c) vary the Occupations.
- 10.6 The Approved Sponsor must make nominations in accordance with the approved forms and form 1395 (elodgment nomination form).
- 10.7 The Approved Sponsor must provide, as part of the nomination:
 - (a) the information required in the Migration Regulations;
 - (b) the fee specified in the Migration Regulations.
- 10.8 The Commonwealth may refund the fee in accordance with the circumstances for such a refund in the Migration Regulations.
- 10.9 The Approved Sponsor must comply with any additional requirements for a permanent residence nomination that is stipulated by the Minister in **Item 2** of **Schedule 5**.
- 10.10 The Approved Sponsor may only nominate a Nominee who:
 - (a) has the commensurate qualifications and experience in relation to the nominated occupation as specified in **Item 2** of **Schedule 3**;
 - (b) unless varied in accordance with Item 4 of Schedule 3:
 - i. has undertaken a test of English language proficiency and achieved the score specified for the relevant test in the instrument made under paragraph 186.222(a) of the Migration Regulations; or
 - ii. is a class of person who is specified in an instrument made under paragraph 186.222(b) of the Migration Regulations as being exempt from the English language requirement;
 - (c) has not turned 50 years of age at time of nomination, unless varied in **Item 5** of **Schedule 3**; and
 - (d) has been employed under a subclass 457 visa for the previous three (3) years and six (6) months in the occupations specified in **Item 1** of **Schedule 3**;

- (e) holds any licence, registration and/or membership that is required by Australian law to perform the Nominee's nominated occupation.
- 10.11 The Approved Sponsor must demonstrate, through written evidence, at nomination, that the Nominee will:
 - (a) be engaged full time and will receive terms and conditions of employment which are no less favourable than the terms or conditions of employment that are, or would be provided, to an Australian performing equivalent work in the Approved Sponsor's workplace at the same location, and
 - (b) receive a Base Rate of Pay, under the terms and conditions of employment referred to in clause 10.11 (a) that is equal to or greater than the TSMIT, unless varied in **Item 3** of **Schedule 3**.
- 10.12 Where no Australian is performing equivalent work in the Approved Sponsor's workplace at the same location, the Approved Sponsor must, in addition to the information specified in the Migration Regulations, demonstrate through written evidence, at nomination that:
 - (a) the Nominee will be engaged on a full-time basis; and
 - (b) the terms and conditions of employment received by the Nominee will be no less favourable than that paid to an Australian performing equivalent work; and
 - (c) the Nominee will receive a Base Rate of Pay, under the terms and conditions of employment referred to in clause 10.12 (b) that is equal to or greater than TSMIT, unless varied in **Item 3** of **Schedule 3**.
- 10.13 The Approved Sponsor must provide written certification that the following information provided in support of a nomination application, is true and correct:
 - (a) that the tasks of the position include a significant majority of the tasks of the nominated occupation as described in ANZSCO, unless varied in **Schedule 4**;
 - (b) that the position will be ongoing for at least two (2) years.
- 10.14 The Approved Sponsor must comply with any additional requirements for nomination that are stipulated by the Minister in **Item 2** of **Schedule 5**.

11. Approval of nominations

- 11.1 The Minister will approve nominations in accordance with this Agreement, including any requirements specified in **Item 2** of **Schedule 5**.
- 11.2 The Minister will notify the Approved Sponsor of a decision on the nomination application.
- 11.3 The period of an approval of a nomination will be in accordance with the Migration Legislation.

PART C: Other provisions

12. Training and recruitment of Australian workers

- 12.1 The Approved Sponsor must comply with the training and recruitment obligations outlined in **Schedule 2**.
- 12.2 The Approved Sponsor may carry out the training obligations itself or through contracted service providers.
- 12.3 The Approved Sponsor warrants that the training provided will be fit for any purpose express or implied.

13. Supporting Primary Sponsored Persons

- 13.1 The Approved Sponsor will be responsible for ensuring that all Primary Sponsored Persons engaged under this Agreement are supplied with workplace rights information.
- 13.2 The information referred to in clause 13.1 should be provided within seven (7) days of the date the Primary Sponsored Person commences employment in the nominated Occupation with the Approved Sponsor.

14. Reporting obligations

- 14.1 Unless varied in Schedule 7:
 - (a) the Approved Sponsor must provide a report to the Department within 30 days following a request by the Minister or when requesting a variation to **Schedule 3**;
 - (b) the report must include:
 - i. updated Workforce Plans; and
 - ii. evidence of efforts to recruit domestically, using the template provided in **Schedule 8**; and
 - iii. evidence of the Base Rate of Pay as defined at **Item 3** of **Schedule 3**, for Primary Sponsored Persons; and
 - iv. evidence of compliance with the training obligations defined in **Schedule 2**; and
 - v. details of any breaches of immigration or other Commonwealth or State laws; and
 - vi. the dates and numbers and occupations of any and all Australian workers who have been retrenched or made redundant in the past 12 month period; and
 - vii. any additional information requested by the Minister.

15. Monitoring

- 15.1 The Minister may, from time to time, audit the Approved Sponsor's performance of its obligations in this Agreement and the Approved Sponsor will cooperate with the Minister for the purpose of such audits.
- 15.2 Without limiting the generality of the preceding clause, the Approved Sponsor will:
 - (a) liaise with and provide information and assistance to the Minister as reasonably required by the Minister for the purposes of such audits;
 - (b) comply with the Minister's reasonable requests or requirements for the purposes of such audits.
- 15.3 Unless specified otherwise in the Migration Legislation, the Approved Sponsor will retain all records generated for the purposes of this Agreement for seven (7) years from the date of expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Miscellaneous Provisions

16. Relationship between the parties

- 16.1 Nothing in this Agreement:
 - (a) constitutes a partnership between the parties; or
 - (b) except as expressly provided, makes a party an agent of another party for any purpose.
- 16.2 A party cannot in any way or for any purpose:
 - (a) bind another party; or

- (b) contract in the name of another party.
- 16.3 If a party must fulfil an obligation and that party is dependent on another party, then that other party must do each thing reasonably within its power to assist the other in the performance of that obligation.
- 16.4 If the Approved Sponsor is constituted by more than one legal entity (such as a partnership or an unincorporated association), each of those legal entities will be jointly and severally liable for the performance of all of the Approved Sponsor's obligations under this Agreement.

17. Confidential information and information sharing

- 17.1 If a party's information is specified as Confidential Information in **Item 5** of **Schedule 1**, the other party will not disclose the information without the first party's prior written consent, except when disclosure of the information is required by law, statutory or portfolio duties, or in accordance with clause 17.3 of this Agreement.
- 17.2 The Approved Sponsor must comply with any reasonable request by the Commonwealth for information to enable the Commonwealth to meet its obligations in this Agreement.
- 17.3 The Approved Sponsor consents to information concerning it which is relevant to the operation of this Agreement being shared by the Minister with:
 - (a) State or Territory government agencies in the State or Territory in which the Approved Sponsor conducts business, where those agencies have regulatory or other relevant interests in the operation of this Agreement;
 - (b) Commonwealth agencies with regulatory or other relevant interests in the operation of this Agreement.
- 17.4 The Approved Sponsor will allow the disclosure of information related to this Agreement for various reporting and Commonwealth disclosure obligations. These disclosures include:
 - (a) disclosure of procurement information for the Department's annual reporting purposes;
 - (b) disclosure to the Parliament and its committees, as appropriate, in line with the Government Guidelines for Official Witnesses before Parliamentary Committees and Related Matters:
 - (c) disclosure of information consistent with the Freedom of Information Act 1982 (Cth);
 - (d) disclosure of discoverable information that is relevant to a case before a court; and
 - (e) disclosure of information as required under other legislation or Commonwealth policy.
- 17.5 Clause 17.3 survives the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

18. Suspension

- 18.1 The Minister may, in his/her absolute discretion, suspend this Agreement in whole or in part.
- 18.2 The Approved Sponsor and other third parties are not entitled to any compensation or payments as a result of the Minister suspending this Agreement under clause 18.1.
- 18.3 Where the Minister suspends this Agreement in accordance with clause 18.1 the Minister will notify the Approved Sponsor in writing.
- 18.4 For the avoidance of doubt, where the Minister notifies that this Agreement has been suspended in accordance with clause 18.3, the suspension shall take effect at the time the notice is taken to be received by the Approved Sponsor, in accordance with clause 27.
- 18.5 Where the Minister suspends this Agreement in accordance with clause 18.1, the Minister may, in determining the order for considering and disposing of nomination applications and visa applications, give the lowest priority to applications made under this Agreement.

- 18.6 After a period of suspension, the Minister may, at his/her absolute discretion, choose to resume this Agreement by notifying the Approved Sponsor in writing.
- 18.7 Where the Minister chooses to resume this Agreement in accordance with clause 18.6 and notifies the Approved Sponsor, the Agreement will resume at the time the notice is taken to be received, in accordance with clause 27.
- 18.8 For the avoidance of doubt, any period of suspension will have no impact on and will not amend the period of this Agreement. The period of this Agreement will remain as specified in **Item 4** of **Schedule 1**.

19. Termination

- 19.1 The Minister may, in his/her absolute discretion, terminate this Agreement at any time including for reasons of public interest where there is a change in policy or a change in government which results in a change in policy settings.
- 19.2 The Approved Sponsor will not be entitled to any compensation or payments as a result of the Minister terminating this Agreement under clause 19.1.
- 19.3 Otherwise, if the Minister contends that the Approved Sponsor is in default under this Agreement, the Minister may, without prejudice to any right of action or remedy which has accrued or which may accrue (including the Minister's entitlement to terminate in accordance with clause 19.6):
 - (a) suspend this Agreement in whole or in part; and
 - (b) serve notice on the Approved Sponsor, advising that this Agreement is suspended and requiring the Approved Sponsor to rectify to the satisfaction of the Minister, those aspects of the Approved Sponsor's performance which are of concern to the Commonwealth; or
 - (c) terminate this Agreement without prejudice to any right of action or remedy which has accrued or which may accrue.
- 19.4 If the Approved Sponsor is in breach of a sponsorship obligation in the Migration Regulations the Approved Sponsor will be taken to be in default under this Agreement as if the statutory obligation was a contractual obligation of the Approved Sponsor.
- 19.5 For the avoidance of doubt, a breach of the Approved Sponsor's warranty given in clause 4.1 with respect to pre-contractual information, will entitle the Minister to suspend this Agreement and serve a notice under clause 19.3 and/or to take any other contractual redress in accordance with this Agreement.
- 19.6 A party may, in its discretion, terminate this Agreement early by giving 28 days' notice to the other party, whereupon this Agreement will be terminated with effect 28 days after the notice of termination is served. A party serving a notice of termination under this sub-clause:
 - (a) need not specify a reason for serving the notice;
 - (b) may withdraw the notice before the 28 days have elapsed; and
 - (c) will not be liable to compensate the other party for costs or damages that may arise from the early termination.
- 19.7 For the avoidance of doubt if this Agreement is terminated for any reason, or for no reason:
 - (a) the Approved Sponsor's approval as a sponsor for the purposes of this Agreement will thereby be automatically terminated; and
 - (b) visas granted pursuant to this Agreement will be subject to the operation of the Migration Legislation.

19.8 A waiver by a party in respect of any breach of a condition or provision of this Agreement will not be deemed to be a waiver in respect of any continuing or subsequent breach of that provision, or breach of any other provision. The failure of a party to enforce at any time any of the provisions of this Agreement will in no way be interpreted as a waiver of such provision.

20. Sanctions

- 20.1 Instead of terminating this Agreement:
 - (a) the Commonwealth may, in its discretion bar the Approved Sponsor, for a specified period, from making further nominations under this Agreement, or
 - (b) the Minister may, in his or her absolute discretion, give the lowest processing priority to nomination applications and visa applications made under this Agreement.
- 20.2 The Commonwealth may, in its discretion, instead of terminating this Agreement or in addition to terminating this Agreement, take action against the Approved Sponsor for a breach of contract to recover damages and/or for injunctive relief.
- 20.3 The Commonwealth may, in its discretion, instead of taking any enforcement action under this Agreement or in addition to taking such enforcement action, pursue a civil penalty under the Migration Legislation for failing to satisfy a sponsorship obligation.

21. Dispute resolution

- 21.1 The Parties will deal with any dispute arising during the course of this Agreement as follows:
 - (a) the party claiming that there is a dispute must notify the other party of the dispute;
 - (b) the parties will use reasonable endeavours to resolve the dispute by direct negotiation;
 - (c) the parties must allow 28 days from notification of the dispute to reach a resolution or to agree to refer the dispute to mediation in accordance with, and subject to, The Institute of Arbitrators and Mediators Australia Mediation Rules or some other form of alternative dispute resolution procedure agreed to in writing by the Parties; and
 - (d) in the event that:
 - i. the Parties have attended mediation, or some other form of alternative dispute resolution procedure; and
 - ii. no written settlement agreement is executed within 15 Business Days (or such extended time as the Parties may agree in writing before the expiration of the 15 Business days) of the conclusion of the mediation or some other form of alternative dispute resolution procedure

then either Party may commence legal proceedings or terminate this Agreement.

21.2 The Parties acknowledge that the Migration Review Tribunal and Administrative Appeals
Tribunal may have jurisdiction to review decisions in relation to nomination applications and
visa applications made under this Agreement. This Agreement does not abrogate any rights of a
merits review by the Migration Review Tribunal or the Administrative Appeals Tribunal.

22. Assurances, counterparts and assignment

- 22.1 Each party must promptly execute all documents and do all other things reasonably necessary or desirable to give effect to the arrangements recorded in this Agreement.
- 22.2 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts.
- 22.3 A party cannot assign or otherwise transfer its rights under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party.

23. Variation and entire agreement

- 23.1 Unless otherwise specified in this Deed, a provision of this Agreement can only be varied by a written document executed by or on behalf of all parties.
- 23.2 The contents of this Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the parties and supersede any prior negotiations, representations, understandings or arrangements made between the parties regarding the subject matter of this Agreement, whether orally or in writing.

24. Fettering and publishing

- 24.1 Nothing in this Agreement fetters or detracts from the Commonwealth's discretions, functions or powers under the Migration Legislation, Workplace law or other relevant Commonwealth laws.
- 24.2 In the event the Commonwealth has published an outline of this Agreement, the published outline is an invitation to treat with prospective sponsors and is not an offer to enter into contractual relations with any such sponsor on the basis of the published outline.
- 24.3 The Commonwealth may grant or refuse to grant consent, in its absolute discretion, to any application by the Approved Sponsor for consent to a change in control of the Approved Sponsor that may be inimical to the Approved Sponsor's capacity to perform its obligations under this Agreement, and the Commonwealth may attach such conditions on a consent as the Commonwealth sees fit.

25. Legal expenses

- 25.1 Each party must pay its own legal costs and disbursements in connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution and carrying into effect of this Agreement.
- 25.2 The Approved Sponsor must pay any stamp duty assessed on or in relation to this Agreement and any instrument or transaction required by or necessary to give effect to this Agreement.

26. Survival after termination

26.1 Any provision of this Agreement which expressly or by implication from its nature is intended to survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement and any rights arising on termination or expiration will survive, including Confidential Information, and the Approved Sponsor's sponsorship obligations.

27. Notices

- 27.1 Any notice, demand, consent or other communication given or made under this Agreement:
 - (a) must be clearly readable;
 - (b) must, unless it is sent by email, be signed by the party giving or making it (or signed on behalf of that party by its authorised representative);
 - (c) must, unless it is sent by email, be left at the Address or sent by pre-paid security post (air mail if outside Australia) to the Business Address of the recipient; and
 - (d) may be sent by email to the receiving party's Email Account.
- 27.2 A notice to be served on the Commonwealth will be taken to be served if it is served on the Department's address in **Item 1** of **Schedule 1**.
- 27.3 A party may change its Business Address, Postal Address or Email Account for the purpose of service by giving notice of that change to the other party in accordance with clause 27.1.

- 27.4 Any communication will be taken to be received by the recipient:
 - (a) in the case of a letter, on the third (seventh, if sent outside the country in which the letter is posted) Business Day after the date of posting;
 - (b) in the case of an email, at the end of the day in which the email is transmitted.

28. Governing law and jurisdiction

- 28.1 The laws applicable in the Australian Capital Territory govern this Agreement.
- 28.2 The parties submit to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Australian Capital Territory and any courts competent to hear appeals from those courts.

29. Indemnity

- 29.1 The Approved Sponsor agrees to indemnify the Minister from and against any:
 - (a) cost or liability incurred by the Minister; or
 - (b) loss or expense incurred by the Minister in dealing with any claim against it including legal costs and expenses on a solicitor/own client basis and the cost of time spent, resources used or disbursements paid by the Minister,

arising from:

- (c) any act or omission by the Approved Sponsor or its Personnel in connection with this Agreement; or
- (d) any breach by the Approved Sponsor of its obligations or warranties under this Agreement;
- irrespective of whether there was fault on the part of the person whose conduct gave rise to that liability, loss or damage, or loss or expense.
- 29.2 The Approved Sponsor's liability to indemnify the Minister under clause 29.1 will be reduced proportionately to the extent that any breach of this Agreement by the Minister or any act or omission involving fault on the part of the Minister contributed to the relevant cost, liability, loss, damage, or expense.
- 29.3 The right of the Minister to be indemnified under clause 29.1 is in addition to, and not exclusive of, any other right, power or remedy provided by law, but the Minister is not entitled to be compensated in excess of the amount of the relevant cost, liability, loss, damage, or expense.
- 29.4 In clause 29.1:
 - (a) "the Minister" includes officers, employees and agents of the Minister; and
 - (b) "Personnel" means a party's officers, employees, agents, contract staff or professional advisers engaged in, or in relation to, the performance or management of this Agreement;
- 29.5 Clause 29.1 will survive six (6) years from the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Schedule 1 Particulars

Item 1

Commonwealth Particulars

Name:

Department of Immigration and Border Protection

Address:

6 Chan Street, BELCONNEN ACT 2617

Telephone Number:

s22(1)(a)(ii)

Email Address:

Contact officer:

Director, Labour Agreement Section

Item 2

The Approved Sponsor's Particulars

Name:

Ralph's Meat Company Pty Ltd

ACN:

ABN:

80 080 995 777

Business structure:

Australian Proprietary Company

Business Address:

Granville Drive, SEYMOUR VIC 3660

Postal Address:

PO Box 284 SEYMOUR VIC 3660

Telephone Number:

Email Address:

Contact officer:

Item 3

The Approved Sponsor's Business

Business Undertaking:

Meat Processing

Industry segment:

Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing

Item 4

Commencement and period

Effective Date:

The date signed by the Commonwealth.

Cease Date:

Five (5) years from 15 January 2015

Item 5

Commercial-in-Confidence Information

Party:

The Department of Immigration and Border Protection on behalf of

the Commonwealth

Ralph's Meat Company Pty Ltd

The terms of this Agreement

All information provided to request and secure access to a Labour Agreement

Released by Department of Home Affairs under the Freedom of Information Act 1982

Schedule 2 Training and recruitment obligations

- 1. The Approved Sponsor must, throughout the term of this agreement, demonstrate a commitment to the provision of employment, training and career progression opportunities to Australians through compliance with this Schedule.
- 2. It is an obligation of the Agreement that the Approved Sponsor must undertake recruitment activities which afford Australians the first opportunity for employment, prior to nomination of positions covered by this Agreement.
- 3. It is an obligation of this Agreement that the Approved Sponsor must, over the term of each Year of the Agreement, ensure that:
 - (a) payments equivalent to at least two (2) per cent of the gross payroll of the Approved Sponsor are made to an industry training fund that operates in the same industry as the Approved Sponsor; or
 - (b) payments equivalent to at least one (1) per cent of the gross payroll of the Approved Sponsor are made for the provision of structured training for the Australian employees of the Approved Sponsor.
- 4. Expenditure that may count towards training expenditure for the purposes of this Agreement is outlined in Legislative Instrument IMMI 13/030, as varied from time to time.

Released by Department of Home Affairs under the Freedom of Information Act 1982

Schedule 3 Occupations; Ceiling numbers; Location; Qualifications and Experience; and other Concessions covered by this Agreement

Item 1 Occupations, Ceiling Numbers, and Location

Occupation	ANZSCO	Ceiling numbers of Primary Sponsored Persons : subclass 457				Location of Work	Ce	iling number	rs of Primary subclass 1	Sponsored Pe 186	ersons :	
		Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5		Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5
Skilled	070-299	s47										
Meat												
Worker												

- The Minister may vary the ceiling number and occupation at any time.
- Before the subsequent years of the term of operation commence, the Approved Sponsor may request a ceiling for the subsequent year. The Commonwealth reserves the right to make the final decision as to the ceiling for each year of the Agreement.

Item 2 Qualifications and Experience:

The Approved Sponsor may only nominate a nominee who holds the following qualifications and experience:

Skilled Meat Worker (code 070-299 – (occupation unknown)) who:

- has been assessed and verified by a MINTRAC registered assessor, or an assessor approved by the Commonwealth, with a Certificate IV in Training and Assessment experienced in meat processing, to be Skilled Meat Workers with a minimum skill level commensurate with the MINTRAC referenced AQF Certificate III in meat processing; and
- (b) either:
 - i. demonstrates a minimum of three (3) years skilled work experience obtained at a meat processing establishment acceptable to the Parties; or
 - ii. has been working in Australia on a Subclass 457 visa at an Australian Meat Processing Establishment acceptable to the Parties for at least nine (9 months prior to being nominated.

eased by Department of Home Affairs ⁷⁵ er the *Freedom of Information Act 1982*

Item 3 Concessions to TSMIT

Clauses 7.7(b), 7.8(c), 10.8(b) and 10.8(c) are varied as follows:

The Nominee will be paid, under the terms and conditions of employment referred to in clauses 7.7(a), 7.8(b), 10.8(a) and 10.8(b) respectively, no less than the TSMIT. Payments that can be considered for the purpose of meeting the TSMIT include any payments that are provided for under the Relevant Industrial Instrument, or the Migration Regulations, excluding bonus payments and payments for all time worked outside the ordinary working hours (including overtime and shifts) on any day. Payments of worker's compensation benefits to Primary Sponsored Person as compensation for loss of ordinary earnings and payments that are based on activity levels can also be considered for the purpose of meeting the TSMIT.

Item 4 Concessions to English language requirement

- 1. Clause 7.6(b) is varied to include:
 - (a) has achieved a minimum average score of at least five (5) on an IELTS test with no minimum test score: or
 - (b) is a Primary Sponsored Person who was not required to meet English language levels under previous meat industry labour agreements or a Standard Business Sponsorship
- 2. Clause 10.10(b) is varied to include:
 - (a) has achieved a minimum average score of at least five (5) on an IELTS test with no minimum test score; or
 - (b) for subclass 457 visa holders **who were not required** to provide evidence of English language proficiency at the time of grant of their subclass 457 visa, has completed, and provides evidence as prescribed in the Migration Regulations for meeting functional English..

Item 5 Concessions to age requirement (permanent residence)

Nil

Schedule 4 Concessions to tasks of occupations in ANZSCO

The duties and tasks of a skilled meat worker reflect the duties and tasks referenced by a National Meat Industry Training Advisory Council (MINTRAC) Certificate III. A skilled meat worker cannot be employed in a labouring position or undertake labouring or unskilled duties other than to the extent of circumstances prescribed below.

Tasks of a skilled meat worker, which include the duties of ANZSCO occupations Slaughterer and Meat Boner and Slicer, are:

- stuns and kills livestock, and prepares carcasses for further processing by removing internal organs and hides;
- operating switching controls to direct and drop carcasses and meat cuts from supply rails to boning tables;
- cutting meat to separate meat, fat and tissue from around bones;
- washing, scraping and trimming foreign material and blood from meat;
- cutting sides and quarters of meat into standard meat cuts, such as rumps, flanks and shoulders, and removing internal fat, blood clots, bruises and other matter to prepare them for packing and marketing;
- operating restrainer and stunning equipment;
- severing jugular veins of stunned animals to drain blood and facilitate dressing;
- trimming and removing head meat and severing animal heads;
- slitting open, eviscerating and trimming animal carcasses; and
- may slaughter livestock according to procedures required by religious customs.

Released by Department of Home Affairs under the Freedom of Information Act 1982

Schedule 5 Additional requirements for nomination

Item 1 Subclass 457

The Approved Sponsor must meet the following requirements to the Commonwealth's satisfaction before a nomination will be approved:

- The Approved Sponsor has attested as part of the nomination, in writing, that it has a strong record of, or a demonstrated commitment to employing local labour, and non-discriminatory employment practices.
- The Approved Sponsor has certified as part of the nomination, in writing, that it has not:
 - i. permanently terminated the employment of not more than five percent of its Australia workforce at the Meat Processing Establishment approved under this Agreement (except in circumstances of demonstrated misconduct or unlawful conduct) within a period of three (3) months prior to the date of the nomination application; and
 - ii. stood down its workforce at the Meat Processing Establishment approved under this Agreement for more than seven (7) consecutive days at any single given time over a three (3) month period prior to the date of the nomination application; and
 - iii. reduced the shifts of its workforce at the Meat Processing Establishment approved under this Agreement to less than 50 per cent of the regular shift quota within a period of three (3) months prior to the date of the nomination application.
- The requirement to make a certification does not apply if the Commonwealth is satisfied that compelling circumstances exist (for example, a natural disaster) which warrant the Approved Sponsor undertaking any of the actions outlined in Schedule 5, Item 1, Clause 2.
- The Approved Sponsor must only make a nomination application in respect of a nominee that would work directly for them at a Meat Processing Establishment.
- 5 The Sponsor must provide evidence of labour market testing for skilled meat worker vacancies for the nominated occupation.

Item 2: Subclass 186

- 1. The Approved Sponsor may only nominate a Primary Sponsored Person who has been employed as a Primary 457 visa holder in the nominated occupation, for at least three (3) years and six (6) months before the nomination is made, and
- 2. The Approved Sponsor must only make a nomination application in respect of a Primary Sponsored Person that would work directly for them at a Meat Processing Establishment.

Schedule 6 Variation of sponsorship obligations2

Item 1 Obligation to cooperate with inspectors

The obligation in regulation 2.78 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 2 Obligation to ensure equivalent terms and conditions of employment

The obligation in regulation 2.79 of the Migration Regulations applies and, in accordance with subsection 140H(2) of the Migration Act, is varied in the following way:

Subregulation 2.79 (3A) does not apply, and the following applies:

- 1. The Primary Sponsored Person will be paid no less than the TSMIT over an Annual Salary period. Payments that can be considered for the purpose of meeting the TSMIT include any payments that are provided for under the Relevant Industrial Instrument, or the Migration Regulations, excluding bonus payments and payments for all time worked outside the ordinary working hours (including overtime and shifts) on any day. Payments of worker's compensation benefits to Primary Sponsored Person as compensation for loss of ordinary earnings and payments that are based on activity levels can also be considered for the purpose of meeting the TSMIT.
- 2. Where a Primary Sponsored Person is not provided with work for a period of time, whether because of a Stand Down, insufficient work or any other reason, the Approved Sponsor must pay the Primary Sponsored Person as follows³:
 - (a) if the Primary Sponsored Person is not provided with work for any period within a fortnight, and the Primary Sponsored Person does not earn an amount equal to one-half (50%) of the fortnightly TSMIT amount, then the Approved Sponsor must pay to the Primary Sponsored Person the difference between the amount actually earned and one-half (50%) of the fortnightly TSMIT amount;
 - (b) if the Primary Sponsored Person is not provided with work for a period greater than a fortnight, then the Approved Sponsor must pay to the Primary Sponsored Person an amount equal to one-half (50%) of the fortnightly TSMIT amount for the length of the Stand Down and to pay any shortfall of TSMIT calculated over an Annual Salary period ('Top up');
 - (c) A Top up payment will generally be made on an annual basis. However, where Primary Sponsored Person not being provided with work has resulted in the payment to a Primary Sponsored Person of less than the pro-rata TSMIT in three consecutive months, then the Commonwealth reserves the right to request that the Sponsor pay the Top up for that three month period at any time, and any balance owing for the period of time for which the Primary Sponsored Person was not provided with work, calculated over an Annual Salary period, at a later date as determined by the Commonwealth.
- 3. All other terms and conditions of this Agreement should be consistent with the Relevant Industrial Instrument. The Approved Sponsor must meet all their obligations under the Relevant Industrial Instrument and applicable Workplace law. To the extent that the Agreement provides additional benefits to the Primary Sponsored Person as an employee it operates in conjunction with the Relevant Industrial Instrument and applicable Workplace Law.

² A summary of sponsorship obligations can be found at: http://www.border.gov.au/Trav/Visa-1/457-

³ If sufficient work for the Primary Sponsored Person to be engaged on a full-time and ongoing basis is not available for an extended period of time, Approved Sponsors should consider whether the Primary Sponsored Person should continue to be employed.

Item 3 Obligation to pay travel costs to enable sponsored persons to leave Australia

The obligation in regulation 2.80 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 4 Obligation to pay costs incurred by the Commonwealth to locate and remove unlawful non-citizens

The obligation in regulation 2.81 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 5 Obligation to keep records

The obligation in regulation 2.82 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 6 Obligation to provide records and information to the Minister

The obligation in regulation 2.83 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 7 Obligation to provide information to Immigration when certain events occur

The obligation in regulation 2.84 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 8 Obligation to ensure Primary Sponsored Person works or participates in nominated occupation, program or activity

The obligation in regulation 2.86 of the Migration Regulations applies and is varied in accordance with the following provisions:

- 1. The Approved Sponsor must ensure that the Primary Sponsored Persons are Skilled Meat Workers and that they will be employed only in skilled meat processing occupations except:
 - (a) where the Skilled Meat Worker is required to undertake suitable duties pursuant to the requirements of applicable Workers Compensation laws; or
 - (b) where the requirement is made for bona fide OH&S reasons to provide a worker with restricted duties consistent with existing medical opinion. The Meat Processing Company must notify the Commonwealth immediately if any period of restricted duties exceeds one week; or
 - (c) where a Skilled Meat Worker has completed his or her ordinary working hours, other duties outside of the 'Skilled Meat Worker' duties, including duties offered as part of Overtime, may be considered.

Item 9 Obligation not to recover, transfer or take actions that would result in another person paying for certain costs

The obligation in regulation 2.87 of the Migration Regulations applies and is varied in accordance with the following provisions. In addition to clause 7.87(1a), 7.57(1):

- 1. The Approved Sponsor cannot recover costs including but not limited to;
 - (a) the Approved Sponsor's recruitment costs;
 - (b) public health costs (or insurance to cover public health costs) for both Primary and Secondary Visa Holders where the visa grant was prior to 14 September 2009; and
 - (c) English language testing and/or training for Primary Sponsored Person;
- 2. Where the Approved Sponsor provides accommodation and/or board:
 - (a) it must not be compulsory for the Primary Sponsored Person to accept the accommodation and/or board;
 - (b) it can only be charged at a fair and reasonable market rate; and

- (c) charges for accommodation and/or board must satisfy the Commonwealth as being fair and reasonable and meet workplace laws;
- 3. The Approved Sponsor must only permit the Skilled Meat Workers to authorise the Approved Sponsor to make deductions from their gross salary where those authorised deductions are consistent with the Deductions Plan approved by the Commonwealth for that Approved Sponsor and is consistent with relevant State/Territory legislation and workplace laws;
- 4. The Approved Sponsor must be responsible for the costs incurred in accordance with **Schedule 6**, **Item 9 clause 1(c)**, as they relate to Primary Sponsored Person, and English language training to enable the Primary Sponsored Person to either achieve the English language level prescribed under clause 7.6 (b) or to complete a total of 500 actual hours of tuition in accredited English language training through an accredited training institution.

Item 10 Other sponsorship obligations

- 1 The Approved Sponsor must ensure that all Primary Sponsored Persons:
 - (a) are subject to integrity verification processes, including:
 - i. videotaping of the assessment undertaken; or
 - ii. where exceptional circumstances render videotaping impossible or impracticable; and a digital photograph of the Primary Sponsored Person submitted with the nomination and visa application. The Commonwealth may require the Approved Sponsor to provide evidence of the exceptional circumstances which render videotaping impossible or impracticable. Where the Commonwealth is not satisfied with the evidence the Approved Sponsor provides, the Commonwealth may impose conditions; and
 - (b) have skills and work experience as defined by Skilled Meat Worker, Schedule 3; and
 - (c) undergo induction training on arrival, which should cover specific processes, knowledge of equipment, production speed, OH&S requirements specific to the Meat Processing Establishment at which they are employed.
- 2 The Approved Sponsor must ensure that:
 - (a) for a Skilled Meat Worker who is the holder of a Subclass 457 visa and whose application for that visa was:
 - i. made and determined before 12 September 2009; or
 - ii. made on the basis that the employer was a Standard Business Sponsor;
 - (b) nominate the Skilled Meat Worker within 4 weeks of the effective date of this Agreement.
- The Approved Sponsor must ensure that the integrity of the assessment process is maintained, including through:
 - (a) verifying within two (2) days of the Primary Sponsored Person's arrival that the Primary Visa Holder is the same person assessed in **Schedule 6**, **Item 10**, **Clause 2(a)** and in the digital photograph submitted with the nomination and visa application; and notifying the Commonwealth immediately of any inconsistency;
 - (b) notifying the Commonwealth within one (1) month of the Primary Sponsored Person's arrival where a Primary Visa Holder does not meet the requirements and, if those requirements are not met, proposing remedial action to the Commonwealth;
 - (c) complying with any Commonwealth request for the Approved Sponsor to obtain at the Approved Sponsor's expense an independent audit, by an independent authority specified by the Commonwealth, such as use the services of any assessor associated with a skills assessment failure; and

- (d) reassessing any Primary Sponsored Person assessed by an assessor associated with a skills assessment failure.
- The Approved Sponsor must ensure that nominees can provide evidence of health insurance cover at time of application.
- Where a Primary Sponsored Person's English language proficiency is below the level of English language proficiency that is prescribed in clause 7.6 (b) or **Schedule 3, Item 4(1)**, the Approved Sponsor must continue to pay for accredited English language training for the Primary Sponsored Person until such time as the Primary Sponsored Person's English language proficiency is at least the level of English language proficiency that is prescribed in clause 7.6(b) or **Schedule 3, Item 4(1)**; except where:
 - (a) the Primary Sponsored Person is in Australia and holds a Subclass 457 visa, or is in Australia and the last substantive visa they held was a Subclass 457 visa, the Approved Sponsor must ensure that the Primary Sponsored Person's English language proficiency is at least the level of English language proficiency that is prescribed in clause 7.6(b) or **Schedule 3, Item 4(1)** in circumstances where sub-paragraphs 457.223(4)(eb)(i), (ii) and (iii) do not apply
- When recruiting primary sponsored persons or secondary sponsored persons, the Approved Sponsor must make all reasonable inquiries to satisfy itself that the primary sponsored person or secondary sponsored persons do not owe money as a result of being recruited.
- The Approved Sponsor must not nominate a nominee or secondary nominee who it has assessed, reasonably suspects or ought to reasonably suspect of owing money as a result of being recruited.
- The Approved Sponsor must not cause or permit a change in control of the Approved Sponsor that would reasonably be regarded as inimical to the Approved Sponsor's capacity to perform its obligations under this Agreement.

Schedule 8 Domestic Recruitment Efforts Template

Summary of domestic recruitment efforts by Ralph's Meat Company Pty Ltd

List each occupations sought under the labour agreement	ANZSCO code (order numerically from lowest to highest)	List all advertising or recruitment efforts by your organisation in the last six months for the occupation ⁴	Period of advertising or recruitment	Geographical target audience	Number of applications received	Number of applicants that were hired	Reasons that candidates were not successful	How many Australians do you currently employ in this occupation?
*								
		•						

I declare that the information I have provided in this document is true and correct and I am aware of the penalties for providing misleading or false information to the Commonwealth under section 137 of the *Criminal Code Act 1995*.

Signature:	
Name and position of authorised person:	Date
	4

⁴ One method per table cell (e.g. Seek.com advertising). Please replicate the row if multiple methods have been used. You must attach examples of your efforts to recruit for each occupation.

Signing page

ur	igned for and on behalf of the Commonwealth nder the written authority of the Minister for nmigration and Border Protection:	s22(1)(a)(ii)	
(JPı	rint name and details of the Authorised Person	Signature of the Authorised Person	on
<u></u>	s22(1)(a)(ii)	Date of signing: .	
Si	ignature of Witness		
	rint name of Witness	Date of signing: .	20 / 4 / 19 dd/mm/yyyy
P	igned for and on behalf of Ralph's Meat Company ty Ltd)	0 ¹⁰	
	BN 80 080 995 777)		
In Ac s4	a accordance with section 127 of the Corporations ct 2001 by:		
S1 s4	ignature of director/Authorised Person	Signature of Director/Secretary	
Pı	rint name and details of the Authorised Person	Print name and details of the Autl	horised Person
D	dd/mm/yyyy	Date of signing:// dd/mm/yyyy	
(i	rint name and details of the Approved Sponsor f the Approved Sponsor is not a body corporate).		
S	ignature of Witness	1.3	
s47	F		
P D	rint name of Witness Pate of signing: 5/.H./.2016		

Ralph's Meat Company Pty Ltd January 2016



Australian Government Department of Home Affairs

LABOUR AGREEMENT - MEAT INDUSTRY

Under the Migration Act 1958

Between

Commonwealth of Australia as represented by the Minister for Citizenship and Multicultural Affairs (Minister)

and

Ralph's Meat Company Pty Ltd

Table of Contents

Backgrou	und4
Operativ	e Part4
1.	Definitions4
2.	Interpretation
3.	Agreement period
4.	Pre-contractual representations
Nominatio	on of Overseas Workers
5.	Nomination requirements
6.	Visa requirements
7.	Subclass 457 Visa Applications
8.	Visa period
9.	Sponsorship obligations
10.	Reporting
11.	Review
12.	Audits of this Agreement
Miscellane	ous Provisions
13.	Notices
14.	Variation and entire agreement
15.	Suspension
16.	Termination
17.	Sanctions
18.	Relationship between the parties
19.	Assurances, counterparts and assignment
20.	Dispute resolution
21.	Confidential information and information sharing
22.	Fettering and publishing
23.	Legal expenses
24.	Survival after termination
25.	Governing law and jurisdiction
26.	Indemnity14
•	14

Schedule 1	Particulars	•
Schedule 2	Concessions relating to nomination criteria covered by this Agreement	
Schedule 3	Additional requirements for nomination	10
Schedule 4	Concessions relating to visa criteria covered by this Agreement	18
Schedule 5	Variation of sponsorship obligations	19
Schedule 6	Additional sponsorship obligations specific to this Agreement	20
Schedule 7	Information to be provided to the Department	23
Signing page		25
		26

Labour Agreement

Effective Date: Date signed by the Commonwealth being the last part to sign the Agreement.

Parties

The Commonwealth of Australia (the "Commonwealth") as represented by the Minister for Citizenship and Multicultural Affairs (the "Minister"). The Commonwealth's particulars are set out in Item 1 of Schedule 1.

AND

The party specified in Item 2 of Schedule 1 (the "Sponsor"). The Sponsor's particulars are set out in Item 2 of

Background

- This labour agreement (the "Agreement") is a "labour agreement" as defined in the Migration Regulations. A.
- This Agreement will be administered by the Department of Home Affairs ("the Department") on behalf of the B.
- C. This Agreement sets out the terms and conditions by which the Sponsor may recruit, employ or engage the services of overseas workers who are intended to be employed or engaged by the Approved Sponsor as holders of Temporary Work (Skilled) visas (Subclass 457), Temporary Skill Shortage (TSS) visas or Employer Nomination Scheme (ENS) visa (Subclass 186) in its business undertaking as described in Item 3 of Schedule 1.
- For the purposes of the subclass 457 and TSS visa programs, the Sponsor, by virtue of entering into this D. Agreement, will also be an "Approved Sponsor" as defined in the Migration Act.

Operative Part

1. **Definitions**

- Unless the context indicates a contrary intention, words and phrases in this Agreement have the same 1.1 meanings attributed to them in the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations.
- In the event of any inconsistency between this Agreement and the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations, 1.2 the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations will prevail. 1.3
- In this Agreement:

Address means a party's address set out in Schedule 1.

Adverse Information has the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Agreement means this labour agreement, any schedules, attachments and any documents incorporated into this labour agreement by reference.

this labour agreement by reference.

Annualised Salary means for the purpose of this Agreement remuneration paid to an Overseas Worker on an annualised basis from the date they commence employment, excluding periods that they are offshore on approved leave without pay.

ANZSCO means the Australian and New Zealand Standard Classification of Occupations.

Approved Sponsor has the same meaning as in the Migration Act.

AQF means the Australian Qualifications Framework.

Australian where the context so admits, means an Australian citizen (whether born in Australia or elsewhere) or a non-citizen who, being usually resident in Australia is the holder of a permanent visa granted under the Migration Act.

Base Rate of Pay has the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations. That is, it means the rate of pay payable to an employee for his or her full time ordinary hours of work, but not including any of the following:

(a) incentive-based payments and bonuses;

(b) loadings;

Freedom of Information the Ē

- (c) monetary allowances;
- (d) overtime or penalty rates:
- any other separately identifiable amounts. (e)

Ordinary hours of work is determined under the relevant state/territory or federal award.

Where there is no award, the full time ordinary hours will be 38 hours per week.

Business Day means a day on which business is generally conducted in the Australian Capital Territory, and excludes Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays.

Business Address means the physical address at which a business is located.

Confidential Information in relation to a Party, means information that is:

- by its nature capable of being protected in law or equity as confidential;
- designated by a Party as confidential in Item 5 of Schedule 1; or (b)
- in the case of the Commonwealth's Confidential Information, the Approved Sponsor knows or ought

but does not include information:

- which is or becomes public knowledge other than by breach of the Contract or any other confidentiality obligations; or
- that has been independently developed or acquired without reference to the other Party's Confidential (e)

Concessions means any variations to the requirements prescribed in the Migration Legislation in relation to the skills, qualifications, employment background, level of English Language proficiency and the Temporary Skilled Migration Income Threshold (TSMIT) required for the nomination and grant of a Subclass 457 or TSS

Damages means all liabilities, losses, damages, costs and expenses, including legal fees and disbursements and costs of investigation, litigation, settlement, judgment, interest and penalties.

Deductions Plan means a plan submitted by the Approved Sponsor to the Commonwealth, seeking approval of fair, reasonable and lawful deductions from the gross salary of Skilled Meat Workers (other than deductions required by Australian law or statute), which if approved by the Commonwealth, could be made available to the Company's Skilled Meat Workers should they freely choose to avail themselves of this opportunity to which the deductions relate.

Earnings has the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Employment period means the stay period that an Approved Sponsor requests for the Nominee in a Subclass 457 or TSS nomination application form.

Effective Date means:

- the date (if any) specified in Item 4 of Schedule 1; (a)
- if no such date is specified, the date on which this Agreement is signed by the parties, or if signed on (b) separate days, the date of the last signature.

Email Account means a party's email address set out in Schedule 1.

Full time means 38 hours or a period between 32 and 45 hours that is specified under the relevant industry award and is consistent with the National Employment Standards.

IELTS means the International English Language Testing System.

Industrial instrument means an instrument in force under a law of the Commonwealth or the State/Territory that regulates workplace relations and prescribes terms and conditions of employment between employers and employees including, but not limited to, an award or agreement made under the Commonwealth Fair Work Act 2009 (Cth) and an award or agreement made by a relevant State/Territory industrial tribunal or court.

MPE means a Meat Processing Establishment wholly or predominately concerned with any one or more of the activities of killing, dressing, boning, slicing, preparation and/or packing of fresh meat.

Migration Act means the Migration Act 1958, as amended from time to time.

Freedom of Information Act Home Department of 2 the Released ē

Information

Freedom

the

0

Migration Legislation means the Migration Act and/or the Migration Regulations and / or any instruments made under the Migration Act or the Migration Regulations as amended from time to time.

Migration Regulations means the Migration Regulations 1994 made under the Migration Act 1958, as amended from time to time.

Minister means "the Minister" for Citizenship and Multicultural Affairs, the Assistant Minister, and his or her authorised representative performing relevant functions as the Minister under the Migration Legislation.

MINTRAC means the Meat Industry National Training Advisory Council.

Nominate means to lodge a nomination for a Subclass 457, TSS or Subclass 186 visa under Migration

Nomination means a nomination referred to in section 140GB of the Migration Act.

Nomination Ceiling means the number of nominations that an Approved Sponsor can have approved for a specified Occupation as defined in Schedule 2.

Nominee means the Overseas Worker specified in a nomination.

Occupations means those occupations prescribed in Schedule 2.

On-hire¹ means a person's business activities which include activities relating to either or both of:

- the recruitment of labour for supply to another business; and
- (b) the hiring of labour to another business;
- the reference to 'another business' in paragraph (a) and (b) above, includes any other business that is (c) related to a person's business.

Overseas Worker means the holder of, or an applicant or proposed applicant for, a Subclass 457, TSS or Subclass 186 visa, whether onshore or offshore.

Postal Address means the address to which mail is delivered.

Relevant Industrial Instrument means an industrial instrument that applies to a Primary Sponsored Person and regulates the terms and conditions of employment of that Primary Sponsored Person.

Secondary Sponsored Person takes the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Stand-down means "the employer has the right to deduct payment for any period on which an employee cannot be usefully employed, because of any industrial action (other than industrial action organised or engaged in by the employer), or through any breakdown of machinery if the employer cannot reasonably be held responsible for the breakdown or any stoppage of work for any cause for which the employer cannot reasonably be held responsible, or for any period which an employee cannot be usefully employed because of any industrial action in the meat industry".

Sponsor means the party to this Agreement specified in Item 2 of Schedule 1.

Standard Business Sponsor has the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Standard Skilled visa program requirements refers to the legislative requirements that must be met for the Subclass 457 or the TSS visa program (once introduced in March 2018) if the sponsor is a standard business. sponsor, or under the Subclass 186 visa program if applying for permanent residence. Home

Subclass 186 visa means an Employer Nomination Scheme (ENS) visa (Subclass 186).

Subclass 457 visa means a Temporary Work (Skilled) visa (Subclass 457).

TSS visa means the Temporary Skill Shortage (TSS) visa.

Terms and Conditions of Employment takes the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

The Department means the Department of Home Affairs.

Department of Top Up means an additional salary amount paid to an Overseas Workers to ensure that requirements under this Agreement are met as prescribed under clause 2, Item 2 of Schedule 6.

An example of On-hire is where a person proposes to sponsor someone to come to Australia for the purpose of hiring out the visa holder's service to client organisations, rather than to work directly in the person's business. Re

TSMIT means the Temporary Skilled Migration Income Threshold, as amended from time to time, specified in an instrument made under the Migration Regulations.

TSMIT Fortnightly Rate means the (annual salary x 12) divided by 313.

TSMIT Hourly Rate means the TSMIT Weekly Rate divided by 38.

TSMIT Weekly Rate means the (annual salary x 6) divided by 313.

Workforce means the total number of Australian workers and temporary visa holders engaged by the Approved Sponsor (including as contractors).

Workplace Law means the Fair Work Act 2009, and relevant laws of the Commonwealth and of the relevant State or Territory relating to equal employment opportunity, unlawful discrimination and workplace health and safety legislation regulating the employment by the Approved Sponsor of its Primary Sponsored

Workforce Plan means a report that outlines the current, and where requested, projected future composition of an Approved Sponsor's workforce. It should include details of the total number of Australian workers (including permanent residents) and temporary visa holders engaged by the Approved Sponsor.

Year means the period of 12 months commencing on the day this Agreement commences, or a period of 12 months commencing on an anniversary of that day.

2. Interpretation

(corresponding meanings) a word that is derived from a defined word has a corresponding meaning.

(headings) clause headings, the table of contents and footnotes are inserted for convenience only and do not affect interpretation of this Agreement.

(references) a reference to a party, clause, paragraph or schedule is a reference to a party, clause, paragraph or schedule to, or of this Agreement.

(requirements) a requirement to do anything includes a requirement to cause that thing to be done, and a requirement not to do anything includes a requirement to prevent that thing being done.

(including) including and includes are not words of limitation, and a list of examples is not limited to those items or to items of a similar kind.

(rules of construction) neither this Agreement nor any part of it is to be construed against a party on the basis that the party or its lawyers were responsible for its drafting.

(singular and gender) the singular includes the plural and vice-versa, and words importing one gender include all other genders.

(legislation) a reference to any legislation or provision of legislation includes all amendments, consolidations or replacements and all regulations, directions or instruments issued under it.

(day) unless stated otherwise a reference to a day is a reference to a calendar day.

(day) unless stated otherwise a reference to a day is a reference to a calendar day.

(month) a reference to a month is a reference to a calendar month.

(person) a reference to a person includes an individual, a body corporate, statutory corporation, partnership, body politic and permitted assigns, as the context requires. body politic and permitted assigns, as the context requires.

(writing) a reference to a notice, consent, request, approval or other communication under this Agreement or an agreement between the parties means a written notice, request, consent, approval or agreement.

3. Agreement period

- 3.1 This Agreement commences from the Effective Date as specified in Item 4 of Schedule 1.
- Unless terminated earlier in accordance with clause 16 of this Agreement, the period of this Agreement will 3.2 be the time specified in Item 4 of Schedule 1.

Pre-contractual representations 4.

The Sponsor warrants that information supplied to the Commonwealth with respect to the Sponsor being a 4.1 and proper person to enter into this Agreement and upon which the Commonwealth relied, was true and

Nomination of Overseas Workers

5. Nomination requirements

- 5.1 The Sponsor may only nominate an Overseas Worker for:
 - (a) visas outlined in Schedule 2;
 - (b) Occupations outlined in Schedule 2;
 - (c) up to the Nomination Ceiling specified in Schedule 2; and
 - (d) an Occupation to be performed in a location listed in Schedule 2.
- 5.2 The Sponsor acknowledges that the Minister may, in his/her absolute discretion, vary the:
 - (a) Nomination Ceilings up or down;
 - (b) Concessions; or
 - (c) Occupations.
- 5.3 If the Sponsor wishes to increase the Nomination Ceilings in any year during the period of this Agreement as set out in Schedule 2 to this Agreement, they must provide the Department with the information detailed in variations to the existing agreement.
- 5.4 The Sponsor acknowledges that there is no guarantee that additional Nominations and increases in the Nomination ceilings will be agreed to and that the Commonwealth reserves the right to make the final decision as to the Nomination Ceiling for each year of the Agreement.
- 5.5 Before they nominate a Nominee under this Agreement, the Sponsor must take all reasonable steps to ensure that:
 - (a) it recruits suitably skilled Australians who are available; and
 - (b) the Overseas Worker will be able to meet any revised visa requirements outlined at Schedule 4.
- 5.6 The Sponsor will aim to ensure that:
 - (a) in any one Year period overseas workers do not comprise more than a third of their Workforce;
 - (b) their reliance on overseas workers decreases during the life of this Agreement; and
 - (c) their reliance on temporary visas decreases where existing temporary visa holders have successfully transitioned to permanent residence under this Agreement.
- 5.7 In addition to Subclass 457 nomination requirements outlined in the Migration Regulations, the Sponsor must demonstrate, through written evidence, when lodging a Subclass 457 nomination prior to the introduction of the TSS visa, that the Nominee will be:
 - (a) engaged full time;
 - (b) paid a Base Rate of Pay that is equal to or greater than the TSMIT, unless varied in Schedule 2; and
 - (c) receive Terms and Conditions of Employment which are no less favourable than the terms or conditions of employment that are, or would be provided, to an Australian performing equivalent work in the Approved Sponsor's workplace at the same location.
- 5.8 In addition to TSS or Subclass 186 nomination requirements outlined in the Migration Regulations, the Sponsor must demonstrate, through written evidence, when lodging a TSS or Subclass 186 nomination that the Standard skilled visa requirements as outlined in the Migration Regulations in relation to the TSMIT, Earnings and/or working hours, are met unless varied in Schedule 2.
- 5.9 The Sponsor must comply with any additional requirements for nomination that are stipulated by the Minister in Schedule 3.

6. Visa requirements

6.1 The Sponsor acknowledges that as part of the visa application process, the Nominee will need to meet the criteria for grant of a visa as outlined in the Migration Regulations.

- 6.2 This may include:
 - requirements that the Nominee has the sufficient skills, experience and English proficiency to perform the nominated occupation, and demonstrated this where requested by the Department; and
 - if applying for permanent residence, any age requirements.
- In most cases, these requirements mirror Standard skilled visa program requirements 6.3
- Where variations to regulatory or policy requirements apply for visa applicants who are being sponsored 6.4 under this Agreement, because the Minister has agreed to certain Concessions, these are specified in

Subclass 457 Visa Applications 7.

- 7.1 No new Subclass 457 visa applications will be able to be lodged from March 2018 onwards, when the
- Subclass 457 visas already granted will remain in effect. 7.2
- Subclass 457 visa applications lodged prior to the introduction of the TSS will continue to be processed 7.3 under the existing Subclass 457 regulatory framework.

8. Visa period

TSS visa

The Sponsor acknowledges that when nominating an Overseas Worker for a TSS visa, the Sponsor will 8.1 select a proposed employment period of up to a maximum of four (4) years. If approved, the TSS visa for the Nominee will be granted for the requested period, unless a different or more restricted period is specified in

Subclass 457 visa

- The visa period for Subclass 457 visas granted under this Agreement is as follows: 8.2
 - For Subclass 457 visa holders who are Primary Sponsored Persons

Pursuant to the Migration Regulations, the period specified for a Subclass 457 visa granted to the Primary Sponsored Person is a period of four (4) years from the date of grant of the Subclass 457 visa.

For Subclass 457 visa holders who are Secondary Sponsored Persons (other than subsequent (b)

Pursuant to the Migration Regulations, the period specified for a Subclass 457 visa granted to a person

- made a combined application with a person who satisfied the primary criteria; and (i)
- satisfied the secondary criteria on the basis of being a member of the family unit of the person who satisfied the primary criteria; (ii)

is a period of four (4) years from the date of grant of the Subclass 457 visa.

For subsequent entrants who satisfied the secondary criteria (c)

For subsequent entrants who satisfied the secondary criteria

Pursuant to the Migration Regulations, the period specified for a Subclass 457 visa granted to a person who:

- did not make a combined application with a person who satisfied the primary criteria; and (i)
- satisfied the secondary criteria on the basis of being a member of the family unit of the person who satisfied the primary criteria;

is the remainder of the visa period of the Subclass 457 visa held by the person who satisfied the primary criteria.

Subclass 186 visa

A permanent visa will be granted if all legislative requirements are met. 8.3

982 Act Aff Information 5 Department Of Freedom þ the Released ē

9. Sponsorship obligations

- 9.1 In relation to any subclass 457 and TSS visa holders, as an Approved Sponsor, the Sponsor must satisfy:
 - (a) it's sponsorship obligations in the Migration Regulations, including where varied (if at all), as outlined in Schedule 5;
 - (b) any additional obligations imposed in accordance with subsection 140H(3) of the Migration Act specified in Schedule 6.
- 9.2 The Sponsor must comply with Workplace Law, and immigration laws regulating employment of the Sponsor's sponsored Overseas Workers.

10. Reporting

10.1 The Sponsor must provide a report to the Department within 30 days following a request by the Minister. This report must include the items outlined at **Schedule 7** to this Agreement.

11. Review

11.1 This Agreement will be reviewed after three years and/or on an annual basis where additional Nominations increasing the Nomination Ceilings are sought by the Sponsor.

12. Audits of this Agreement

- 12.1 The Minister may, from time to time, audit the Sponsor's performance of its obligations under this Agreement and the Sponsor will cooperate with the Minister for the purpose of such audits.
- 12.2 Without limiting the generality of the preceding clause, the Sponsor will:
 - (a) liaise with and provide information and assistance to the Minister as reasonably required by the Minister for the purposes of such audits;
 - (b) comply with the Minister's reasonable requests or requirements for the purposes of such audits.
- 12.3 Unless specified otherwise in the Migration Legislation, the Sponsor will retain all records generated for the purposes of this Agreement for seven (7) years from the date of expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Miscellaneous Provisions

13. Notices

- 13.1 Any notice, demand, consent or other communication given or made under this Agreement:
 - (a) must be clearly readable;
 - (b) must, unless it is sent by email, be signed by the party giving or making it (or signed on behalf of that party by its authorised representative);
 - (c) must, unless it is sent by email, be left at the Address or sent by pre-paid security post (air mail if outside Australia) to the Business Address of the recipient; and
 - (d) may be sent by email to the receiving party's Email Account.
- 13.2 A notice to be served on the Commonwealth will be taken to be served if it is served on the Department's address in Item 1 of Schedule 1.
- 13.3 A party may change its Business Address, Postal Address or Email Account for the purpose of service by giving notice of that change to the other party in accordance with clause 13.1.
- 13.4 Any communication will be taken to be received by the recipient:
 - in the case of a letter, on the third (seventh, if sent outside the country in which the letter is posted)
 Business Day after the date of posting;
 - (b) in the case of an email, at the end of the day in which the email is transmitted.

Released by Department of Home Affairs

14. Variation and entire agreement

- 14.1 The contents of this Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the parties and supersede any prior negotiations, representations, understandings or arrangements made between the parties regarding the subject matter of this Agreement, whether orally or in writing.
- 14.2 Unless otherwise specified in this Deed, a provision of this Agreement can only be varied by a written document executed by or on behalf of all parties.

15. Suspension

- 15.1 The Minister may, in his/her absolute discretion, suspend this Agreement, in whole or in part, including in situations where Adverse Information regarding the Sponsor has been received, is being investigated and is not considered reasonable to disregard.
- 15.2 The Sponsor and other third parties are not entitled to any compensation or payments as a result of the Minister suspending this Agreement under clause 15.1.
- 15.3 Where the Minister suspends this Agreement in accordance with clause 15.1 the Minister will notify the Sponsor in writing.
- 15.4 For the avoidance of doubt, where the Minister notifies that this Agreement has been suspended in accordance with clause 15.3, the suspension shall take effect at the time the notice is taken to be received by the Sponsor, in accordance with clause 13.
- 15.5 Where the Minister suspends this Agreement in accordance with clause 15.1, the Minister may, in determining the order for considering and disposing of nomination applications and visa applications, give the lowest priority to applications made under this Agreement.
- 15.6 After a period of suspension, the Minister may, at his/her absolute discretion, choose to resume this Agreement by notifying the Sponsor in writing.
- 15.7 Where the Minister chooses to resume this Agreement in accordance with clause 15.6 and notifies the Sponsor, the Agreement will resume at the time the notice is taken to be received, in accordance with clause 13.
- 15.8 For the avoidance of doubt, any period of suspension will have no impact on and will not amend the period of this Agreement. The period of this Agreement will remain as specified in **Item 4** of **Schedule 1**.

16. Termination

- 16.1 The Minister may, in his/her absolute discretion, terminate this Agreement at any time including for reasons of public interest where:
 - (a) there is a change in policy or a change in government which results in a change in policy settings; or
 - (b) Adverse Information has been received by the Department regarding the Sponsor and it is not considered reasonable to disregard.
- 16.2 The Sponsor will not be entitled to any compensation or payments as a result of the Minister terminating this Agreement under clause 16.1.
- 16.3 Otherwise, if the Minister contends that the Sponsor is in default under this Agreement, the Minister may without prejudice to any right of action or remedy which has accrued or which may accrue (including the Minister's entitlement to terminate in accordance with clause 16.1):
 - (a) suspend this Agreement in whole or in part; and
 - (b) serve notice on the Sponsor, advising that this Agreement is suspended and requiring the Sponsor to rectify to the satisfaction of the Minister, those aspects of the Sponsor's performance which are of concern to the Commonwealth; or
 - (c) terminate this Agreement without prejudice to any right of action or remedy which has accrued or which may accrue.
- 16.4 If as an Approved Sponsor, the Sponsor is in breach of a sponsorship obligations under the Migration Legislation, the Sponsor will be taken to be in default under this Agreement as if the statutory obligation was a contractual obligation of the Sponsor.

- 16.5 For the avoidance of doubt, a breach of the Sponsor's warranty given in clause 4.1 with respect to precontractual information, will entitle the Minister to suspend this Agreement and serve a notice under clause 16.3 and/or to take any other contractual redress in accordance with this Agreement.
- 16.6 A party may, in its discretion, terminate this Agreement early by giving 28 days' notice to the other party, whereupon this Agreement will be terminated with effect 28 days after the notice of termination is served. A party serving a notice of termination under this sub-clause:
 - (a) need not specify a reason for serving the notice;
 - (b) may withdraw the notice before the 28 days have elapsed; and
 - (c) will not be liable to compensate the other party for costs or damages that may arise from the early termination.
- 16.7 For the avoidance of doubt if this Agreement is terminated for any reason, or for no reason:
 - (a) the Sponsor will no longer be an Approved Sponsor under Migration Legislation and their approval as a sponsor for the purposes of this Agreement will be automatically terminated; and
 - (b) visas granted pursuant to this Agreement will be subject to the operation of the Migration Legislation.
- 16.8 A waiver by a party in respect of any breach of a condition or provision of this Agreement will not be deemed to be a waiver in respect of any continuing or subsequent breach of that provision, or breach of any no way be interpreted as a waiver of such provision.

17. Sanctions

- 17.1 Instead of terminating this Agreement:
 - (a) the Commonwealth may, in its discretion, prevent or 'bar' the Sponsor from making further nominations under this Agreement for a specified period, or
 - (b) the Minister may, in his or her absolute discretion, give the lowest processing priority to nomination applications and visa applications made under this Agreement.
- 17.2 The Commonwealth may, in its discretion, instead of terminating this Agreement or in addition to terminating this Agreement, take action against the Sponsor for a breach of contract to recover damages and/or for injunctive relief.
- 17.3 The Commonwealth may, in its discretion, instead of taking any enforcement action under this Agreement or in addition to taking such enforcement action, pursue a civil penalty or issue an infringement notice under the Migration Legislation for failing to satisfy a sponsorship obligation.

18. Relationship between the parties

- 18.1 Nothing in this Agreement:
 - (a) constitutes a partnership between the parties; or
 - (b) except as expressly provided, makes a party an agent of another party for any purpose.
- 18.2 A party cannot in any way or for any purpose:
 - (a) bind another party; or
 - (b) contract in the name of another party.
- 18.3 If a party must fulfil an obligation and that party is dependent on another party, then that other party must each thing reasonably within its power to assist the other in the performance of that obligation.
- 18.4 If the Sponsor is constituted by more than one legal entity (such as a partnership or an unincorporated association), each of those legal entities will be jointly and severally liable for performance under this Agreement.

19. Assurances, counterparts and assignment

- 19.1 Each party must promptly execute all documents and do all other things reasonably necessary or desirable give effect to the arrangements recorded in this Agreement.
- 19.2 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts.

19.3 A party cannot assign or otherwise transfer its rights under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party.

20. Dispute resolution

- 20.1 The Parties will deal with any dispute arising during the course of this Agreement as follows:
 - (a) the party claiming that there is a dispute must notify the other party of the dispute;
 - (b) the parties will use reasonable endeavours to resolve the dispute by direct negotiation;
 - (c) the parties must allow 28 days from notification of the dispute to reach a resolution or to agree to refer the dispute to mediation in accordance with, and subject to, The Institute of Arbitrators and Mediators Australia Mediation Rules or some other form of alternative dispute resolution procedure agreed to in writing by the Parties; and
 - (d) in the event that:
 - (i) the Parties have attended mediation, or some other form of alternative dispute resolution procedure; and
 - (ii) no written settlement agreement is executed within 15 Business Days (or such extended time as the Parties may agree in writing before the expiration of the 15 Business days) of the conclusion of the mediation or some other form of alternative dispute resolution procedure

then either Party may commence legal proceedings or terminate this Agreement.

20.2 The Parties acknowledge that the Migration Review Tribunal and Administrative Appeals Tribunal may have jurisdiction to review decisions in relation to nomination applications and visa applications. This Agreement does not abrogate any rights of a merits review by the Migration Review Tribunal or the Administrative Appeals Tribunal.

21. Confidential information and information sharing

- 21.1 If a party's information is specified as Confidential Information in **Item 5** of **Schedule 1**, the other party will not disclose the information without the first party's prior written consent, except when disclosure of the information is required by law, statutory or portfolio duties.
- 21.2 The Sponsor consents to information concerning it which is relevant to the operation of this Agreement being shared by the Minister with:
 - (a) State or Territory government agencies in the State or Territory in which the Sponsor conducts business, where those agencies have regulatory or other relevant interests in the operation of this Agreement;
 - (b) Commonwealth agencies with regulatory or other relevant interests in the operation of this Agreement, including the Department of Jobs and Small Business.
- 21.3 The Sponsor will allow the disclosure of information related to this Agreement for various reporting and Commonwealth disclosure obligations. These disclosures include:
 - (a) disclosure of procurement information for the Department's annual reporting purposes;
 - (b) disclosure to the Parliament and its committees, as appropriate, in line with the Government Guidelines for Official Witnesses before Parliamentary Committees and Related Matters;
 - (c) disclosure of information consistent with the Freedom of Information Act 1982;
 - (d) disclosure of discoverable information that is relevant to a case before a court; and
 - (e) disclosure of information as required under other legislation or Commonwealth policy.
- 21.4 The Sponsor acknowledges that the Department will publish information on its website regarding this Agreement, with more sensitive business information contained in labour agreement requests and agreements, as specified at Item 5 of Schedule 1 to remain confidential.
- 21.5 The Sponsor must comply with any reasonable request by the Commonwealth for information to enable the Commonwealth to meet its obligations in this Agreement.
- 21.6 Clause 21.3 survives the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

22. Fettering and publishing

- 22.1 Nothing in this Agreement fetters or detracts from the Commonwealth's discretions, functions or powers under the Migration Legislation, Workplace Law or other relevant Commonwealth laws.
- 22.2 In the event the Commonwealth has published an outline of this Agreement, the published outline is an invitation to treat with prospective sponsors and is not an offer to enter into contractual relations with any such sponsor on the basis of the published outline.
- 22.3 The Commonwealth may grant or refuse to grant consent, in its absolute discretion, to any application by the Sponsor for consent to a change in control of the Sponsor that may be inimical to the Sponsor's performance under this Agreement, and the Commonwealth may attach such conditions on a consent as the Commonwealth sees fit.

23. Legal expenses

- 23.1 Each party must pay its own legal costs and disbursements in connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution and carrying into effect of this Agreement.
- 23.2 The Sponsor must pay any stamp duty assessed on or in relation to this Agreement and any instrument or transaction required by or necessary to give effect to this Agreement.

24. Survival after termination

24.1 Any provision of this Agreement which expressly or by implication from its nature is intended to survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement and any rights arising on termination or expiration will survive, including Confidential Information, and any sponsorship obligations as an Approved Sponsor.

25. Governing law and jurisdiction

- 25.1 The laws applicable in the Australian Capital Territory govern this Agreement.
- 25.2 The parties submit to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Australian Capital Territory and any courts competent to hear appeals from those courts.

26. Indemnity

- 26.1 The Sponsor agrees to indemnify the Minister from and against any:
 - (a) cost or liability incurred by the Minister; or
 - (b) loss or expense incurred by the Minister in dealing with any claim against it including legal costs and expenses on a solicitor/own client basis and the cost of time spent, resources used or disbursements—paid by the Minister,

arising from:

- (c) any act or omission by the Sponsor or its Personnel in connection with this Agreement; or
- (d) any breach of its Sponsorship obligations as an Approved Sponsor or warranties under this Agreement; irrespective of whether there was fault on the part of the person whose conduct gave rise to that liability, or damage, or loss or expense.
- 26.2 The Sponsor's liability to indemnify the Minister under clause 26.1 will be reduced proportionately to the extent that any breach of this Agreement by the Minister or any act or omission involving fault on the part of the Minister contributed to the relevant cost, liability, loss, damage, or expense.
- 26.3 The right of the Minister to be indemnified under clause 26.1 is in addition to, and not exclusive of, any other right, power or remedy provided by law, but the Minister is not entitled to be compensated in excess of the amount of the relevant cost, liability, loss, damage, or expense.
- 26.4 In clause 26.1:
 - (a) "the Minister" includes officers, employees and agents of the Minister; and
 - (b) "Personnel" means a party's officers, employees, agents, contract staff or professional advisers engaged in, or in relation to, the performance or management of this Agreement;
- 26.5 Clause 26.1 will survive six (6) years from the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

982

Schedule 1

Particulars

Item 1

Commonwealth Particulars

Name:

Department of Home Affairs

Address:

6 Chan Street, BELCONNEN ACT 2617

Telephone Number:

Email Address:

Contact officer:

Director, Economic and Skilled Visa Program Branch

Item 2

The Sponsor's Particulars

Name:

Ralph's Meat Company Pty Ltd

ACN

ABN:

80 080 995 777

Business Structure:

Australian Private Company

Business Address:

Granville Drive, Seymour VIC 3660

Postal Address:

PO Box 284 Seymour VIC 3660

Telephone Number:

Email Address:

Contact Officer:

The Sponsor's Business

Industry segment:

Meat Industry

Item 4

Item 3

Commencement and period

Effective Date:

The date signed by the Commonwealth being the last party to sign

the Agreement 15 January 2015

Cease Date:

14 January 2020

Item 5

Commercial-in-Confidence Information

The company specific information (i.e. non-template text) contained

in the Schedules to this Agreement.

All information provided to request and secure access to this

Agreement.

Freedom of Information Act 1982 Released by Department of Home Affairs the ē

Concessions relating to nomination criteria covered by this Agreement Schedule 2

Item 1 Occupations, Nomination Ceiling and Location

The table below outlines the occupations that can be utilised under this Agreement for the visa programs specified. It also specifies the nomination ceilings per year for these Occupations, and where the nominated positions should be based (i.e. location of work).

Subclass 457 and/or TSS nomination ceilings

Occupation		Nominat					
Occupation Code		Year i	Year 2	Year 5	Location of work		
Skilled Meat Worker	070499	s47					

Subclass 186 nomination ceilings

Occupation	Code		Nominat						
		Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5					Location of work		
Skilled Meat Worker	070499	s47			,	,			

Note:

- The Minister may vary the ceiling number and Occupations at any time, with ceiling numbers subject to annual review.
- If the Sponsor wishes to increase the ceilings specified above, they must seek a variation to this Agreement as outlined at clause 5.3 to this Agreement.

Item 2 Concession to Occupation Tasks

A Skilled Meat Work (Code: 070499) for the purposes of this agreement is responsible for undertaking the following tasks, which include the duties of the ANZSCO occupations Slaughterer and Meat Boner and Slicer:

- stuns and kills livestock
- prepares carcasses for further processing by removing internal organs and hides;
- operates switching controls to direct and drop carcasses and meat cuts from supply rails to boning

 operates switching controls to direct and drop carcasses and meat cuts from supply rails to boning tables;
 cuts meat to separate meat, fat and tissue from around bones;
 washes, scrapes and trims foreign material and blood from meat;
 cuts sides and quarters of meat into standard meat cuts, such as rumps, flanks and shoulders, and removing internal fat, blood clots, bruises and other matter to prepare them for packing and marketing;
 operates restrainer and stunning equipment;
 severs jugular veins of stunned animals to drain blood and facilitate dressing;
 trims and removes head meat and severs animal heads;
 slits open, eviscerates and trims animal carcasses; and
 may slaughter livestock according to procedures required by religious customs.

Important: A skilled meat worker employed under this Agreement may not undertake labouring, or unskilled duties, other than to the extent of circumstances prescribed above or where relevant in the context of the duties, other than to the extent of circumstances prescribed above or where relevant in the context of the circumstances outlined in Item 8 of Schedule 5 to this Agreement. This Agreement does not allow Overseas Workers to be placed in unskilled labouring positions.

Information Act 1982 eedom of 2 the Released ē

Item 3 Concessions regarding salary requirements

Subclass 457

Payments that can be considered for the purpose of meeting the TSMIT include any payments that are provided for under the Relevant Industrial Instrument, or the Migration Regulations, excluding bonus payments and payments for all time worked outside the ordinary working hours (including overtime and shifts) on any day.

Payments of worker's compensation benefits to Primary Sponsored Person as compensation for loss of ordinary earnings and payments that are based on activity levels can also be considered for the purpose of meeting the TSMIT.

TSS and Subclass 186 visas

In addition to meeting Standard skilled visa requirements, the Sponsor must:

- (a) employ Overseas Workers in full-time positions only;
- (b) ensure that if the Overseas Worker is paid via an Annualised Salary that they receive a Top-Up if, over an annual period, an Australian worker performing equivalent work in the Sponsor's workplace at the same location under different salary arrangements receives a higher amount.

Schedule 3 Additional requirements for nomination

Item 1 Labour market testing arrangements

Subclass 457 and TSS visas

Evidence of labour market testing must accompany nominations lodged in accordance with this Agreement. The evidence provided should be equivalent to that required under Standard skilled visa program requirements.

Item 2 Local workforce requirements

Subclass 457 and TSS visas

Unless otherwise agreed by both Parties, the Sponsor must provide a statement, in writing, together with any nomination application lodged, which indicates that at the MPE approved under this Agreement, within a period of three months prior to the date of the application, they have not done any of the following:

- permanently terminated the employment of more than five percent of its Australian workforce (except in circumstances of demonstrated misconduct or unlawful conduct);
- stood down its Australian workforce for more than seven consecutive days at any single given time; or
- reduced the shifts of its Australian workforce to less than 50 per cent of the regular shift quota and/or to parttime hours unless requested by the Australian employees.

Item 3 **Direct Employment**

All visas

The Sponsor must only make a nomination application in respect of a nominee that would work directly for them at an MPE.

Item 4 Time period required to hold temporary skilled visa

Subclass 186 visa

The Sponsor may only nominate an Overseas Worker for a Subclass 186 visa who has been employed:

- directly for them as a Primary Subclass 457 or TSS visa holder in the nominated occupation, for at least three (3) years before the nomination is made; or
- three (3) years before the nomination is made, or if they held a Subclass 457 visa before 18 March 2018, as a primary Subclass 457 or TSS visa holder in the subclass 457 or T

Item 5 Digital image required

All visas

The Sponsor must attach a digital photograph of the applicant to the nomination application in ImmiAccount

by Department of Home Freedom the Released Ē

Schedule 4 Concessions relating to visa criteria covered by this Agreement

Item 1 Qualifications and Experience

Overseas Workers nominated under this agreement must:

- (a) have been assessed and verified by a MINTRAC registered assessor, or an assessor approved by the Commonwealth, with a Certificate IV in Training and Assessment experienced in meat processing, to be Skilled Meat Workers with a minimum skill level commensurate with the MINTRAC referenced AQF Certificate III in meat processing; and
- (b) either:
 - (i) demonstrate a minimum of three years skilled work experience obtained at an MPE acceptable to the Parties; or
 - (ii) have been working in Australia on a Subclass 457 or TSS visa at an Australian MPE acceptable to the Parties for at least nine months prior to being nominated.

Item 2 English Language

Subclass 457 and TSS visas

Overseas Workers nominated under this Agreement, who are unable to meet Standard skilled visa program requirements, can be considered to have sufficient English to perform the nominated occupation if:

 they demonstrate an International English Language Testing System (IELTS) overall test score of at least 5.0 with no minimum test score;

01

 was not required to provide evidence of English language proficiency at the time of the grant of their most recent subclass 457 visa under previous meat industry labour agreements.

Subclass 186 visa

Overseas Workers nominated under this Agreement, who are unable to meet Standard skilled visa program requirements, can be considered to have sufficient English to perform the nominated occupation if:

 they demonstrate an International English Language Testing System (IELTS) overall test score of at least 5.0 with no minimum test score;

or

- are a current Subclass 457 visa holder who was not required to provide evidence of English language proficiency at the time of grant of their Subclass 457 visa; and
- provides evidence as prescribed in the Migration Regulations for meeting functional English.

Item 3 Age

The Sponsor may only nominate an Overseas Worker for a Subclass 186 visa who is under 50 years of at the time of nomination and visa application lodgement.

Schedule 5 Variation of sponsorship obligations

Item 1 Obligation to cooperate with inspectors

The obligation in regulation 2.78 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 2 Obligation to ensure equivalent terms and conditions of employment

Subclass 457 visa holders

The obligation in regulation 2.79 of the Migration Regulations applies and, in accordance with subsection 140H(2) of the Migration Act, is varied in the following way:

- 1. The Primary Sponsored Person will be paid no less than the TSMIT over an Annual Salary period.
- 2. Payments that can be considered for the purpose of meeting the TSMIT include:
 - (i) any payments that are provided for under the Relevant Industrial Instrument, or the Migration Regulations, **excluding** bonus payments and payments for all time worked outside the ordinary working hours (including overtime and shifts) on any day;
 - (ii) payments of worker's compensation benefits to Primary Sponsored Person as compensation for loss of ordinary earnings and payments that are based on activity levels can also be considered for the purpose of meeting the TSMIT.
- 3. Where a Primary Sponsored Person is not provided with work for a period of time, whether because of a Stand Down, insufficient work or any other reason, the Approved Sponsor must pay the Primary Sponsored Person as follows:
 - (i) if the Primary Sponsored Person is not provided with work for any period within a fortnight, and the Primary Sponsored Person does not earn an amount equal to one-half (50%) of the fortnightly TSMIT amount, then the Approved Sponsor must pay to the Primary Sponsored Person the difference between the amount actually earned and one-half (50%) of the fortnightly TSMIT amount;
 - (ii) if the Primary Sponsored Person is not provided with work for a period greater than a fortnight, then the Approved Sponsor must pay to the Primary Sponsored Person an amount equal to one-half (50%) of the fortnightly TSMIT amount for the length of the Stand Down and to pay any shortfall of TSMIT calculated over an Annual Salary period ('Top up');
 - (iii) A Top up payment will generally be made on an annual basis. However, where Primary Sponsored Person not being provided with work has resulted in the payment to a Primary Sponsored Person of less than the pro-rata TSMIT in three consecutive months, then the Commonwealth reserves the right to request that the Sponsor pay the Top up for that three month period at any time, and any balance owing for the period of time for which the Primary Sponsored Person was not provided with work, calculated over an Annual Salary period, at a later date as determined by the Commonwealth.
- 4. The Approved Sponsor must meet all their obligations under the Relevant Industrial Instrument applicable Workplace law.

TSS visa holders

The obligation in regulation 2.79 of the Migration Regulations applies and is varied to include the following additional obligations.

The Approved Sponsor must:

- (a) employ the Primary Sponsored Person on a full time basis;
- (b) only deduct payments from the Primary Sponsored Person's salary with the consent and written permission of the Primary Sponsored Person;

- (c) pay the Primary Sponsored Person a Top-Up if an equivalent Australian is paid more than the Primary Sponsored Person in any twelve month period for equivalent work:
 - (i) this amount should equal the difference between the amount paid to the equivalent Australian and the amount paid to the Primary Sponsored Person for the twelve month period; and
 - (ii) this amount is to be paid to the Primary Sponsored Person in the month following the twelve month period.

Item 3 Obligation to pay travel costs to enable sponsored persons to leave Australia

The obligation in regulation 2.80 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 4 Obligation to pay costs incurred by the Commonwealth to locate and remove unlawful non-citizens

The obligation in regulation 2.81 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 5 Obligation to keep records

The obligation in regulation 2.82 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 6 Obligation to provide records and information to the Minister

The obligation in regulation 2.83 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 7 Obligation to provide information to Immigration when certain events occur

The obligation in regulation 2.84 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 8 Obligation to ensure Primary Sponsored Person works or participates in nominated occupation, program or activity

The obligation in regulation 2.86 of the Migration Regulations applies and is varied in accordance with the following provisions.

The Approved Sponsor must ensure that the Primary Sponsored Persons are Skilled Meat Workers and that they will only be employed in the nominated occupations. Other duties can, however, be undertaken where an Overseas Worker:

- (a) is required to undertake other suitable duties pursuant to the requirements of applicable Workers Compensation laws; or
- (b) has been placed on restricted duties for a maximum period of a week (unless the Department has been notified and a longer period is agreed to) for bona fide OH&S reasons consistent with existing medical opinion.

Item 9 Obligation not to recover, transfer or take actions that would result in another person paying for certain costs

The obligation in regulation 2.87 of the Migration Regulations applies and is varied to include the following additional obligations.

- 1. The Approved Sponsor cannot recover costs including but not limited to;
 - (a) the Approved Sponsor's recruitment costs; and
 - (b) English language testing and/or training for Primary Sponsored Person.

Released by Department of Honastion under the Freedom of Information

- 2. Where the Approved Sponsor provides accommodation and/or board:
 - (a) it must not be compulsory for the Primary Sponsored Person to accept the accommodation and/or board;
 - (b) it can only be charged at a fair and reasonable market rate; and
 - (c) charges for accommodation and/or board must satisfy the Commonwealth as being fair and reasonable and meet workplace laws.
- 3. The Approved Sponsor must only permit the Skilled Meat Workers to authorise the Approved Sponsor to make deductions from their gross salary where those authorised deductions are consistent with the Deductions Plan approved by the Commonwealth for that Approved Sponsor and is consistent with relevant State/Territory legislation and workplace laws.

0

Additional sponsorship obligations specific to this Agreement Schedule 6

The additional obligations listed below are applicable and commence when the Primary Sponsored Person commences his or her employment or engagement with the Approved Sponsor, and ends on the earlier of the day on which the Primary Sponsored Person:

- is granted a further substantive visa that is: (a)
 - not a Subclass 457 or TSS visa; and (i)
 - (ii) in effect: and
- ceases employment or engagement with the Approved Sponsor. (b)

Item 1 Obligations not to recruit where money owed

The Approved Sponsor must not nominate primary sponsored persons or secondary sponsored persons who it has assessed, reasonably suspects or ought reasonably suspect of owing money as a result of being recruited.

Item 2 Obligations to pay salary directly

An Approved Sponsor must pay the nominee directly, including taxes and superannuation. These payments must be made from the organisation's Australian bank account.

Item 3 Obligations regarding salary deductions

An Approved Sponsor may not deduct an amount from an amount payable to a primary sponsored person unless the deduction is authorised:

- in writing by the employee and is principally for the employee's benefit; or (a)
- authorised by the employee in accordance with an enterprise agreement; or (b)
- authorised by or under a modern award or a Fair Work Act order; or (c)
- authorised by or under a law of the Commonwealth, a State or a Territory, or an order of a court. (d)

Item 4 Induction Training

The Approved Sponsor must ensure that all Overseas Workers undergo induction training on arrival, which should cover specific processes, knowledge of equipment, production speed, OH&S requirements specific to the MPE at which they are employed.

Item 5 Verification requirements

The Approved Sponsor must:

- ensure that skills assessments undertaken by Overseas Workers are videotaped unless exceptional circumstances render this impossible or impracticable, and understand that the Department may request evidence of such exceptional circumstances;
- verify within two days of a Primary Sponsored Person's arrival that the Primary Visa Holder is the same (b) person for which a visa application was lodged and a digital photograph was provided;
- notify the Commonwealth immediately if there is any inconsistency identified in terms of the identity of (c) the Primary Visa Holder;
- notify the Commonwealth within one month if the Primary Sponsored Person does not have the skills (d) required to work in the nominated position and propose remedial action to address any identified issues with the skills assessment process;
- comply with any Commonwealth request by the Department for the Approved Sponsor to obtain at the (e) Approved Sponsor's expense an independent audit, by an independent authority specified by the Commonwealth, such as use the services of any assessor associated with a skills assessment failure.

- (f) re-assess any Primary Sponsored Person assessed by an assessor associated with a skills assessment failure; and
- (g) ensure that Primary Sponsored Persons and any Secondary Sponsored Persons have adequate arrangements for health insurance in place from their date of arrival in Australia.

Item 6 Labour hire providers and employment arrangements

The Approved Sponsor must ensure that where they utilised a labour hire or recruitment company to source Overseas Workers that such providers are licensed in accordance with any relevant state or territory legislation.

The Approved Sponsor must also ensure that any Overseas Workers work directly for them once employed.

Item 7 Training obligations

- 1. An Approved Sponsor must comply with the following training obligations up until the implementation of any new requirements to pay a contribution to the Skilling Australia Fund (SAF) at the time of nomination for a TSS visa.
- 2. The Approved Sponsor must, over the term of each Year of the Agreement, ensure that it meets at least one of the training obligations outlined below:
 - (i) Training expenditure* equating to 2.0 per cent of payroll of the business paid to an industry training fund; or
 - (ii) Training expenditure* equating to 1.0 per cent of total gross wages on training Australians.
- *Expenditure that may count towards training expenditure for the purposes of this Agreement is training expenditure that may count towards the 'training benchmarks' under Standard Temporary Skilled visa program requirements, as varied from time to time. These are currently outlined in Legislative Instrument IMMI 17/045.

Schedule 7 Information to be provided to the Department

The Sponsor must provide the following documentation to the Department when requested or when seeking additional Nomination Ceilings:

- (a) updated Workforce Plans;
- (b) evidence of labour market testing that has been undertaken during the last 12 months;
- (c) evidence that the Sponsor has a strong record of, or a demonstrated commitment to, employing local labour and non-discriminatory employment practices;
- (d) evidence of salary arrangements for, and amounts paid to, Primary Sponsored Persons;
- (e) details of any breaches of immigration or other Commonwealth or State laws;
- (f) the dates and numbers and occupations of any and all Australian workers who have been retrenched or made redundant in the past 12 month period; and
- (g) any additional information requested by the Minister.

Signing page

Signed for and on behalf of the Commonwealth under the written authority of the Minister for Citizenship and Multicultural Affairs:) S22(1)(a)(ii) Senior Difector	s22(1)(a)(ii)
Economic & Skilled Visa Program Branch Print name and details of the Authorised Person	Signature of the Authorised Person
s22(1)(a)(ii)	Date of signing: \(\square \) \(\lambda \)
Signature of Wilness	
s22(1)(a)(ii)	
Print name of Witness	Date of signing: 15,07,2018 dd/mm/yyyy
In accordance with section 127 of the Corporations Act 2001 by:	Signature of Director/Secretary
Print name and details of the Authorised Person	Print name and details of the Authorised Person
Date of signing: 12/07/2018 dd/mm/yyyy	Date of signing://dd/mm/yyyyy
Print name and details of the Sponsor (if the Sponsor is not a body corporate). 47F	of Home
Signature of Witness	nent <i>f Inf</i>
S47F	ırtın 100
Print name of Witness Date of signing: 12/07/2018 dd/mm/yyyy	by Depar
	2 3



Australian Government Department of Home Affairs

DEED OF VARIATION No. 1

BETWEEN

COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA

AND

RALPH'S MEAT COMPANY PTY LTD (ABN 80 080 995 777)

- 2. This Deed makes the following variations to the Agreement:
 - (a) Remove Schedule 2 Item 1 Schedule 2 Occupations; Ceiling numbers; Location:

Ossupation	ccupation ANZSCO V				Year	Locations		
Occupation	ANZSCO	Visa	1	2	3	4	5	Locations
Skilled Meat Worker	070-499	TSS	s47					

(a) Replace Schedule 2 Item 1 Schedule 2 Occupations; Ceiling numbers; Location:

Occupation ANZSCO		Visa			Year			Locations
Occupation	n ANZSCO V	VISA	1	2	3	4	5	Locations
Skilled Meat Worker	070-499	TSS	S4 <i>7</i>					

3. In all other respects the terms and conditions of the Agreement remain unaltered.

DEED OF VARIATION

BETWEEN

COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA (the Commonwealth) represented by the Department of Home Affairs, of 6 Chan Street, Belconnen, ACT 2617 (the Department)

and

Ralphs Meat Company Pty Ltd (the Contractor) ABN 80 080 995 777 Granville Drive, Seymour VIC 3660

RECITALS:

- (a) The Parties entered into a contract dated 15 January 2015 (the Agreement) to enable the sponsorship of overseas workers for a meat industry labour agreement in the occupation of Skilled Meat worker.
- (b) The Parties have agreed to certain variations to the rights and obligations contained in the Agreement.
- (c) The Parties wish to formally record those variations in the form of this Deed of Variation (No. 1).

IT IS AGREED:

- 1. This Deed:
 - (a) is interpreted and adopts the definitions as specified in the Agreement;
 - (b) is a part of the entire agreement between the parties in relation to the subject matter of the Agreement; and
 - (c) commences on the day and year this Deed is signed by the Department.

Released by Department of Home Affairs under the Freedom of Information Act 1982

Page

Signed as a Deed for and on beh	nalf of the
Commonwealth under the written	n authority of the
Minister for Immigration, Citizen	nship and
Multicultural Affairs	

s22(1)(a)(ii)	s22(1)(a)(ii)
A / Co. La Division	
A/g Senior Director Employer Sponsored Program Management	Circulation of Analysis of Demonstra
Name and Position of Authorised Person	Signature of Authorised Person
	Date of signing: 17/10/2015
\$22(1)(a)(ii)	\$22(1)(a)(ii)
	_
Name of Witness	Signature of Witness
Approved Sponsor Signature	
Signed for and on behalf of Ralphs Meat Company Pty Ltd)	
ABN/ACN: 80 080 995 777)	
in accordance with section 127 of the Corporations Act 2001 by: 847F	S47F
Name and details of Director/Secretary ¹	/ Signature of Director/Secretary
	Date of signing: 15. 10.0013
s47F	If a state of the
	4 4
Name and details of Director/Secretary/Witness	Signature of Director/Secretary/Williess Date of signing: 15 700 8
	Date of signing:
	t of
	en i
	th of the
	Department edom of Int
	De
	by Department
Unless the Approved Sponsor is a sole Director who is also the Corned a Company Secretary must sign the Labour Agreement. If the	mpany Secretary, at least two Directors or a Director
ompany Secretary, a witness signature must be provided.	dei
	Page

¹ Unless the Approved Sponsor is a sole Director who is also the Company Secretary, at least two Directors or a Director and a Company Secretary must sign the Labour Agreement. If the Approved Sponsor is a sole Director who is also the Company Secretary, a witness signature must be provided.



Australian Government Department of Home Affairs

DEED OF VARIATION No. 2

BETWEEN

COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA

AND

RALPH'S MEAT COMPANY PTY LTD (ABN 80 080 995 777)

Released by Department of Home Affairs under the Freedom of Information Act 1982

DEED OF VARIATION

BETWEEN

COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA (the Commonwealth) represented by the Department of Home Affairs, of 6 Chan Street, Belconnen, ACT 2617 (the Department)

and

Ralphs Meat Company Pty Ltd (the Contractor) ABN 80 080 995 777 Granville Drive, Seymour VIC 3660

RECITALS:

- (a) The Parties entered into a contract dated 15 January 2015 (the Agreement) to enable the sponsorship of overseas workers for a meat industry labour agreement in the occupation of Skilled Meat worker.
- (b) The Parties have agreed to certain variations to the rights and obligations contained in the Agreement.
- (c) The Parties wish to formally record those variations in the form of this Deed of Variation (No. 2).

IT IS AGREED:

- 1. This Deed:
 - (a) is interpreted and adopts the definitions as specified in the Agreement;
 - (b) is a part of the entire agreement between the parties in relation to the subject matter of the Agreement; and
 - (c) commences on the day and year this Deed is signed by the Department.

- 2. This Deed makes the following variations to the Agreement:
 - (a) Remove Schedule 2 Item 1 Occupations; Ceiling numbers; Location:

Occupation	ANZSCO	Visa			Year	Locations		
Occupation	ANZSCO		1	2	3	4	5	Locations
Skilled Meat Worker	070-499	TSS	s47					

Replace Schedule 2 Item 1 Occupations; Ceiling numbers; Location:

Occupation	ANZSCO	Visa			Year			Locations
Occupation	ANZSCO		1	2	3	4	5	Locations
Skilled Meat Worker	070-499	TSS	s47					

3. In all other respects the terms and conditions of the Agreement remain unaltered.

Released by Department of Home Affairs

Signed as a Deed for and on behalf of the Commonwealth under the written authority of the Minister for Immigration, Citizenship and Multicultural Affairs			
\$22(1)(a)(ii)	s22(1)(a)(ii)		
A/g Director			
Employer Sponsored Program Management		Signature of Authorised	Person
Name and Position of Authorised Person		Date of signing:	,201
s22(1)(a)(ii)	s22(1)(a)(ii)		
Name of Witness	-	Signature of V	Vitness
Approved Sponsor Signature			
Signed for and on behalf of Ralphs Meat Company Pty Ltd)			
ABN/ACN: 80 080 995 777)	s47F		_
in accordance with section 127 of the Corporations Act 2001 by:			
S47F			
Name and details of Director/Secretary	1	Signature of Director/Sec Date of signing: 1.5/3	retary
s47F	s47F		Affairs
Name and details of <u>Director/Secretary/Witness</u>	/ Sig	Date of signing: 18./	Winney HOPERGY VINNEY
			ent of I
			epartment
¹ Unless the Approved Sponsor is a sole Director who is also the Compa and a Company Secretary must sign the Labour Agreement. If the App Company Secretary, a witness signature must be provided.			by D
		Page 4	eased

¹ Unless the Approved Sponsor is a sole Director who is also the Company Secretary, at least two Directors or a Director and a Company Secretary must sign the Labour Agreement. If the Approved Sponsor is a sole Director who is also the Company Secretary, a witness signature must be provided.



Australian Government Department of Home Affairs

DEED OF VARIATION No. 3

BETWEEN

COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA

AND

RALPHS MEAT COMPANY PTY LTD (ABN 80 080 995 777)

DEED OF VARIATION

BETWEEN

COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA (the Commonwealth) represented by the Department of Home Affairs, of 6 Chan Street, Belconnen, ACT 2617 (the Department)

and

Ralphs Meat Company Pty Ltd (the Contractor) ABN 80 080 995 777 55 Granville Drive, Seymour VIC 3660

RECITALS:

- (a) The Parties entered into a contract dated **15 January 2015** (the Agreement) to enable the sponsorship of overseas workers
- (b) The Parties have agreed to certain variations to the rights and obligations contained in the Agreement.
- (c) The Parties wish to formally record those variations in the form of this Deed of Variation (No. 3).

IT IS AGREED:

- 1. This Deed:
 - (a) is interpreted and adopts the definitions as specified in the Agreement;
 - (b) is a part of the entire agreement between the parties in relation to the subject matter of the Agreement; and
 - (c) commences on the day and year this Deed is signed by the Department.

- 2. This Deed makes the following variations to the Agreement:
 - (a) Remove Schedule 2 Item 1 Occupations and Nomination Ceiling

	AN7000				Year	ak kilah medidi dilamentah seriah selamentah selam inga mendan silam inga memuni Per	ek 1964 - Antoi an simmilien il a franciò com farcation assen	
Occupation	ANZSCO	Visa	1	2	3	4	5	Locations
Skilled Meat	070499	TSS	°s47					
Worker		186						

(b) Replace Schedule 2 Item 1 Occupations and Nomination Ceiling

	4117000	3.57			Year	ke galan ayar ayar ki amaranga (menguniki aya yarar aya bayi ke hawar		
Occupation	ANZSCO	Visa	1	2	3	4	5	Locations
Skilled Meat	070499	TSS	s47					
Worker		186						

3. In all other respects the terms and conditions of the Agreement remain unaltered.

Signed as a Deed for and on behalf of the Commonwealth under the written authority of the Minister for Immigration, Citizenship, Migrant Services and Multicultural Affairs

Skilled and Family Visa Program Branch Name and Position of Authorised Person Date of signing: 22/08// Name of Witness Approved Sponsor Signature Signed for and on behalf of Ralphs Meat Company Pty Ltd ABN: 80 080 995 777	Director	s22(1)(a)(ii)	
Name and Position of Authorised Person Date of signing: 22/98// 822(1)(a)(a) Name of Witness Signature of Wit Approved Sponsor Signature Signed for and on behalf of Ralphs Meat Company Pty Ltd ABN: 80 080 995 777		Signature of Authorised P	erson
Approved Sponsor Signature Signed for and on behalf of Ralphs Meat Company Pty Ltd ABN: 80 080 995 777 in accordance with section 127 of the Corporations Act 2001 by: 847F Name and details of Director/Secretary Name and details of Director/Secretary/Witness Signature of Director/Secretary/Witness Signature of Director/Secretary/Witness	Name and Position of Authorised Person	Signalia e of Tallion Beat 1	Craon
Approved Sponsor Signature Signed for and on behalf of Ralphs Meat Company Pty Ltd ABN: 80 080 995 777		Date of signing: 22/08	1201!
Approved Sponsor Signature Signed for and on behalf of Ralphs Meat Company Pty Ltd ABN: 80 080 995 777	s22(1)(a)(ii)	s22(1)(a)(ii)	
Approved Sponsor Signature Signed for and on behalf of Ralphs Meat Company Pty Ltd ABN: 80 080 995 777			
Signed for and on behalf of Ralphs Meat Company Pty Ltd ABN: 80 080 995 777	Name of Witness	Signature of W	itness
Signed for and on behalf of Ralphs Meat Company Pty Ltd ABN: 80 080 995 777			
Signed for and on behalf of Ralphs Meat Company Pty Ltd ABN: 80 080 995 777	Approved Sponsor Signature		
Company Pty Ltd ABN: 80 080 995 777			
in accordance with section 127 of the Corporations Act 2001 by: Name and details of Director/Secretary Signature of Director/Secretary Date of signing: 2.2./ 8 Name and details of Director/Secretary/Witness Signature of Director/Secretary/Witness			
Act 2001 by: Name and details of Director/Secretary Name and details of Director/Secretary Signature of Director/Secretary Date of signing: 22./ 8 SATE Name and details of Director/Secretary/Witness Signature of Director/Secretary/Witness	ABN: 80 080 995 777		
Name and details of Director/Secretary Signature of Director/Secretary Date of signing: 22./ 8./ 9 SATE Name and details of Director/Secretary/Witness Signature of Director/Secretary/Witness		×	
Name and details of Director/Secretary/Witness Date of signing: 2.2./ 8 Signature of Director/Secretary/Witness	7F	s47F	
Name and details of Director/Secretary/Witness Saff Signature of Director/Secretary/Witness	Name and details of Director/Secretary ¹	TOTAL CONTRACTOR CONTR	etary
Name and details of Director/Secretary/Witness Signature of Director/Secretary/Witness			80/
	s47F	Affair	1ct 18
	Name and details of Director/Secretary/Witness		tness
Date of signing:		Date of signing:	De!

Refeased by Department under the Freedom of Inf

¹ Unless the Approved Sponsor is a sole Director who is also the Company Secretary, at least two Directors or a Director and a Company Secretary must sign the Labour Agreement. If the Approved Sponsor is a sole Director who is also the Company Secretary, a witness signature must be provided.



MEAT INDUSTRY LABOUR AGREEMENT (MILA)

Under the Migration Act 1958 (Cth)

Between

Commonwealth of Australia

and

Roverworth Pty Ltd as the trustee for The Roverworth Trust

Released by Department of Home Affairs under the Freedom of Information Act 1982

Table of Contents

Backg	round1
1	Definitions and interpretation1
2	Period3
3	On hire, commercial-in-confidence, pre-contractual representations3
PART	A – Subclass 457 visas4
4	Nominations4
5	Approval of nominations4
6	Sponsorship obligations4
PART	B – Subclass 186 visas5
7	Nominations5
8	Approval of nominations5
MISC	ELLANEOUS PROVISIONS6
9	Notices6
10	Relationship between the parties, information sharing6
11	Termination7
12	Dispute resolution8
13	Assurances, counterparts and assignment8
14	Variation and entire agreement8
15	Fettering and publishing9
16	Legal expenses9
17	Invalidity and waiver9
18	Survival after termination9
19	Governing law and jurisdiction9
20	Sanctions9
Schedu	ıle 1 Parties, period and other matters11
Schedu	ale 2 Additional Definitions for this Meat Industry Agreement13
Schedu	ıle 3 Nominations and approvals15
Schedu	ıle 4 Variation of sponsorship obligations17
Schedu	ile 5 Training and employment obligations21
Schedu	ıle 6 Further sponsorship obligations22
Signin	g page26
Annex	ure27

Parties

Commonwealth of Australia represented by the Minister for Immigration and Border Protection (the Commonwealth).

The Commonwealth's particulars are set out in **Item 1** of **Schedule 1**.

The party specified in Item 2 of Schedule 1 (the Sponsor).

The Sponsor's particulars are set out in Item 3 of Schedule 1.

Background

- A. This Agreement will be administered by the Department of Immigration and Border Protection (DIBP) on behalf of the Commonwealth.
- B. This Agreement is a labour agreement that:
 - (a) in Part A below, authorises the Sponsor to recruit, employ or engage the services of people who are intended to be employed or engaged by the Sponsor as holders of Subclass 457 (Business (Long Stay)) visas (and who in that respect is an "approved sponsor" within the meaning of the Migration Act; and
 - (b) in Part B below, authorises the Sponsor to recruit persons to be employed by the sponsor as holders of Subclass 186 (Employer Nomination Scheme (Agreement Stream)) visas.
- C. The Commonwealth's reasons for entering into this Agreement are to support the economic, health or security benefits to Australia through the temporary and permanent entry or stay in Australia of sponsored overseas workers.
- D. The Sponsor, whose business undertaking is described in **Item 4** of **Schedule 1**, has demonstrated to the Commonwealth that sufficient

- numbers of Australian workers with the required skills are not readily available for employment in Australia.
- E. The Sponsor is an "approved sponsor" as defined in the Migration Act by virtue of entering into this Agreement, in so far as the Agreement is a "work agreement" within the meaning of the Migration Act.
- F. This Agreement sets out the terms and conditions of the Sponsor's authority to recruit, employ or engage the services of persons who are intended to be the holders of Subclass 457 visas or the holders of Subclass 186 visas.

Operative part

1 Definitions and interpretation

- 1.1 Unless the context indicates a contrary intention, words and phrases in this Agreement have the same meanings attributed to them in the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations.
- 1.2 In the event of any inconsistency between this Agreement and the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations, the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations will prevail.
- 1.3 In this Agreement:

Address means a party's address set out in Schedule 1.

Agreement means this agreement, any schedules, attachments and any document incorporated into this agreement by reference.

Australian where to context so admits, means an Australian citizen (whether born in Australia or elsewhere) or a non-citizen who, being usually resident in Australia, is the holder of a permanent visa granted under the Migration Act.

Business Day means a day on which business is generally conducted in the Australian Capital Territory, and

excludes Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays.

Damages means all liabilities, losses, damages, costs and expenses, including legal fees and disbursements and costs of investigation, litigation, settlement, judgment, interest and penalties.

Effective Date means:

- (a) the date (if any) specified in **Item 5** of **Schedule 1**;
- (b) if no such date is specified, the date on which this Agreement is signed by the parties, or if signed on separate days, the date of the last signature.

Email account means a party's email address set out in Schedule 1.

Fax Number means a party's facsimile number set out in Schedule 1.

Migration Act means the Migration Act 1958.

Migration Regulations means the Migration Regulations 1994 made under the Migration Act 1958.

On-hire, under a labour agreement, means a person's business activities which include activities relating to either or both of:¹

- (a) the recruitment of labour for supply to another business; and
- (b) the hiring of labour to another business;
- (c) the reference to 'another business' in paragraph (a) and (b) above, includes any other business that is related to a person's business.
- 1.4 In this Agreement, unless the context indicates a contrary intention:

Primary sponsored person takes the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.²

Secondary sponsored person takes the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Temporary visa takes the same meaning as in the Migration Act.

Workplace law means the Fair Work Act 2009, and relevant equal employment opportunity, unlawful discrimination and occupational health and safety legislation regulating the employment by the Sponsor of its sponsored overseas workers.

(corresponding meanings) a word that is derived from a defined word has a corresponding meaning.

(headings) clause headings, the table of contents and footnotes are inserted for convenience only and do not affect interpretation of this Agreement.

(references) a reference to a party, clause, paragraph, schedule or annexure is a reference to a party, clause, paragraph, schedule or annexure to or of this Agreement.

(requirements) a requirement to do any thing includes a requirement to cause that thing to be done, and a requirement not to do any thing includes a requirement to prevent that thing being done.

(rules of construction) neither this Agreement nor any part of it is to be construed against a party on the basis that the party or its lawyers were responsible for its drafting.

(singular and gender) the singular includes the plural and vice-versa, and

¹ An example of On-hire under a labour agreement is where a person proposes to sponsor someone to come to Australia for the purpose of hiring out the visa holder's services to work in another business.

² Primary sponsored persons, as per the Migration Regulations, include all holders, or former holders of Subclass 457 visas who were last identified in an approved nomination by the Sponsor.

This means that the terms of this work agreement covers all primary sponsored persons; including those nominated while a previous agreement with the Sponsor was in effect.

words importing one gender include all other genders.

(legislation) a reference to any legislation or provision of legislation includes all amendments, consolidations or replacements and all regulations, directions or instruments issued under it.

(Minister) a reference to the Commonwealth as a party to this Agreement includes, where appropriate, a reference to the Minister for Immigration and Border Protection and his or her authorised representative performing relevant functions as the Minister under the Migration Act or the Migration Regulations.

(month) a reference to a month is a reference to a calendar month.

(person) a reference to a person includes an individual, a body corporate, statutory corporation, partnership, body politic and permitted assigns, as the context requires.

(writing) a reference to a notice, consent, request, approval or other communication under this Agreement or an agreement between the parties means a written notice, request, consent, approval or agreement.

2 Period

- 2.1 This Agreement commences from the Effective Date.
- 2.2 Unless terminated earlier in accordance with section 13 of this Agreement, the period of this Agreement will be the time specified in **Item 5** of **Schedule 1**.
- 2.3 If no such time is specified, the period will be three (3) years.
- 2.4 If the Sponsor is entitled to an option in accordance with Item 6 of Schedule 1, the Sponsor may exercise the option by giving one (1) month's notice to the Commonwealth before the end of the period, whereupon:
 - (a) this Agreement will be renewed on the same terms and conditions except for clauses 2.2 - 2.4;

- (b) the period of the renewed Agreement will be the option period specified in **Item 6** of **Schedule 1**.
- 2.5 To avoid doubt, if an option to renew is not granted in **Item 6** of **Schedule 1**, there will be no option to renew.
- 3 On hire, commercial-inconfidence, pre-contractual representations
- 3.1 If On-hire is prohibited in Item 7 of Schedule 1:
 - (a) the Sponsor must not nominate a proposed occupation for an applicant or a proposed applicant, for On-hire:
 - (b) any such nominations will not be approved under this Agreement; and
 - (c) the Sponsor must not utilise the services of a visa holder employed pursuant to a nomination under this Agreement, for On-hire.
- 3.2 To avoid doubt, if On-hire is not specifically allowed in Item 7 of Schedule 1, On-hire will be taken to be prohibited.
- 3.3 If a party's information is specified as commercial-inconfidence information in Item 8 of Schedule 1, the other party will not disclose the information without the first party's prior written consent, except when disclosure of the information is required by law, statutory or portfolio duties, or in accordance with clause 10.6 of this Agreement.
- 3.4 The Sponsor warrants that information supplied to the Commonwealth with respect to the Sponsor being a fit and proper person to enter into this Agreement (regardless of whether the information is included in the Annexure to this agreement) and

upon which the Commonwealth relied, was true and correct.

PART A - Subclass 457 visas

4 Nominations

- 4.1 A nomination under this Part means a nomination referred to in section 140GB of the Migration Act.
- 4.2 The Sponsor, who for this purpose is an "approved sponsor" within the meaning of the Migration Act, may nominate:
 - (a) an applicant, or proposed applicant, for a Subclass 457 visa in relation to the applicant or proposed applicant's proposed occupation;
 - (b) a proposed occupation, provided the applicant or proposed applicant for the Subclass 457 visa who will work in the nominated occupation, has been identified in the nomination.
- 4.3 If a limitation on the type of occupation, program or activity is specified in **Item 9** of **Schedule 1**, the Sponsor may only nominate for those occupation, program or activity types.
- 4.4 If a limitation on the location of business sites is specified in Item 9 of Schedule 1, the Sponsor may only nominate for those locations and must employ visa holders only at those sites.
- 4.5 The Sponsor may only employ primary sponsored persons up to the maximum number for particular years of this Agreement specified in Item 9 of Schedule 1.
- 4.6 The Sponsor must make nominations in accordance with the approved forms.
- 4.7 The Sponsor must provide, as part of the nomination:
 - (a) The information required in the Migration Regulations and any further information specified in Item 1 of Schedule 3;

- (b) The fee specified in the Migration Regulations.
- 4.8 The Commonwealth may refund the fee in accordance with the circumstances for such a refund in the Migration Regulations.

5 Approval of nominations

- 5.1 DIBP (for the Commonwealth) will approve nominations in accordance with the criteria specified in the Migration Regulations and any requirements specified in Item 2 of Schedule 3.
- 5.2 DIBP will notify the Sponsor of a decision whether or not to approve a nomination in accordance with the Migration Regulations.
- 5.3 The period of an approval of a nomination will be in accordance with the Migration Regulations.

6 Sponsorship obligations

- 6.1 In this Agreement generally and in these sponsorship obligations specifically, "primary sponsored person" and "secondary sponsored person" takes the same meaning as in the Migration Act.
- 6.2 The Sponsor, in so far as it is an "approved sponsor" must satisfy the sponsorship obligations prescribed by the Migration Regulations in relation to an approved sponsor as varied, if at all, in **Schedule 4**, as follows:
 - (a) The obligation to cooperate with inspectors specified in Item 1 of Schedule 4.
 - (b) The obligation to ensure equivalent terms and conditions of employment specified in Item 2 of Schedule 4.
 - (c) The obligation to pay travel costs to enable sponsored persons to leave Australia specified in Item 3 of Schedule 4
 - (d) The obligation to pay costs incurred by the Commonwealth to locate and

- remove an unlawful non-citizen specified in Item 4 of Schedule 4.
- (e) The obligation to keep records specified in Item 5 of Schedule 4.
- (f) The obligation to provide records and information to the Commonwealth as specified in Item 6 of Schedule 4.
- (g) The obligation to provide information to the Commonwealth when certain events occur as specified in Item 7 of Schedule 4.
- (h) The obligation to ensure a primary sponsored person does not work in an occupation other than an approved occupation, as specified in Item 8 of Schedule 4.
- (i) The obligation not to recover certain costs from a primary sponsored person or secondary sponsored person specified in Item 9 of Schedule 4.
- 6.3 The Sponsor must satisfy the training obligations in **Schedule 5** (if any) regarding Australian citizens.
 - (a) The Sponsor may carry out the obligations in **Schedule 5** itself or through contracted service providers.
 - (b) The Sponsor warrants that the training provided will be fit for any purpose express or implied in **Schedule 5**.
 - (c) The Sponsor must satisfy its sponsorship obligations in Schedule 6 (if any), which are additional obligations to the sponsorship obligations in the Migration Regulations as varied (if at all) in Schedule 4.
 - (d) The Sponsor must comply with Workplace law, and immigration laws regulating employment of the Sponsor's sponsored overseas workers.

PART B - Subclass 186 visas

7 Nominations

- 7.1 A nomination under this Part means a nomination referred to in Migration Regulations for Subclass 186 visas.
- 7.2 The Sponsor may nominate:
 - (a) an applicant, or proposed applicant, for a Subclass 186 visa in relation to the applicant or proposed applicant's proposed occupation;
 - (b) a proposed occupation, provided the applicant or proposed applicant for the Subclass 186 visa who will work in the nominated occupation, has been identified in the nomination.
 - (c) If a limitation on the type of occupation, program or activity is specified in Item 10 of Schedule 1, the Sponsor may only nominate for those occupation, program or activity types.
- 7.3 The Sponsor must make nominations in accordance with the approved forms.
- 7.4 The Sponsor must provide, as part of the nomination:
 - (a) The information required in the Migration Regulations and any further information specified in Item 3 of Schedule 3;
 - (b) The fee specified in the Migration Regulations.
- 7.5 The Commonwealth may refund the fee in accordance with the circumstances for such a refund in the Migration Regulations.

8 Approval of nominations

8.1 DIBP (for the Commonwealth) will approve nominations in accordance with the criteria specified in the Migration Regulations and any requirements specified in Item 3 of Schedule 3.

- 8.2 DIBP will notify the Sponsor of a decision whether or not to approve a nomination in accordance with the Migration Regulations.
- 8.3 The period of an approval of a nomination will be in accordance with the Migration Regulations.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

9 Notices

- 9.1 Any notice, demand, consent or other communication given or made under this Agreement:
 - (a) must be clearly readable;
 - (b) must, unless it is sent by email, be signed by the party giving or making it (or signed on behalf of that party by its authorised representative); and
 - (c) must, unless it is sent by email, be left at the Address or sent by pre-paid security post (air mail if outside Australia) to the Address or to the Fax Number of the recipient; and
 - (d) may be sent by email to the receiving party's Email Account provided the receiving party effectively acknowledges receipt by return email to the sending party's Email Account.
- 9.2 A notice to be served on the Commonwealth will be taken to be served if it is served on DIBP's address in Item 1 of Schedule 1.
- 9.3 A party may change its Address, Fax Number or Email Account for the purpose of service by giving notice of that change to the other party in accordance with clause 9.1.
- 9.4 Any communication will be taken to be received by the recipient:
 - (a) in the case of a letter, on the third (seventh, if sent outside the country in which the letter is posted) Business Day after the date of posting;
 - (b) in the case of a facsimile, on production of a transmission

- report by the machine from which the facsimile was sent which indicates that the facsimile communication was sent in its entirety to the Fax Number of the recipient; and
- (c) if the time of dispatch of a facsimile is not on a day, or is after 5.00 pm (local time) on a day, in which business generally is carried on in the place to which the facsimile communication is sent it will be taken to have been received at the commencement of business on the next day in which business is generally carried on in that place;
- (d) in the case of an email, when the receiving party effectively acknowledges receipt by return email to the sending party's Email Account.

10 Relationship between the parties, information sharing

- 10.1 Nothing in this Agreement:
 - (a) constitutes a partnership between the parties; or
 - (b) except as expressly provided, makes a party an agent of another party for any purpose.
- 10.2 A party cannot in any way or for any purpose:
 - (a) bind another party; or
 - (b) contract in the name of another party.
- 10.3 If a party must fulfil an obligation and that party is dependent on another party, then that other party must do each thing reasonably within its power to assist the other in the performance of that obligation.
- 10.4 If the Sponsor is constituted by more than one legal entity (such as a partnership or an unincorporated association), each of those legal entities will be jointly and severally liable for the performance of all of the

- Sponsor's obligations under this Agreement
- 10.5 The Sponsor must comply with any reasonable request by the Commonwealth for information to enable the Commonwealth to meet its obligations this Agreement.
- 10.6 The Sponsor consents to information concerning it which is relevant to the operation of this Agreement being shared between the Commonwealth and the State/Territory in which the Sponsor conducts business, and between relevant Commonwealth agencies, including the Department of Immigration and Border Protection, the Department of Employment, the Office of the Fair Work Ombudsman, Fair Work Australia, the Australian Taxation Office and the Australian Federal Police.

11 Termination

- 11.1 If the Commonwealth contends that the Sponsor is in default under this Agreement, the Commonwealth may, without prejudice to any right of action or remedy which has accrued or which may accrue (including the Commonwealth's entitlement to terminate in accordance with clause 11.4):
 - (a) serve reasonable notice on the Sponsor, requiring the Sponsor to rectify to the satisfaction of the Commonwealth, those aspects of the Sponsor's performance which are of concern to the Commonwealth;
 - (b) suspend this Agreement in whole or in part if the Sponsor does not comply with the notice; and
 - (c) terminate this Agreement without prejudice to any right of action or remedy which has accrued or which may accrue.
- 11.2 If the Sponsor, as an "approved sponsor", is in breach of a

- sponsorship obligation in the Migration Regulations, the Sponsor will be taken to be in default under this Agreement as if the statutory obligation was a contractual obligation of the Sponsor, provided the Commonwealth elects to serve a notice under clause 11.1 in relation to the breach.
- 11.3 For the avoidance of doubt, a breach of the Sponsor's warranty given in clause 3.4 with respect to pre-contractual information, will entitle the Commonwealth to serve a notice under clause 11.1 and/or to take any other contractual redress in accordance with this Agreement.
- 11.4 A party may, in its discretion, terminate this Agreement early by giving 28 days notice to the other party, whereupon this Agreement will be terminated with effect 28 days after the notice of termination is served. A party serving a notice of termination under this sub-clause:
 - (a) need not specify a reason for serving the notice;
 - (b) may withdraw the notice before the 28 days have elapsed; and
 - (c) will not be liable to compensate the other party for costs or damages that may arise from the early termination.
- 11.5 For the avoidance of doubt, if this Agreement is terminated for any reason or for no reason:
 - (a) the Sponsor's approval as a sponsor for the purposes of this Agreement will thereby be automatically terminated; and
 - (b) for the purpose of specifying the period for when visas granted on the basis of the Agreement remain in effect under the Migration Regulations, all visas granted on the basis of this Agreement

permit the visa holder to remain in Australia for a period of not more than 4 years from the date upon which the visa was granted.

- 11.6 In the event this Agreement is terminated early for any reason, or for no reason:
 - (a) the Sponsor will continue to pay the employed visa holders for 28 days, during which time:
 - (1) the Sponsor will use its best endeavours to assist the visa holders to find an alternative sponsor in accordance with their wishes; and
 - (2) the Commonwealth will, at its discretion, facilitate such transfers, or
 - (b) the Sponsor will assist the visa holders to apply for another type of appropriate substantive visa in accordance with their wishes; and
 - (c) this sub-clause will survive the early termination.
- 11.7 A waiver by a party in respect of any breach of a condition or provision of this Agreement will not be deemed to be a waiver in respect of any continuing or subsequent breach of that provision, or breach of any other provision. The failure of a party to enforce at any time any of the provisions of this Agreement will in no way be interpreted as a waiver of such provision.

12 Dispute resolution

- 12.1 The Parties will deal with any dispute arising during the course of this Agreement as follows:
 - (a) the party claiming that there is a dispute must notify the other party of the details of the dispute;
 - (b) the parties will use their best endeavours to resolve the

- dispute by direct negotiation;
- (c) the parties must allow 28 days from notification of the dispute to reach a resolution or to agree to select some alternative dispute resolution procedure; and
- (d) if there is no resolution or agreement then a party may propose mediation or arbitration, or commence legal proceedings or terminate this Agreement.
- 12.2 The parties acknowledge that the Migration Review Tribunal and Administrative Appeals Tribunal may have jurisdiction to review certain visa decisions and that the Migration Review Tribunal may have jurisdiction to review nomination decisions under this Agreement. This Agreement does not abrogate any rights of a merits review by the Migration Review Tribunal or the Administrative Appeals Tribunal.

Assurances, counterparts and assignment

- 13.1 Each party must promptly execute all documents and do all other things reasonably necessary or desirable to give effect to the arrangements recorded in this Agreement.
- 13.2 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts.
- 13.3 A party cannot assign or otherwise transfer its rights under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party.

14 Variation and entire agreement

- 14.1 A provision of this Agreement can only be varied by a later written document executed by or on behalf of all parties.
- 14.2 Except as provided in the
 Annexure, the contents of this
 Agreement constitute the entire
 agreement between the parties and
 supersede any prior negotiations,

representations, understandings or arrangements made between the parties regarding the subject matter of this Agreement, whether orally or in writing.

15 Fettering and publishing

- 15.1 Nothing in this Agreement fetters or detracts from the Commonwealth's discretions, functions or powers under the Migration Act, the Migration Regulations, Workplace law or other relevant Commonwealth laws.
- 15.2 In the event the Commonwealth has published an outline of this Agreement, the published outline is an invitation to treat with prospective sponsors and is not an offer to enter into contractual relations with any such sponsor on the basis of the published outline.

16 Legal expenses

- 16.1 Each party must pay its own legal costs and disbursements in connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution and carrying into effect of this Agreement.
- 16.2 The Sponsor must pay any stamp duty assessed on or in relation to this Agreement and any instrument or transaction required by or necessary to give effect to this Agreement.

17 Invalidity and waiver

- 17.1 A word or provision must be read down if:
 - (a) this Agreement is void, voidable, or unenforceable if it is not read down;
 - (b) this Agreement will not be void, voidable or unenforceable if it is read down; and
 - (c) the provision is capable of being read down.
- 17.2 A word or provision must be severed if:

- (a) despite the operation of clause 17.1, the provision is void, voidable or unenforceable if it is not severed; and
- (b) this Agreement will be void, voidable or unenforceable if it is not severed.
- 17.3 The remainder of this Agreement has full effect even if clause 17.2 applies.
- 17.4 A right or remedy created by this Agreement cannot be waived except in writing signed by the party entitled to that right. Delay by a party in exercising a right or remedy does not constitute a waiver of that right or remedy, nor does a waiver (either wholly or in part) by a party of a right operate as a subsequent waiver of the same right or of any other right of that party.

18 Survival after termination

Any provision of this Agreement which expressly or by implication from its nature is intended to survive the termination of expiration of this Agreement and any rights arising on termination or expiration will survive, including commercial-in-confidence information, and the Sponsor's sponsorship obligations.

19 Governing law and jurisdiction

- 19.1 The laws applicable in the Australian Capital Territory govern this Agreement.
- 19.2 The parties submit to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Australian Capital Territory and any courts competent to hear appeals from those courts.

20 Sanctions

20.1 Instead of terminating this
Agreement, the Commonwealth
may, in its discretion, bar the
Sponsor, for a specified period,
from making further nominations
under this Agreement.

- 20.2 The Commonwealth may, in its discretion, instead of terminating this Agreement or in addition to terminating this Agreement, take action against the Sponsor for a breach of contract to recover damages and/or for injunctive relief.
- 20.3 The Commonwealth may, in its discretion, instead of taking any enforcement action under this Agreement or in addition to taking such enforcement action, pursue a civil penalty under the Migration Act for failing to satisfy a sponsorship obligation.
- 20.4 The criteria that the
 Commonwealth may take into
 account in determining what
 enforcement action (if any) to take
 for a breach of contract by the
 Sponsor are:
 - (a) the past and present conduct of the Sponsor in relation to Workplace law, and immigration laws regulating employment of the Sponsor's sponsored overseas workers;
 - (b) the number of occasions on which the Sponsor has failed to satisfy the sponsorship obligation;
 - (c) the nature and severity of the circumstances relating to the failure to satisfy the sponsorship obligation, including the period of time over which the failure has occurred;
 - (d) the period of time over which the Sponsor has been an Sponsor;

- (e) whether, and the extent to which, the failure to satisfy the sponsorship obligation has had a direct or indirect impact on another person;
- (f) whether, and the extent to which, the failure to satisfy the sponsorship obligation was intentional, reckless or inadvertent;
- (g) whether, and the extent to which, the Sponsor has cooperated with the Commonwealth including whether the Sponsor informed the Commonwealth of the failure;
- (h) the steps (if any) the Sponsor has taken to rectify the failure to satisfy the sponsorship obligation, including whether the steps were taken at the request of the Commonwealth or otherwise;
- (i) the processes (if any) the Sponsor has implemented to ensure future compliance with the sponsorship obligation;
- (j) the number of other sponsorship obligations that the Sponsor has failed to satisfy, and the number of occasions on which the Sponsor has failed to satisfy other sponsorship obligations; and
- (k) any other relevant factors.

Schedule 1

Parties, period and other matters

Item 1

The Commonwealth's particulars

Department of Immigration and Border Protection:

Address:

6 Chan Street, BELCONNEN ACT 2617

Telephone Number:³

Email Address:

. . .

Contact officer:4

The Director, Labour Agreements Policy Section

Item 2

The Sponsor

Name:

Roverworth Pty Ltd as the trustee for the Roverworth Trust

ACN

112 266 421

Business structure: 5

Trustee (Australian Proprietary company) for trust

Item 3

The Sponsor's particulars

Address:

302 Grantham Scrub Road, Veradilla QLD 4347

Telephone Number: 6

Email Address:

Contact officer: 7

The Sponsor's business

Item 4
Business

undertaking:

Meat Processing

Industry segment:

Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing

Item 5

Commencement and period

Effective Date:8

The date signed by the Commonwealth

Period:9

Three (3) years from the date signed by the Commonwealth

Item 6

Option

Is there an option?¹⁰

No

Option period:¹¹

Not applicable

Item 7

On-hire

Is On-hire allowed?¹²

Yes – On-Hire is only allowed to Stanbroke Beef Pty Ltd as the trustee for the Stanbroke Beef Unit Trust (ACN: 110 934 891)

³ Include the contact officer's mobile number, if appropriate.

⁴ The contact officer's name and title.

⁵ Describe the Sponsor's business structure (for example: corporation, sole trader, partnership, unincorporated association)

⁶ Include the contact officer's mobile number, if appropriate.

⁷ The contact officer's name and title.

⁸ Insert the same date above the "Parties" section of this Agreement.

⁹ Specify a period in years and/or months. If no period is specified, the period will be 3 years. ¹⁰ Specify "Yes" or "No". If nothing is specified, the default response will be "No" and there will be

no option entitlement.

11 If "Yes" was the response, a period must be specified in years and/or months.

¹² Specify "Yes" or "No". If nothing is specified, the default response will be "No".

Item 8	Commercial-in-confidence information
Party: ¹³	Roverworth Pty Ltd as the trustee for the Roverworth Trust
	The Commonwealth represented by the
	Department of Immigration and Border Protection The terms of this Agreement
	All information provided to request and secure access
Item 9	Occupations (Temporary Subclass 457 visa)
Occupation type: 14	Skilled Meat Worker as defined in Schedule 2
Business sites:15	
Annual maximum: 16	
Year 1	
Year 2	
Year 3	
Item 10	Occupations (Permanent Subclass 186 visa)
Occupation type: ¹⁷	Skilled Meat Worker as defined in Schedule 2
Business sites: ¹⁸	
. 1	
Annual maximum: 19	
Year 1	
Year 2	
Year 3	

The Sponsor may demonstrate it requires, during the term of the labour agreement, an increase to the annual maximum number of Skilled Meat Workers, subject to it having satisfied all requirements of this Agreement.

The approval of such a request is at the absolute discretion of the Department.

¹³ Specify the party who has provided or produced the confidential information, and the party's commercial-in-confidence information. Such information might be "This Agreement".

14 Describe any limitation on the type of occupation, program or activity that may be nominated by the

Sponsor.

Describe any limitation on the location of business sites where nominees may work.

¹⁶ Describe any maximum number of primary sponsored persons that the Sponsor, as an Approved Sponsor, may sponsor in each year of the period of the Agreement.

Describe any limitation on the type of occupation, program or activity that may be nominated by the Sponsor.

18 Describe any limitation on the location of business sites where nominees may work.

Describe any maximum number of primary sponsored persons that the Sponsor may sponsor in each year of the period of the Agreement.

Schedule 2 Additional Definitions for this Meat Industry Agreement

Accredited English Language Training means for the purpose of this Agreement, is English language training that is undertaken through a Registered Training Organisation (RTO).

Accredited Training Institution means for the purpose of this Agreement, a Registered Training Organisation (RTO). RTOs are registered by State and Territory training authorities to deliver nationally recognised training.

Annual Salary means for the purpose of this Agreement remuneration paid to a Primary Sponsored Person on an annualised basis and is calculated from the date the Primary Sponsored Person commences employment, excluding those periods when the Primary Sponsored Person is offshore on approved leave without pay.

AQF means Australian Qualifications Framework.

Australian Workers means Australian citizens or permanent residents employed or formerly employed by the Sponsor.

Deductions Plan means a plan submitted by the Sponsor to the Commonwealth, seeking approval of fair, reasonable and lawful deductions from the gross salary of Skilled Meat Workers (other than deductions required by Australian law or statute), which if approved by the Commonwealth, could be made available to the Company's Skilled Meat Workers should they freely choose to avail themselves of this opportunity to which the deductions relate.

Industrial instrument means an instrument in force under a law of the Commonwealth or the State/Territory that regulates workplace relations and prescribes terms and conditions of employment between employers and employees including, but not limited to, an award or agreement made under the Commonwealth *Fair Work Act 2009* (Cth) and an award or agreement made by a relevant State/Territory industrial tribunal or court.

International English Language Testing System' (IELTS) means the IELTS as prescribed in Regulation 5.17 of the *Migration Regulations 1994*.

Market Salary Rate means the terms and conditions of employment which are no less favourable than the terms or conditions of employment that are or would be provided to an Australian performing equivalent work in the Approved Sponsor's workplace at the same location.

Meat Processing Company means a company registered, licensed or accredited by the relevant Commonwealth or State/Territory authority to operate an abattoir and/or boning room and which is a Party to this Agreement and the direct employer of Skilled Meat Workers.

Meat Processing Establishment means for the purpose of this Agreement an establishment wholly or predominately concerned with any one or more of the activities of killing, dressing, boning, slicing, preparation and/or packing of fresh meat and is owned and operated by the Sponsor at which Primary Sponsored Persons are to be employed.

MINTRAC means the Meat Industry National Training Advisory Council.

Overtime means all time worked outside the ordinary working hours (including shifts) on any day.

Permanent visa means a visa that permits the holder to remain in Australia indefinitely. The Sponsor may under the terms of this Agreement recruit persons to be employed as the holder of a Subclass 186 (Employer Nomination Scheme (Agreement Stream)) visa.

Primary sponsored person means a primary sponsored person as prescribed in Regulation 2.57 (1) of the *Migration Regulations 1994*.

Report means information provided by the Sponsor to the Commonwealth to demonstrate its compliance with its obligations under this Agreement and in a format determined to be fit for purpose by the Commonwealth (note **Schedule 4**, **Item 6** and **Item 7**);

Relevant Industrial Instrument means an industrial instrument that applies to a Primary Sponsored Person and regulates the terms and conditions of employment of that Primary Sponsored Person.

Skilled Meat Worker is defined for the purpose of this Agreement is a person who possesses the following qualifications and work experience and performs the following tasks under limited supervision and direction:

(a) assessed and verified by a MINTRAC registered assessor, or an assessor approved by the Commonwealth, with a Certificate IV in Training and Assessment experienced in meat processing, to be Skilled Meat Workers with a minimum skill level commensurate with the MINTRAC referenced AQF Certificate III in meat processing; and

(b) either:

- i. demonstrates a minimum of three (3) years skilled work experience obtained at a meat processing establishment acceptable to the Parties; or
- ii. has been working in Australia on a Subclass 457 visa at an Australian Meat Processing Establishment acceptable to the Parties for at least nine (9) months prior to being nominated.

The duties and tasks of a Skilled Meat Worker reflect duties and tasks referenced by a MINTRAC Certificate III. A "Skilled Meat Worker" cannot be employed in a labouring position or undertake labouring or unskilled duties other than to the extent of circumstances prescribed under Clause 2 of Schedule 6.

Stand-down means "the employer has the right to deduct payment for any day on which an employee cannot be usefully employed, because of any strike other than in the meat industry, or through any breakdown of machinery or any stoppage of work in the meat industry by any cause for which the employer cannot reasonably be held responsible, or for any day or part of a day on which an employee cannot be usefully employed because of any strike in the meat industry."

Top Up is defined for the purpose of this agreement as an amount needed to restore the Skilled Meat Worker's salary to the Temporary Skilled Migration Income Threshold as prescribed under Clause 1, Item 2 of Schedule 4.

TSMIT means Temporary Skilled Migration Income Threshold as defined under the Migration Regulations 1994.

TSMIT Hourly Rate means the TSMIT Weekly Rate divided by 38.

TSMIT Weekly Rate means the (annual salary x 6) divided by 313.

TSMIT Fortnightly Rate means the (annual salary x 12) divided by 313.

Schedule 3 Nominations and approvals

Item 1 Further information to be supplied with a nomination

The Sponsor must provide the following information in support of a nomination, in addition to the information specified in the Migration Regulations:

1 A certification by the Sponsor as part of the nomination, in writing, that the qualifications and experience of the applicant or proposed applicant in relation to the nominated occupation are commensurate with the qualifications and experience specified for the nominated occupation.

Item 2 Further requirements for approval of nominations (Subclass 457 visa)

The Sponsor must meet the following requirements to the Commonwealth's satisfaction before a nomination will be approved:

- 1 The Sponsor has certified as part of the nomination, in writing, that the qualifications and experience of the applicant or proposed applicant in relation to the nominated occupation are commensurate with the qualifications and experience specified for the nominated occupation of Skilled Meat Worker (Schedule 2).
- Visa Applicants/Holders who were not required to meet English language levels under previous meat industry labour agreements or Standard Business Sponsorship do not require English testing.
- 3 The Sponsor has indicated as part of the nomination a visa term of not more than 4 years.
- 4 The Sponsor has attested as part of the nomination, in writing, that it has a strong record of, or a demonstrated commitment to employing local labour, and non-discriminatory employment practices.
- 5 The Sponsor has certified as part of the nomination, in writing, that it has not:
 - (i) permanently terminated the employment of not more than five percent of its Australian workforce at the Meat Processing Establishment approved under this Agreement (except in circumstances of demonstrated misconduct or unlawful conduct) within a period of three (3) months prior to the date of the nomination application; and
 - (ii) stood down its workforce at the Meat Processing Establishment approved under this Agreement for more than 7 consecutive days at any single given time over a three (3) month period prior to the date of the nomination application; and
 - (iii) reduced the shifts of its workforce at the Meat Processing Establishment approved under this Agreement to less than 50 per cent of the regular shift quota within a period of three (3) months prior to the date of the nomination application.
- The requirement to make a certification at Clause 5 does not apply if the Commonwealth is satisfied that compelling circumstances exist (for example, a natural disaster) which warrant the Sponsor undertaking any of the actions outlined in Clause 5.
- The Sponsor must only make a nomination application in respect of a Primary Sponsored Person that would work directly for them at a Meat Processing Establishment.
- 8 The Sponsor must only make a nomination application in respect of a Primary Sponsored Person who has at least an average IELTS score of 5 across the 4 test components of speaking, reading, writing and listening.

Item 3 Further requirements for approval of nominations and grant of visa (Subclass 186 visa)

The Sponsor must meet the following requirements to the Commonwealth's satisfaction before a nomination will be approved:

- 1 Sponsors can nominate Subclass 457 visa holders employed under any meat industry agreement who meet the terms described in Clause 2 Item 3, Schedule 3 for a Subclass 186 visa. The Commonwealth will consider any such nomination against the Migration Regulations in force at the time of application.
- 2 Where a Sponsor nominates a Subclass 457 visa holder employed under any meat industry agreement, for a Subclass 186 visa, the nominee must:
 - (a) be under 50 years of age; and
 - (b) demonstrate to the Commonwealth's satisfaction that they possess appropriate skills and English language ability, including but not limited to:
 - i. that they are Skilled Meat Workers assessed by a MINTRAC registered assessor, or other assessor approved by the Commonwealth, as being appropriately skilled for the purposes of permanent entry;
 - ii. have worked in Australia on a Subclass 457 visa in the position of a Skilled Meat Worker for a minimum of four (4) years; and
 - iii. either demonstrate a minimum IELTS test score of average five (5) across all four (4) test components from a test that was conducted in the three (3) years immediately before the day on which the Subclass 186 application was made; or
 - iv. provide evidence of a minimum of 500 actual hours of tuition in accredited English language training completed through an accredited training institution; or
 - v. is the current holder of a passport of any of the following countries:
 - a. Canada;
 - b. New Zealand
 - c. The Republic of Ireland;
 - d. The United Kingdom; or
 - e. The United States of America.
- 3 The Sponsor must only make a nomination application in respect of a Primary Sponsored Person that would work directly for them at a Meat Processing Establishment.
- 4 The Sponsor must only make a nomination application in respect of a Primary Sponsored Person who has at least an average IELTS score of 5 across the 4 test components of speaking, reading, writing and listening.

Schedule 4 Variation of sponsorship obligations

Item 1 Obligation to cooperate with inspectors

The obligation in regulation 2.78 of the Migration Regulations is varied in accordance with the following provisions.

1 No variation

Item 2 Obligation to ensure equivalent terms and conditions of employment

The obligation in regulation 2.79 of the Migration Regulations is varied in accordance with the following provisions:

- 1 The primary visa holder must be paid a base Annual Salary of no less than the Temporary Skilled Migration Income Threshold (TSMIT) of \$53 900 (and as indexed and updated annually) or the market salary rates, whatever is the greater amount.
 - Payments that can be considered for the purpose of meeting the TSMIT include any payments that are provided for under the Relevant Industrial Instrument, relevant Enterprise Bargaining Agreement or the Migration Regulations, but exclude overtime and bonus payments. Payments of Worker's Compensation benefits to Primary Sponsored Person and payments that are based on activity levels can also be considered for the purpose of meeting the TSMIT.
- Where a Primary Sponsored Person is not employed for a period of time, whether because of a Stand Down, insufficient work or any other reason, the Sponsor must pay the Primary Sponsored Person as follows:
 - (i) if the Primary Sponsored Person is not provided with work for any period within a fortnight, and the Primary Sponsored Person does not earn an amount equal to one-half (50%) of the fortnightly TSMIT amount, then the Sponsor must pay to the Primary Sponsored Person the difference between the amount actually earned and one-half (50%) of the fortnightly TSMIT amount;
 - (ii) if the Primary Sponsored Person is not provided with work for a period greater than a fortnight, then the Sponsor must pay to the Primary Sponsored Person an amount equal to one-half (50%) of the fortnightly TSMIT amount for the length of the Stand Down and to pay any shortfall of TSMIT calculated over an annual salary period ('Top up');
 - (iii) A Top up payment will generally be made on an annual basis. However, where Primary Sponsored Person not being provided with work has resulted in the payment to a Primary Sponsored Person of less than the pro-rata TSMIT in three consecutive months, then the Commonwealth reserves the right to request that the Sponsor pay the Top up for that three month period at any time, and any balance owing for the period of time for which the Primary Sponsored Person was not provided with work, calculated over an annual salary period, at a later date as determined by the Commonwealth.
- 3 All other terms and conditions of this Agreement should be consistent with the Relevant Industrial Instrument. This Agreement shall prevail over the provisions of the Relevant Industrial Instrument as varied, to the extent of any inconsistency. Where this Agreement is silent the Relevant Industrial Instrument shall continue to apply.
 - NB: If sufficient work for the Primary Sponsored Person to be engaged on a full-time and ongoing basis is not available for an extended period of time, Sponsors should consider whether the Primary Sponsored Person should continue to be employed.

Item 3 Obligation to pay travel costs to enable sponsored persons to leave Australia

The obligation in regulation 2.80 of the Migration Regulations is varied in accordance with the following provisions.

- 1. The Sponsor must pay travel costs in accordance with regulation 2.80 of the Migration Regulations in circumstances where the written request to pay travel costs is made while the person whose travel will be funded, is a person who is:
 - (a) a Primary Sponsored Person; or
 - (b) a Secondary Sponsored Person.

The Sponsor must pay:

- (a) for one-way travel costs from the person's usual place of residence in Australia to the place of departure from Australia; and
- (b) for one-way travel costs from Australia to the country (for which the person holds a passport) specified in the request to pay travel costs, and
- (c) within 30 days of receiving the written request, and
- (d) for economy class air travel or, equivalent of economy class air travel.

It is reasonable and necessary for the Sponsor to meet costs which form a mandatory part of these travel costs including any transit visa costs and airport taxes.

Reasonable and necessary travel costs only include travel costs for persons, not the costs of transporting possessions. Costs which the Sponsor is not obligated to meet include:

- (a) Costs associated with relocation of personal effects (beyond any included airline baggage allowance).
- (b) Excess luggage
- (c) Rental property expenses ie: costs breaking a lease
- (d) Personal choices to include stopovers on international flights
- (e) Stopover hotels during international flights
- (f) Cost of obtaining a travel document (Passport)
- (g) Other costs that are beyond what is reasonable and necessary for the person to return to the country of which they hold a passport.

The Sponsor is not required to actually book the airline ticket.

Once the Sponsor has made a satisfactory payment (as defined in Regulation 2.80) for the total costs of return travel, they are not required to pay these costs again in relation to the same Primary Sponsored Person or Secondary Sponsored Person.

The Sponsor is required (as per Regulation 2.84) to notify the Department that payment has been made and include a copy of their evidence of the payment in this notification.

Item 4 Obligation to pay costs incurred by the Commonwealth to locate and remove unlawful non-citizens

The obligation in regulation 2.81 of the Migration Regulations is varied in accordance with the following provisions.

1 No variation

Item 5 Obligation to keep records

The obligation in regulation 2.82 of the Migration Regulations is varied in accordance with the following provisions.

1 No variation

Item 6 Obligation to provide records and information to the Minister

The obligation in regulation 2.83 of the Migration Regulations is varied in accordance with the following provisions.

- In order to qualify for additional visa nominations in subsequent labour agreement years the Sponsor must provide the following information for the Commonwealth's consideration:
 - (a) proposed maximum number of Primary Sponsored Persons to be sponsored for the next year of the labour agreement;
 - (b) evidence of skilled meat worker vacancies (including evidence and results of recent recruitment campaigns to fill these vacancies and advertising of each position with a Job Services Australia provider) for the nominated occupation;
 - (c) an explanation of the requirement for additional overseas skilled meat workers, such as increasing operations or recruitment difficulties;
 - (d) evidence of financial capacity to meet obligations under the labour agreement;
 - (e) shift patterns for the previous six (6) months, and details of any redundancies and retrenchments of that period;
 - (f) a staffing profile which indicates the ratio of Australian workers to holders of Temporary Visas (including secondary sponsored persons and visa holders such as Working Holiday Makers);
 - (g) written evidence of local community consultations with stakeholders on the need for overseas Skilled Meat Workers. Stakeholders may include, but not limited to:
 - i. Local Councils;
 - ii. Federal and State Members of Parliament;
 - iii. Industry bodies;
 - iv. Unions; and
 - v. Other key stakeholders and community groups.

Item 7 Obligation to provide information to Immigration when certain events occur

The obligation in regulation 2.84 of the Migration Regulations is varied in accordance with the following provisions.

- The Sponsor must notify the Commonwealth within five (5) working days of any retrenchments or redundancies within the Meat Processing Establishment and must provide, with that notification, details of the Sponsor's method for identifying and processing of redundancies, in accordance with the requirements of the Fair Work Act 2009.
- The Sponsor must notify the Commonwealth on the first week of each month of any circumstances where a Primary Sponsored Person has not reached pro-rata TSMIT for the previous month as a result of unpaid Stand Downs or reduced hours for that month.

Item 8 Obligation to ensure primary sponsored person works or participates in nominated occupation, program or activity

The obligation in regulation 2.86 of the Migration Regulations is varied in accordance with the following provisions.

The primary sponsored person may perform other duties to the extent of circumstances prescribed under Clause 2 of Schedule 6.

Item 9 Obligation not to recover, transfer or take actions that would result in another person paying for certain costs

The obligation in regulation 2.87 of the Migration Regulations is varied in accordance with the following provisions.

- 1 Costs including but not limited to;
 - (a) the Sponsor's recruitment costs;
 - (b) public health costs (or insurance to cover public health costs) for both Primary and Secondary Visa Holders where the visa grant was prior to 14 September 2009; and
 - (c) English language testing and/or training for Primary Visa Holders;
- 2 Where the Sponsor provides accommodation and/or board:
 - (a) it must not be compulsory for the visa holders to accept the accommodation and/or board:
 - (b) it can only be charged at a fair and reasonable market rate; and
 - (c) charges for accommodation and/or board must satisfy the Commonwealth as being fair and reasonable;
- 3 The Sponsor must only permit the Skilled Meat Workers to authorise the Sponsor to make deductions from their gross salary where those authorised deductions are consistent with the Deductions Plan approved by the Commonwealth for that Sponsor and is consistent with relevant State/Territory legislation;
- 4 The Sponsor must be responsible for the costs in Clause 1 (c), Item 9 of this Schedule 4 as they relate to Primary Visa Applicants/Holders, and English language training to enable the primary visa holder to either achieve the English language level prescribed under Schedule 3, Item 3, 2(b)(iii) or to complete a total of 500 actual hours of tuition in accredited English language training through an accredited training institution.

Schedule 5 Training and employment obligations

- 1 The Sponsor and its Directors must continue to be:
 - (a) of good standing, including that they have a good record of complying with Commonwealth and State/Territory laws and, where they are a party to a Federal Industrial Instrument, have a satisfactory record of compliance with Federal workplace relations laws;
 - (b) an employer with a good record of training Australians including provision of ongoing skills development and re-training opportunities to Australians;

and

- 2 The Sponsor must over the life of this Agreement:
 - (a) through the education, training and up skilling of Australians (with a focus on accredited training enabling meat labourers to progress to Skilled Meat Worker positions), reduce the level of reliance, within the term of operation of this Agreement, on overseas temporary entrants;
 - (b) provide career development opportunities to all Australian employees through the provision of a structured training strategy that includes, but is not limited to: accredited in-house training courses, external training courses, financial assistance to employees to undertake training relevant to their employment;
 - (c) ensure that employment of Australians as apprentices/trainees at a Meat Processing Establishment is maintained at a level which is either:
 - i) no less than 15 per cent of the total number of employees engaged in meat processing duties at the Meat Processing Establishment; or
 - ii) on average, expenditure on Structured Training for each Australian employee is at least \$1000 for each year of this Agreement; or
 - iii) expend at least 1.6 per cent of gross wages expenditure on Structured Training for Australians for each year of this Agreement
 - (d) conduct recruitment campaigns (in newspapers, professional journals, the Internet and with Job Network members) for Skilled Meat Workers. All temporary business long stay (Subclass 457) positions should be advertised with Australian Job Search for a minimum of 28 days prior to the lodgement of a nomination in respect of the positions.

Schedule 6 Further sponsorship obligations

- 1. The Sponsor attests as part of this Agreement and in respect of any future nominations, in writing, that it has a strong record of, or a demonstrated commitment to employing local labour and non-discriminatory employment practices.
- 2. The Sponsor must ensure that the Primary Sponsored Persons are Skilled Meat Workers and that they will be employed only in skilled meat processing occupations except:
 - (a) where the Skilled Meat Worker is required to undertake suitable duties pursuant to the requirements of applicable Workers Compensation laws; or
 - (b) where the requirement is made for bona fide OH&S reasons to provide a worker with restricted duties consistent with existing medical opinion. The Meat Processing Company must notify the Commonwealth immediately if any period of restricted duties exceeds one week; or
 - (c) where a Skilled Meat Worker has completed his or her ordinary working hours, other duties outside of the 'Skilled Meat Worker' duties, including duties offered as part of Overtime, may be considered.
- 3. The Sponsor must ensure that all Primary Sponsored Persons:
 - (a) are subject to integrity verification processes, including:
 - i. video taping of the assessment undertaken; or
 - ii. where exceptional circumstances render video taping impossible or impracticable; and a digital photograph of the Primary Visa Applicant submitted with the nomination and visa application. The Commonwealth may require the Sponsor to provide evidence of the exceptional circumstances which render video taping impossible or impracticable. Where the Commonwealth is not satisfied with the evidence the Sponsor provides, the Commonwealth may impose conditions; and
 - (b) have skills and work experience as defined by Skilled Meat Worker (Schedule 2); and
 - (c) undergo induction training on arrival, which should cover specific processes, knowledge of equipment, production speed, OH&S requirements specific to the Meat Processing Establishment at which they are employed.
- 4. The Sponsor must ensure that:
 - 4.1 for a Skilled Meat Worker who is the holder of a Subclass 457 visa and whose application for that visa was:
 - (a) made and determined before 14 September 2009; or
 - (b) made on the basis that the employer was a Standard Business Sponsor;
 - 4.2 nominate the Skilled Meat Worker within 4 weeks of the effective date of this Agreement.
- 5. The Sponsor must ensure that the integrity of the assessment process is maintained, including through:
 - (a) verifying within two (2) days of the Primary Visa Holder's arrival that the Primary Visa Holder is the same person assessed in 3.a (above) and in the digital photograph submitted with the nomination and visa application; and notifying the Commonwealth immediately of any inconsistency;
 - (b) notifying the Commonwealth within one (1) month of the Primary Visa Holder's arrival where a Primary Visa Holder does not meet the requirements and, if those requirements are not met, proposing remedial action to the Commonwealth;
 - (c) complying with any Commonwealth request for the Sponsor to obtain at the Sponsor's expense an independent audit, by an independent authority specified by

- the Commonwealth, such as use the services of any assessor associated with a skills assessment failure; and
- (d) reassessing any Primary Visa Applicants/Holders assessed by an assessor associated with a skills assessment failure.
- 6. The Sponsor must ensure that nominees can provide evidence of health insurance cover at time of application.
- 7. Where a Primary Sponsored Person's English language proficiency is below the level of English language proficiency that is prescribed in Schedule 3, Item 3, 2(b)(iii), the Sponsor must continue to pay for accredited English language training for the Primary Sponsored Person until such time as the Primary Sponsored Person's English language proficiency is at least the level of English language proficiency that is prescribed in Schedule 3, Item 3, 2(b)(iii); except where:
 - a. the Primary Sponsored Person has completed at least 500 actual hours of tuition in accredited English language training through an accredited training institution; or
 - b. the Primary Sponsored Person is in Australia and holds a Subclass 457 visa, or is in Australia and the last substantive visa they held was a Subclass 457 visa, the Sponsor must ensure that the Primary Sponsored Person's English language proficiency is at least the level of English language proficiency that is prescribed in Schedule 3, Item 3, 2(b)(iii) in circumstances where sub-paragraphs 457.223(4)(eb)(i), (ii) and (iii) do not apply.
- 8. The Sponsor must provide primary sponsored persons and secondary sponsored persons:
 - (a) appropriate assistance, including transport from airports, assistance with finding accommodation and establishing household; and
 - (b) information on how to contact their local community groups and assistance.
- 9. Regardless of whether the Sponsor has been requested by a primary sponsored person or a secondary sponsored person to do so, the Sponsor must use its best endeavours to assist primary sponsored persons and secondary sponsored persons to establish links with the broader community, especially with respect to:
 - (a) services of health professionals, schools and libraries; and
 - (b) relevant religious organisations, mothers' groups, child care providers and migrant services.
- 10. When recruiting primary sponsored persons or secondary sponsored persons, the Sponsor must make all reasonable inquiries to satisfy itself that the primary sponsored person or secondary sponsored persons do not owe money as a result of being recruited.
- 11. The Sponsor must not nominate primary sponsored persons or secondary sponsored persons who it has assessed, reasonably suspects or ought reasonably suspect of owing money as a result of being recruited.
- 12. The Sponsor must provide, the Commonwealth with a copy of the relevant industrial instrument to the occupations and sites included in this agreement which has been registered with Fair Work Australia.
- 13. Without limiting the generality of the preceding clause, the Sponsor will:
 - (a) liaise with and provide information to the Commonwealth as reasonably required by the Commonwealth for the purposes of such audits;
 - (b) comply with the Commonwealth's reasonable requests or requirements for the purposes of such audits.
- 14. The Sponsor acknowledges that it has provided:
 - (a) the information set out in the Annexure (if any);
 - (b) the documents attached to the Annexure (if any),

to the Commonwealth for the purpose of demonstrating:

- (c) the Sponsor's corporate background if the Sponsor is a body corporate, or the Sponsor's business background otherwise;
- (d) the Sponsor's industry background;
- (e) evidence of shortage of skills sought;
- (f)salaries and employment conditions offered (including but not limited to a Letter of Offer to be provided to prospective employees nominated under this Agreement, setting out the terms and conditions of their employment); and
- (g) evidence of the training, employment and career progression opportunities provided to Australian citizens.
- 15. The Sponsor acknowledges that the Commonwealth has relied on the information and/or documents (if any) referred to in the Annexure when deciding to enter into this Agreement.
- 16. The Sponsor warrants that the information and/or documents (if any) referred to in the Annexure were true and correct at the date of this Agreement.
- 17. The Sponsor will notify the Commonwealth as soon as the Sponsor becomes aware that any information or documents in the Annexure has changed or is no longer true and correct.
- 18. Unless specified otherwise in the Migration Act or the Migration Regulations, the Sponsor will retain all records generated for the purposes of this Agreement for seven (7) years from the date of expiration or termination of this Agreement.
- 19. The Sponsor acknowledges that:
 - (a) The rights of the Commonwealth under this Agreement are in addition to any relevant power, right or entitlement of the Auditor-General or the Privacy Commissioner; and
 - (b) Nothing in this Agreement reduces, limits, restricts or derogates from in any way any relevant function, power, right or entitlement of the Auditor-General or the Privacy Commissioner.
- 20. The Sponsor will allow:
 - (a) the Commonwealth;
 - (b) the Australian National Audit Office; and
 - (c) the Ombudsman's Office,

to access the Sponsor's premises at all reasonable times and to inspect and copy all relevant documentation and records, however stored, in the Sponsor's possession or control, with respect to the Sponsor's performance of its obligations under the Agreement.

- 21. The Commonwealth's rights in the preceding clause are subject to:
 - (a) the provision of reasonable prior notice to the Sponsor;
 - (b) compliance with the Sponsor's reasonable security procedures;
 - (c) each party bearing its own cost arising out of or in connection with any access, audit or inspection; and
 - (d) if appropriate, entering into a deed of confidentiality relating to non-disclosure of the Sponsor's confidential information.
- 22. The Sponsor will ensure that any other agreements that it enters into with anyone else for the purpose of this Agreement, contains an equivalent clause granting the rights of access as specified in this Schedule. This clause will survive for seven (7) years from the date of expiration or termination of this Agreement.

- 23. In carrying out its rights and obligations under this Agreement, the Sponsor may use a migration agent but must only use the services of migration agents who are registered with the Migration Agents Registration Authority (MARA).
- 24. The Sponsor must not cause or permit a change in control of the Sponsor that would reasonably be regarded as inimical to the Sponsor's capacity to perform its obligations under this Agreement.
- 25. The Commonwealth may grant or refuse to grant consent, in its absolute discretion, to any application by the Sponsor for consent to a change in control of the Sponsor that may be inimical to the Sponsor's capacity to perform its obligations under this Agreement, and the Commonwealth may attach such conditions on consent as the Commonwealth sees fit.
- 26. The Sponsor must, within seven (7) days of receiving notice from the Commonwealth, provide such information and supporting evidence as the Commonwealth may request in relation to a change in control of the Sponsor that would reasonably be regarded as inimical to the Sponsor's capacity to perform its obligations under this Agreement, including but not limited to:
 - (a) shareholdings;
 - (b) issued shares;
 - (c) board of Directors;
 - (d) board of management;
 - (e) executive officers;
 - (f) voting rights;
 - (g) partnership composition, if applicable; and
 - (h) the executive committee of an unincorporated association, if applicable,

of the Sponsor, including the dates of any changes to those matters.

27. The Sponsor releases the Commonwealth for liability arising out of this Agreement whether for an alleged breach of contract, negligence or other cause of action. To avoid doubt, the Commonwealth will not be liable to the Sponsor for Damages or compensation, including loss of profits for actions or omissions in relation to the Commonwealth's obligations under this Agreement.

Signing page

Commonwealth Signature

Signed for and on behalf of the Commonwealth under the written authority of the Minister for Immigration and Border Protection:

s22(1)(a)(ii)	
Name of Authorised Person	\$22(1)(a)(ii)
Alg AS Skilled Migding Book	Signature of Authorised Person Date of signing: 15/25/
s22(1)(a)(ii)	s22(1)(a)(ii)
Name of Witness	Signature of Witness
Sponsor's Signature Signed for and on behalf of Roverworth Pty Ltd as the trustee for the Roverworth Trust in accordance with section 127 of the Corporations Act 2001 by:	
s47F	s47F
Name and details of Director/Secretary ²⁰	Signature of Director/Secretary Date of signing:
s47F	s47F
Name and details of Director/Secretary/Witness	Signature of Director/Secretary/Witness

Date of signing: 9/5/2014

²⁰ Unless the Approved Sponsor is a sole Director who is also the Company Secretary, at least two Directors or a Director and a Company Secretary must sign the Labour Agreement. If the Approved Sponsor is a sole Director who is also the Company Secretary, a witness signature must be provided.

Annexure

Information S47

	Documents		
s47			

Released by Department of Home Affairs under the Freedom of Information Act 1982



Australian Government

Department of Immigration and Border Protection

LABOUR AGREEMENT - MEAT INDUSTRY

Under the Migration Act 1958

Between

Commonwealth of Australia as represented by the Minister for Immigration and Border Protection (Minister)

and

Roverworth Pty Ltd ATF
The Roverworth Trust

Table of Contents

Backgroun	d	4	
Operative 1	Part	4	
1	Definitions	4	
2	Interpretation	7	
3	Period	8	
4	Pre-contractual representations	8	
Sponsorshi	p and nomination of overseas workers	8	
5	On-hire prohibited	8	
6	Labour market need	8	
PART A -	Subclass 457	9	
7	Nomination	9	
8	Approval of nominations1	0	
9	Sponsorship obligations1	0	
PART B - S	Subclass 1861	1	
10	Nominations1		
11.	Approval of nominations	3	
PART C: O	ther provisions1	3	
12.	Training and recruitment of Australian workers	3	
13.	Supporting Primary Sponsored Persons1	4	01
14.	Reporting obligations1	4 <u>S</u>	98
15.	Monitoring1	Egi-	ct 1
Miscellaneo	ous Provisions1	40	1 A
16.	Relationship between the parties	_	tioi
17.	Confidential information and information sharing1		ma
18.	Suspension1	57	nfol
19.	Termination1	415	11 JC
20.	Sanctions1	arti	m (
21.	Dispute resolution1)ep	edom
22.	Assurances, counterparts and assignment	_	Fre
23.	X7		16
24.	Variation and entire agreement	ase	er th
_		Rele	unde

25.	Legal expenses	18
26.	Survival after termination	18
27.	Notices	18
28.	Governing law and jurisdiction.	19
29.	Indemnity	19
Schedule 1	Particulars	20
Schedule 2	Training and recruitment obligations	21
Schedule 3	Occupations; Ceiling numbers; Location; Qualifications and Experience; and Concessions covered by this Agreement	22
Schedule 4	Concessions to tasks of occupations in ANZSCO	24
Schedule 5	Additional requirements for nomination	25
Schedule 6	Variation of sponsorship obligations	26
Schedule 7	Variations to Reporting Requirements	30
Schedule 8	Domestic Recruitment Efforts Template	31
Signing pag	ge	32

Labour Agreement

Effective Date: Date signed by the Commonwealth.

Parties

The Commonwealth of Australia (the "Commonwealth") as represented by the Minister for Immigration and Border Protection (the "Minister"). The Commonwealth's particulars are set out in **Item 1** of **Schedule 1**.

AND

The party specified in **Item 2** of **Schedule 1** (the "Approved Sponsor"). The Approved Sponsor's particulars are set out in **Item 2** of **Schedule 1**.

Background

- A. This labour agreement (the "Agreement") is a "labour agreement" as defined in the Migration Regulations. This Agreement will be administered by the Department of Immigration and Border Protection ("DIBP or the Department") on behalf of the Commonwealth.
- B. This Agreement sets out the terms and conditions by which the Approved Sponsor may recruit, employ or engage the services of overseas workers who are intended to be employed or engaged by the Approved Sponsor as holders of Subclass 457 Temporary Work (Skilled) or Subclass 186 Employer Nomination Scheme visas in its business undertaking as described in **Item 3** of **Schedule 1**.
- C. The Approved Sponsor is an "approved sponsor", as defined in subsection 5(1) of the Migration Act by virtue of entering into this Agreement.

Operative Part

1 Definitions

- 1.1 Unless the context indicates a contrary intention, words and phrases in this Agreement have the same meanings attributed to them in the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations.
- 1.2 In the event of any inconsistency between this Agreement and the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations, the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations will prevail.
- 1.3 In this Agreement:

Accredited English Language Training means for the purpose of this Agreement English language training that is undertaken through a Registered Training Organisation.

Accredited Training Institution means for the purpose of this Agreement a Registered Training Organisation. Registered Training Organisations are registered by State and Territory training authorities to deliver nationally recognised training.

Address means a party's address set out in Schedule 1.

Agreement means this labour agreement, any schedules, attachments and any documents incorporated into this labour agreement by reference.

Annual Salary means for the purpose of this Agreement remuneration paid to a Primary Sponsored Person on an annualised basis and is calculated from the date the Primary Sponsored Person commences employment, excluding those periods when the Primary Sponsored Person is offshore on approved leave without pay.

ANZSCO means the Australian and New Zealand Standard Classification of Occupations.

AQF means the Australian Qualifications Framework.

Australian where the context so admits, means an Australian citizen (whether born in Australia or elsewhere) or a non-citizen who, being usually resident in Australia is the holder of a permanent visa granted under the Migration Act.

Base rate of pay means the rate of pay payable to an employee for his or her full time ordinary hours of work, but not including any of the following:

- (a) incentive-based payments and bonuses;
- (b) loadings;
- (c) monetary allowances;
- (d) overtime or penalty rates;
- (e) any other separately identifiable amounts.

Ordinary hours of work is determined under the relevant industrial award or agreement.

Where there is no industrial award or agreement, the full time ordinary hours will be 38 hours per week.

Business Day means a day on which business is generally conducted in the Australian Capital Territory, and excludes Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays.

Business Address means the physical address at which a business is located.

Ceiling number means the number of primary Subclass 457 or Subclass 186 Employer Nomination Scheme visas that can be nominated as defined in **Schedule 3**. Nominations made but withdrawn prior to a decision are not included in the ceiling number.

Confidential Information in relation to a Party, means information that is:

- (a) by its nature capable of being protected in law or equity as confidential;
- (b) designated by a Party as confidential in **Item 5** of **Schedule 1**; or
- (c) in the case of the Commonwealth's Confidential Information, the Approved Sponsor knows or ought to know is confidential;

but does not include information:

- (d) which is or becomes public knowledge other than by breach of the Contract or any other confidentiality obligations; or
- (e) that has been independently developed or acquired without reference to the other Party's Confidential Information.

Concessions means any variations to the requirements prescribed in the Migration Legislation in relation to the skills, qualifications, employment background, level of English Language proficiency and the Temporary Skilled Migration Income Threshold (TSMIT) required for the nomination and grant of a Subclass 457 or Subclass 186 Employer Nomination Scheme visa.

Damages means all liabilities, losses, damages, costs and expenses, including legal fees and disbursements and costs of investigation, litigation, settlement, judgment, interest and penalties

Deductions Plan means a plan submitted by the Approved Sponsor to the Commonwealth, seeking approval of fair, reasonable and lawful deductions from the gross salary of Skilled Meat Workers (other than deductions required by Australian law or statute), which if approved by the Commonwealth, could be made available to the Company's Skilled Meat Workers should they freely choose to avail themselves of this opportunity to which the deductions relate.

DIBP means the Department of Immigration and Border Protection ("the Department").

Released by Department of Home Affairs under the Freedom of Information Act 1982

Effective Date means:

- (a) the date (if any) specified in **Item 4** of **Schedule 1**;
- (b) if no such date is specified, the date on which this Agreement is signed by the parties, or if signed on separate days, the date of the last signature.

Email Account means a party's email address set out in Schedule 1.

IELTS means the International English Language Testing System.

Industrial instrument means an instrument in force under a law of the Commonwealth or the State/Territory that regulates workplace relations and prescribes terms and conditions of employment between employers and employees including, but not limited to, an award or agreement made under the Commonwealth Fair Work Act 2009 (Cth) and an award or agreement made by a relevant State/Territory industrial tribunal or court.

Meat Processing Company means a company registered, licensed or accredited by the relevant Commonwealth or State/Territory authority to operate an abattoir and/or boning room and which is a Party to this Agreement and the direct employer of Skilled Meat Workers.

Meat Processing Establishment means for the purpose of this Agreement an establishment wholly or predominately concerned with any one or more of the activities of killing, dressing, boning, slicing, preparation and/or packing of fresh meat and is owned and operated by the Approved Sponsor at which Primary Sponsored Persons are to be employed.

Migration Act means the Migration Act 1958, as varied from time to time.

Migration Legislation means the Migration Act and/or the Migration Regulations.

Migration Regulations means the Migration Regulations 1994 made under the Migration Act 1958, as varied from time to time.

Minister means "the Minister" for Immigration and Border Protection, the Assistant Minister, and his or her authorised representative performing relevant functions as the Minister under the Migration Legislation.

MINTRAC means the Meat Industry National Training Advisory Council.

Nominate means a nomination referred to in section 140GB of the Migration Act.

Nominee means the holder of, or an applicant or proposed applicant for, a Subclass 457 or Subclass 186 Employer Nomination Scheme visa.

On-hire¹, under a labour agreement, means a person's business activities which include activities relating to either or both of:

- (a) the recruitment of labour for supply to another business; and
- (b) the hiring of labour to another business:
- (c) the reference to 'another business' in paragraph (a) and (b) above, includes any other business that is related to a person's business.

Occupations means those occupations prescribed in Schedule 3.

Postal Address means the address to which mail is delivered.

Primary Sponsored Person takes the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Relevant Industrial Instrument means an industrial instrument that applies to a Primary Sponsored Person and regulates the terms and conditions of employment of that Primary Sponsored Person.

¹ An example of On-hire is where a person proposes to sponsor someone to come to Australia for the purpose of hiring out the visa holder's services to client organisations, rather than to work directly in the person's business.

Freedom of Information Act 1982 by Department of Home Affairs er the

Secondary Sponsored Person takes the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Stand-down means "the employer has the right to deduct payment for any period on which an employee cannot be usefully employed, because of any industrial action (other than industrial action organised or engaged in by the employer), or through any breakdown of machinery if the employer cannot reasonably be held responsible for the breakdown or any stoppage of work for any cause for which the employer cannot reasonably be held responsible, or for any period which an employee cannot be usefully employed because of any industrial action in the meat industry".

Terms and conditions of employment takes the same meaning as Regulation 2.57 of the Migration Regulations.

The Department means the Department of Immigration and Border Protection.

Top Up is defined for the purpose of this Agreement as an amount needed to restore the Skilled Meat Worker's salary to the Temporary Skilled Migration Income Threshold as prescribed under Schedule 6, Item 2, Clause 2.

TSMIT means the Temporary Skilled Migration Income Threshold specified in an instrument made under regulation 2.72(10)(cc) of the Migration Regulations, as routinely indexed.

TSMIT Fortnightly Rate means the (annual salary x 12) divided by 313.

TSMIT Hourly Rate means the TSMIT Weekly Rate divided by 38.

TSMIT Weekly Rate means the (annual salary x 6) divided by 313.

Workforce means the total number of Australian workers (including permanent residents), subclass 457 visa holders, and other temporary visa holders engaged by the Approved Sponsor.

Workplace law means the Fair Work Act 2009 (Cth), and any other law of the Commonwealth, a State or a Territory that regulates the relationships between employers and employees (including by dealing with occupational health and safety maters).

Workforce plan means a report that outlines the current, and where requested, projected future composition of an Approved Sponsor's workforce. It should include details of the total number of Australian workers (including permanent residents), subclass 457 visa holders, and other temporary visa holders engaged by the Approved Sponsor.

Year means the period of 12 months commencing on the day this Agreement commences, or a period of 12 months commencing on an anniversary of that day.

2 Interpretation

(corresponding meanings) a word that is derived from a defined word has a corresponding meaning.

(headings) clause headings, the table of contents and footnotes are inserted for convenience only and do not affect interpretation of this Agreement.

(references) a reference to a party, clause, paragraph or schedule is a reference to a party, clause, paragraph or schedule to, or of this Agreement.

(requirements) a requirement to do anything includes a requirement to cause that thing to be done, and a requirement not to do anything includes a requirement to prevent that thing being done.

(including) including and includes are not words of limitation, and a list of examples is not limited to those items or to items of a similar kind.

(rules of construction) neither this Agreement nor any part of it is to be construed against a

party on the basis that the party or its lawyers were responsible for its drafting.

(singular and gender) the singular includes the plural and vice-versa, and words importing one gender include all other genders.

th Pty Ltd ATF The Roverworth Trust

(**legislation**) a reference to any legislation or provision of legislation includes all amendments, consolidations or replacements and all regulations, directions or instruments issued under it.

(day) unless stated otherwise a reference to a day is a reference to a calendar day.

(month) a reference to a month is a reference to a calendar month.

(**person**) a reference to a person includes an individual, a body corporate, statutory corporation, partnership, body politic and permitted assigns, as the context requires.

(writing) a reference to a notice, consent, request, approval or other communication under this Agreement or an agreement between the parties means a written notice, request, consent, approval or agreement.

3 Period

- 3.1 This Agreement commences from the date signed by the Commonwealth specified in **Item 4** of **Schedule 1**.
- 3.2 Unless terminated earlier in accordance with clause 19 of this Agreement, the period of this Agreement will be the time specified in **Item 4** of **Schedule 1**.
- 3.3. For the purpose of Migration Regulation 457.511, the end of the period specified for a Subclass 457 visa granted pursuant to this Agreement, will be
 - (a) in the case of a holder who is in Australia at the time of grant to remain in Australia for a period of not more than four (4) years from the date of grant; and
 - (b) in the case of a holder who is outside Australia at the time of grant to remain in Australia for a period of not more than four (4) years from the date of entry that is specified by the Minister.

4 Pre-contractual representations

4.1 The Approved Sponsor warrants that information supplied to the Commonwealth with respect to the Approved Sponsor being a fit and proper person to enter into this Agreement and upon which the Commonwealth relied, was true and correct.

Sponsorship and nomination of overseas workers

5 On-hire prohibited

- 5.1 On-hire is prohibited under this Agreement. Specifically:
 - (a) the Approved Sponsor must not nominate a proposed occupation for a Nominee, for On-hire;
 - (b) any such nominations will not be approved under this Agreement; and
 - (c) the Approved Sponsor must not utilise the services of a visa-holder engaged pursuant to a nomination under this Agreement, for On-hire.

6 Labour market need

6.1 The Approved Sponsor must take all reasonable steps to ensure it recruits suitably skilled Australians who are available before nominating a Nominee under this Agreement.

Released by Department of Home Affairs under the Freedom of Information Act 1982

Freedom of Information Act Depar 2 Released er the

PART A – Subclass 457

7 **Nomination**

- 7.1 A nomination under this Part means a nomination referred to in section 140GB of the Migration
- 7.2 The Approved Sponsor acknowledges the general requirements of the Subclass 457 visa programme and agrees that Primary Sponsored Persons engaged through this Agreement may only be engaged in occupations, and with concessions referred to in Schedules 3 and 4.
- The Approved Sponsor may only nominate Nominees for: 7.3
 - (a) Occupations and Concessions outlined in Schedule 3 and 4; and
 - up to the Ceiling Number specified in Schedule 3; and (b)
 - an Occupation to be performed in a location listed in Item 1 of Schedule 3. (c)
- The Approved Sponsor will ensure that the number of nominations made under this Agreement 7.4 in the occupations listed in **Schedule 3** does not exceed:
 - the Ceiling Number identified in Schedule 3; or (a)
 - where one or more ceiling numbers have been approved by a subsequent variation, the (b) most recently approved Ceiling Number.
- The Approved Sponsor acknowledges that the Minister may, in his/her absolute discretion: 7.5
 - vary the Ceiling Numbers up or down; (a)
 - vary the Concessions; (b)
 - vary the Occupations. (c)
- In addition to the information specified in the Migration Regulations, the Approved Sponsor 7.6 must provide written certification that the Nominee:
 - has the commensurate qualifications and experience in relation to the nominated (a) occupation as specified in Item 2 of Schedule 3;
 - unless varied in accordance with Item 4 of Schedule 3, (b)
 - has undertaken a test of English language proficiency and achieved the score specified for the relevant test in the instrument made under paragraph
 - ii.
 - specified for the relevant test in the instrument made under paragraph
 457.223(4)(eb) of the Migration Regulations; or
 is the current holder of a valid passport issued by:

 A. Canada; or

 B. New Zealand; or

 C. the Republic of Ireland; or

 D. the United Kingdom; or

 E. the United States of America; or
 has completed at least five (5) years of full-time study in a secondary and/or higher education institution where instruction was conducted in English; or iii. education institution where instruction was conducted in English; or
 - will be paid a Base Rate of Pay which is at least the level of salary worked out in iv. the way specified in the instrument made under paragraph 457.223(6)(a) of the Migration Regulations;
 - will, when engaged under this Agreement, hold any licence, registration and /or (c) membership that is required by Australian law to perform the Nominee's nominated occupation.

- 7.7 In addition to the information specified in the Migration Regulations, the Approved Sponsor must demonstrate, through written evidence, at nomination, that the Nominee will:
 - (a) be engaged full time and will receive terms and conditions of employment which are no less favourable than the terms or conditions of employment that are, or would be provided, to an Australian performing equivalent work in the Approved Sponsor's workplace at the same location, and
 - (b) receive a Base Rate of Pay, under the terms and conditions of employment referred to in clause 7.7 (a) that is equal to or greater than the TSMIT, unless varied in **Item 3** of **Schedule 3**.
- 7.8 Where no Australian is performing equivalent work in the Approved Sponsor's workplace at the same location, the Approved Sponsor must, in addition to the information specified in the Migration Regulations, demonstrate through written evidence, at nomination that:
 - (a) the Nominee will be engaged on a full-time basis; and
 - (b) the terms and conditions of employment received by the Nominee will be no less favourable than that paid to an Australian performing equivalent work; and
 - (c) the Nominee will receive a Base Rate of Pay, under the terms and conditions of employment referred to in clause 7.8 (b) that is equal to or greater than TSMIT, unless varied in **Item 3** of **Schedule 3**.
- 7.9 In addition to the information in the Migration Regulations, the Approved Sponsor must provide written certification; that the following information provided in support of a nomination application, is true and correct:
 - (a) that the Approved Sponsor has taken all reasonable steps to ensure it recruits suitably skilled Australians, before engaging Primary Sponsored Persons under this Agreement; and
 - (b) that the tasks of the position include a significant majority of the tasks of the nominated occupation as described in ANZSCO, unless varied in **Schedule 4**; and
 - (c) that the Nominee will complete a skills assessment where:
 - i. such is required in accordance with the standard subclass 457 visa programme as prescribed in the Migration Legislation; or
 - ii. where the Minister specified that a skills assessment is required in **Item 1** of **Schedule 5**.
- 7.10 The Approved Sponsor must comply with any additional requirements for nomination that are stipulated by the Minister in **Item 1** of **Schedule 5**.

8 Approval of nominations

- 8.1 The Minister will approve nominations in accordance with the Migration Legislation.
- 8.2 The Minister will notify the Approved Sponsor of a decision on the nomination application.
- 8.3 The period of an approval of a nomination will be in accordance with the Migration Legislation.

9 Sponsorship obligations

- 9.1 The Approved Sponsor must satisfy its sponsorship obligations in Division 2.19 of Part 2A of the Migration Regulations and in Migration Legislation.
- 9.2 The Approved Sponsor is specifically required to meet the following obligations in the Migration Regulations and as varied, if at all, in **Schedule 6**, as follows:
 - (a) to cooperate with inspectors (Regulation 2.78);
 - (b) to ensure equivalent terms and conditions of employment (Regulation 2.79);

- (c) to pay travel costs to enable sponsored persons to leave Australia (Regulation 2.80);
- (d) to pay costs incurred by the Commonwealth to locate and remove unlawful non-citizen (Regulation 2.81);
- (e) to keep records (Regulation 2.82);
- (f) to provide records and information to the Minister (Regulation 2.83);
- (g) to provide information to the Minister when certain events occur (Regulation 2.84);
- (h) to ensure a Primary Sponsored Person does not work in an occupation other than an approved occupation (Regulation 2.86);
- (i) not to recover certain costs (Regulation 2.87).
- 9.3 The Approved Sponsor must meet the following additional obligations which are imposed in accordance with subsection 140.H(3) of the Migration Act:
 - (a) ensure that every Primary Sponsored Person engaged under this Agreement holds any licence, registration and/or membership that is required by Australian law to perform the Primary Sponsored Person's approved occupation (the occupation listed in the most recently approved nomination);
 - (b) as at the commencement date provide information to the Commonwealth that is true and correct with respect to matters dealt with in this Agreement and/or matters relevant to the Approved Sponsor's sponsorship of Primary Sponsored Persons pursuant to this Agreement;
 - (c) pay wages and salary directly to the Primary Sponsored Person;
 - (d) ensure all Primary Sponsored Persons are engaged on a full-time basis and will receive terms and conditions of employment which are no less favourable than the terms and conditions of employment that are, or would be, provided to an Australian performing equivalent work in the Approved Sponsor's workplace at the same location;
 - (e) ensure any payments (including, but not limited to, repayments of salary advances made to the Primary Sponsored Person at the discretion of the Approved Sponsor) deducted from the Primary Sponsored Person's salary may only be made with the consent and written permission of the Primary Sponsored Person and must be consistent with Workplace Laws and the requirements of the relevant award; and
 - (f) any other additional obligations specified in **Item 10** of **Schedule 6**.
- 9.4 The obligation in paragraph 9.3(a) is applicable and commences when the Primary Sponsored Person commences his or her employment or engagement with the Approved Sponsor, and ends on the earlier of:
 - (a) the day on which the Primary Sponsored Person is granted a further substantive visa that:
 - i. is not a Subclass 457 visa; and
 - ii. is in effect; and
 - (b) the day on which the Primary Sponsored Person ceases employment or engagement with the Approved Sponsor.
- 9.5 The obligations in paragraphs 9.3(c), (d), (e) and (f) commence and end in accordance with subregulation 2.79(4) of the Migration Regulations.
- 9.6 The Approved Sponsor must comply with Workplace law.

PART B - Subclass 186

10 Nominations

10.1 A nomination under this Part means a nomination referred to in Migration Regulations for a

- permanent residence visa specified in Item 5 of Schedule 3.
- 10.2 The Approved Sponsor acknowledges the general requirements for permanent residence and agrees that Primary Sponsored Persons engaged through this Agreement may only be engaged in occupations, and with concessions referred to in **Schedules 3** and **4**.
- 10.3 The Approved Sponsor may only nominate Nominees for:
 - (a) occupations as specified in Item 1 of Schedule 3;
 - (b) up to the ceiling number specified in Schedule 3
 - (c) an occupation to be performed in a location listed in Item 1 of Schedule 3.
- 10.4 The Approved Sponsor will ensure that the number of nominations made under this Agreement in the occupations listed in **Schedule 3** does not exceed:
 - (a) the Ceiling Number identified in Schedule 3; or
 - (b) where one or more ceiling numbers have been approved by a subsequent variation, the most recently approved Ceiling Number.
- 10.5 The Approved Sponsor acknowledges that the Minister may, in his/her absolute discretion:
 - (a) vary the Ceiling Numbers up or down;
 - (b) vary the Concessions;
 - (c) vary the Occupations.
- 10.6 The Approved Sponsor must make nominations in accordance with the approved forms and form 1395 (elodgment nomination form).
- 10.7 The Approved Sponsor must provide, as part of the nomination:
 - (a) the information required in the Migration Regulations;
 - (b) the fee specified in the Migration Regulations.
- 10.8 The Commonwealth may refund the fee in accordance with the circumstances for such a refund in the Migration Regulations.
- 10.9 The Approved Sponsor must comply with any additional requirements for a permanent residence nomination that is stipulated by the Minister in **Item 2** of **Schedule 5**.
- 10.10 The Approved Sponsor may only nominate a Nominee who:
 - (a) has the commensurate qualifications and experience in relation to the nominated occupation as specified in **Item 2** of **Schedule 3**;
 - (b) unless varied in accordance with Item 4 of Schedule 3:
 - i. has undertaken a test of English language proficiency and achieved the score specified for the relevant test in the instrument made under paragraph 186.222(a) of the Migration Regulations; or
 - ii. is a class of person who is specified in an instrument made under paragraph 186.222(b) of the Migration Regulations as being exempt from the English language requirement;
 - (c) has not turned 50 years of age at time of nomination, unless varied in **Item 5** of **Schedule 3**; and
 - (d) has been employed under a subclass 457 visa for the previous three (3) years and six (6) months in the occupations specified in **Item 1** of **Schedule 3**;
 - (e) holds any licence, registration and/or membership that is required by Australian law to perform the Nominee's nominated occupation.
- 10.11 The Approved Sponsor must demonstrate, through written evidence, at nomination, that the Nominee will:

- (a) be engaged full time and will receive terms and conditions of employment which are no less favourable than the terms or conditions of employment that are, or would be provided, to an Australian performing equivalent work in the Approved Sponsor's workplace at the same location, and
- (b) receive a Base Rate of Pay, under the terms and conditions of employment referred to in clause 10.11 (a) that is equal to or greater than the TSMIT, unless varied in **Item 3** of **Schedule 3**.
- 10.12 Where no Australian is performing equivalent work in the Approved Sponsor's workplace at the same location, the Approved Sponsor must, in addition to the information specified in the Migration Regulations, demonstrate through written evidence, at nomination that:
 - (a) the Nominee will be engaged on a full-time basis; and
 - (b) the terms and conditions of employment received by the Nominee will be no less favourable than that paid to an Australian performing equivalent work; and
 - (c) the Nominee will receive a Base Rate of Pay, under the terms and conditions of employment referred to in clause 10.12 (b) that is equal to or greater than TSMIT, unless varied in **Item 3** of **Schedule 3**.
- 10.13 The Approved Sponsor must provide written certification that the following information provided in support of a nomination application, is true and correct:
 - (a) that the tasks of the position include a significant majority of the tasks of the nominated occupation as described in ANZSCO, unless varied in **Schedule 4**;
 - (b) that the position will be ongoing for at least two (2) years.
- 10.14 The Approved Sponsor must comply with any additional requirements for nomination that are stipulated by the Minister in **Item 2** of **Schedule 5**.

11 Approval of nominations

- 11.1 The Minister will approve nominations in accordance with this Agreement, including any requirements specified in **Item 2** of **Schedule 5**.
- 11.2 The Minister will notify the Approved Sponsor of a decision on the nomination application.
- 11.3 The period of an approval of a nomination will be in accordance with the Migration Legislation.

PART C: Other provisions

12 Training and recruitment of Australian workers

- 12.1 The Approved Sponsor must comply with the training and recruitment obligations outlined in **Schedule 2**.
- 12.2 The Approved Sponsor may carry out the training obligations itself or through contracted service providers.
- 12.3 The Approved Sponsor warrants that the training provided will be fit for any purpose express implied.

13 Supporting Primary Sponsored Persons

- 13.1 The Approved Sponsor will be responsible for ensuring that all Primary Sponsored Persons engaged under this Agreement are supplied with workplace rights information.
- 13.2 The information referred to in clause 13.1 should be provided within seven (7) days of the date the Primary Sponsored Person commences employment in the nominated Occupation with the Approved Sponsor.

14 Reporting obligations

- 14.1 Unless varied in **Schedule 7**:
 - (a) the Approved Sponsor must provide a report to the Department within 30 days following a request by the Minister or when requesting a variation to **Schedule 3**;
 - (b) the report must include:
 - i. updated Workforce Plans; and
 - ii. evidence of efforts to recruit domestically, using the template provided in **Schedule 8**; and
 - iii. evidence of the Base Rate of Pay as defined at **Item 3** of **Schedule 3**, for Primary Sponsored Persons; and
 - iv. evidence of compliance with the training obligations defined in Schedule 2; and
 - v. details of any breaches of immigration or other Commonwealth or State laws; and
 - vi. the dates and numbers and occupations of any and all Australian workers who have been retrenched or made redundant in the past 12 month period; and
 - vii. any additional information requested by the Minister.

15 Monitoring

- 15.1 The Minister may, from time to time, audit the Approved Sponsor's performance of its obligations in this Agreement and the Approved Sponsor will cooperate with the Minister for the purpose of such audits.
- 15.2 Without limiting the generality of the preceding clause, the Approved Sponsor will:
 - (a) liaise with and provide information and assistance to the Minister as reasonably required by the Minister for the purposes of such audits;
 - (b) comply with the Minister's reasonable requests or requirements for the purposes of such audits.
- 15.3 Unless specified otherwise in the Migration Legislation, the Approved Sponsor will retain all records generated for the purposes of this Agreement for seven (7) years from the date of expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Miscellaneous Provisions

16 Relationship between the parties

- 16.1 Nothing in this Agreement:
 - (a) constitutes a partnership between the parties; or
 - (b) except as expressly provided, makes a party an agent of another party for any purpose.
- 16.2 A party cannot in any way or for any purpose:
 - (a) bind another party; or

- 16.3 If a party must fulfil an obligation and that party is dependent on another party, then that other party must do each thing reasonably within its power to assist the other in the performance of that obligation.16.4 If the Approved Sponsor is constituted by more than one legal entity (such as a partnership or
- 16.4 If the Approved Sponsor is constituted by more than one legal entity (such as a partnership or an unincorporated association), each of those legal entities will be jointly and severally liable for the performance of all of the Approved Sponsor's obligations under this Agreement.

17 Confidential information and information sharing

contract in the name of another party.

(b)

- 17.1 If a party's information is specified as Confidential Information in **Item 5** of **Schedule 1**, the other party will not disclose the information without the first party's prior written consent, except when disclosure of the information is required by law, statutory or portfolio duties, or in accordance with clause 17.3 of this Agreement.
- 17.2 The Approved Sponsor must comply with any reasonable request by the Commonwealth for information to enable the Commonwealth to meet its obligations in this Agreement.
- 17.3 The Approved Sponsor consents to information concerning it which is relevant to the operation of this Agreement being shared by the Minister with:
 - (a) State or Territory government agencies in the State or Territory in which the Approved Sponsor conducts business, where those agencies have regulatory or other relevant interests in the operation of this Agreement;
 - (b) Commonwealth agencies with regulatory or other relevant interests in the operation of this Agreement.
- 17.4 The Approved Sponsor will allow the disclosure of information related to this Agreement for various reporting and Commonwealth disclosure obligations. These disclosures include:
 - (a) disclosure of procurement information for the Department's annual reporting purposes;
 - (b) disclosure to the Parliament and its committees, as appropriate, in line with the Government Guidelines for Official Witnesses before Parliamentary Committees and Related Matters;
 - (c) disclosure of information consistent with the Freedom of Information Act 1982 (Cth);
 - (d) disclosure of discoverable information that is relevant to a case before a court; and
 - (e) disclosure of information as required under other legislation or Commonwealth policy.
- 17.5 Clause 17.3 survives the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

18 Suspension

- 18.1 The Minister may, in his/her absolute discretion, suspend this Agreement in whole or in part.
- 18.2 The Approved Sponsor and other third parties are not entitled to any compensation or payment as a result of the Minister suspending this Agreement under clause 18.1.
- 18.3 Where the Minister suspends this Agreement in accordance with clause 18.1 the Minister will notify the Approved Sponsor in writing.
- 18.4 For the avoidance of doubt, where the Minister notifies that this Agreement has been suspended in accordance with clause 18.3, the suspension shall take effect at the time the notice is taken be received by the Approved Sponsor, in accordance with clause 27.
- 18.5 Where the Minister suspends this Agreement in accordance with clause 18.1, the Minister may, in determining the order for considering and disposing of nomination applications and visa applications, give the lowest priority to applications made under this Agreement.

- 18.6 After a period of suspension, the Minister may, at his/her absolute discretion, choose to resume this Agreement by notifying the Approved Sponsor in writing.
- 18.7 Where the Minister chooses to resume this Agreement in accordance with clause 18.6 and notifies the Approved Sponsor, the Agreement will resume at the time the notice is taken to be received, in accordance with clause 27.
- 18.8 For the avoidance of doubt, any period of suspension will have no impact on and will not amend the period of this Agreement. The period of this Agreement will remain as specified in **Item 4** of **Schedule 1**.

19 Termination

- 19.1 The Minister may, in his/her absolute discretion, terminate this Agreement at any time including for reasons of public interest where there is a change in policy or a change in government which results in a change in policy settings.
- 19.2 The Approved Sponsor will not be entitled to any compensation or payments as a result of the Minister terminating this Agreement under clause 19.1.
- 19.3 Otherwise, if the Minister contends that the Approved Sponsor is in default under this Agreement, the Minister may, without prejudice to any right of action or remedy which has accrued or which may accrue (including the Minister's entitlement to terminate in accordance with clause 19.6):
 - (a) suspend this Agreement in whole or in part; and
 - (b) serve notice on the Approved Sponsor, advising that this Agreement is suspended and requiring the Approved Sponsor to rectify to the satisfaction of the Minister, those aspects of the Approved Sponsor's performance which are of concern to the Commonwealth; or
 - (c) terminate this Agreement without prejudice to any right of action or remedy which has accrued or which may accrue.
- 19.4 If the Approved Sponsor is in breach of a sponsorship obligation in the Migration Regulations the Approved Sponsor will be taken to be in default under this Agreement as if the statutory obligation was a contractual obligation of the Approved Sponsor.
- 19.5 For the avoidance of doubt, a breach of the Approved Sponsor's warranty given in clause 4.1 with respect to pre-contractual information, will entitle the Minister to suspend this Agreement and serve a notice under clause 19.3 and/or to take any other contractual redress in accordance with this Agreement.
- 19.6 A party may, in its discretion, terminate this Agreement early by giving 28 days' notice to the other party, whereupon this Agreement will be terminated with effect 28 days after the notice of termination is served. A party serving a notice of termination under this sub-clause:
 - (a) need not specify a reason for serving the notice;
 - (b) may withdraw the notice before the 28 days have elapsed; and
 - (c) will not be liable to compensate the other party for costs or damages that may arise from the early termination.
- 19.7 For the avoidance of doubt if this Agreement is terminated for any reason, or for no reason:
 - (a) the Approved Sponsor's approval as a sponsor for the purposes of this Agreement will thereby be automatically terminated; and
 - (b) visas granted pursuant to this Agreement will be subject to the operation of the Migration Legislation.

19.8 A waiver by a party in respect of any breach of a condition or provision of this Agreement will not be deemed to be a waiver in respect of any continuing or subsequent breach of that provision, or breach of any other provision. The failure of a party to enforce at any time any of the provisions of this Agreement will in no way be interpreted as a waiver of such provision.

20 Sanctions

- 20.1 Instead of terminating this Agreement:
 - (a) the Commonwealth may, in its discretion bar the Approved Sponsor, for a specified period, from making further nominations under this Agreement, or
 - (b) the Minister may, in his or her absolute discretion, give the lowest processing priority to nomination applications and visa applications made under this Agreement.
- 20.2 The Commonwealth may, in its discretion, instead of terminating this Agreement or in addition to terminating this Agreement, take action against the Approved Sponsor for a breach of contract to recover damages and/or for injunctive relief.
- 20.3 The Commonwealth may, in its discretion, instead of taking any enforcement action under this Agreement or in addition to taking such enforcement action, pursue a civil penalty under the Migration Legislation for failing to satisfy a sponsorship obligation.

21 Dispute resolution

- 21.1 The Parties will deal with any dispute arising during the course of this Agreement as follows:
 - (a) the party claiming that there is a dispute must notify the other party of the dispute;
 - (b) the parties will use reasonable endeavours to resolve the dispute by direct negotiation;
 - (c) the parties must allow 28 days from notification of the dispute to reach a resolution or to agree to refer the dispute to mediation in accordance with, and subject to, The Institute of Arbitrators and Mediators Australia Mediation Rules or some other form of alternative dispute resolution procedure agreed to in writing by the Parties; and
 - (d) in the event that:
 - i. the Parties have attended mediation, or some other form of alternative dispute resolution procedure; and
 - ii. no written settlement agreement is executed within 15 Business Days (or such extended time as the Parties may agree in writing before the expiration of the 15 Business days) of the conclusion of the mediation or some other form of alternative dispute resolution procedure

then either Party may commence legal proceedings or terminate this Agreement.

21.2 The Parties acknowledge that the Migration Review Tribunal and Administrative Appeals
Tribunal may have jurisdiction to review decisions in relation to nomination applications and
visa applications made under this Agreement. This Agreement does not abrogate any rights of
merits review by the Migration Review Tribunal or the Administrative Appeals Tribunal.

22 Assurances, counterparts and assignment

- 22.1 Each party must promptly execute all documents and do all other things reasonably necessary desirable to give effect to the arrangements recorded in this Agreement.
- 22.2 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts.
- 22.3 A party cannot assign or otherwise transfer its rights under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party.

23 Variation and entire agreement

- Unless otherwise specified in this Deed, a provision of this Agreement can only be varied by a written document executed by or on behalf of all parties.
- 23.2 The contents of this Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the parties and supersede any prior negotiations, representations, understandings or arrangements made between the parties regarding the subject matter of this Agreement, whether orally or in writing.

24 Fettering and publishing

- 24.1 Nothing in this Agreement fetters or detracts from the Commonwealth's discretions, functions or powers under the Migration Legislation, Workplace law or other relevant Commonwealth laws.
- 24.2 In the event the Commonwealth has published an outline of this Agreement, the published outline is an invitation to treat with prospective sponsors and is not an offer to enter into contractual relations with any such sponsor on the basis of the published outline.
- 24.3 The Commonwealth may grant or refuse to grant consent, in its absolute discretion, to any application by the Approved Sponsor for consent to a change in control of the Approved Sponsor that may be inimical to the Approved Sponsor's capacity to perform its obligations under this Agreement, and the Commonwealth may attach such conditions on a consent as the Commonwealth sees fit.

25 Legal expenses

- 25.1 Each party must pay its own legal costs and disbursements in connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution and carrying into effect of this Agreement.
- 25.2 The Approved Sponsor must pay any stamp duty assessed on or in relation to this Agreement and any instrument or transaction required by or necessary to give effect to this Agreement.

26 Survival after termination

26.1 Any provision of this Agreement which expressly or by implication from its nature is intended to survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement and any rights arising on termination or expiration will survive, including Confidential Information, and the Approved Sponsor's sponsorship obligations.

27 Notices

- 27.1 Any notice, demand, consent or other communication given or made under this Agreement:
 - (a) must be clearly readable;
 - (b) must, unless it is sent by email, be signed by the party giving or making it (or signed on behalf of that party by its authorised representative);
 - (c) must, unless it is sent by email, be left at the Address or sent by pre-paid security post (ai mail if outside Australia) to the Business Address of the recipient; and
 - (d) may be sent by email to the receiving party's Email Account.
- 27.2 A notice to be served on the Commonwealth will be taken to be served if it is served on the Department's address in **Item 1** of **Schedule 1**.
- 27.3 A party may change its Business Address, Postal Address or Email Account for the purpose of service by giving notice of that change to the other party in accordance with clause 27.1.

- 27.4 Any communication will be taken to be received by the recipient:
 - in the case of a letter, on the third (seventh, if sent outside the country in which the letter is posted) Business Day after the date of posting;
 - in the case of an email, at the end of the day in which the email is transmitted. (b)

Governing law and jurisdiction 28

- The laws applicable in the Australian Capital Territory govern this Agreement.
- The parties submit to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Australian Capital Territory and any courts competent to hear appeals from those courts.

29 **Indemnity**

- The Approved Sponsor agrees to indemnify the Minister from and against any: 29.1
 - cost or liability incurred by the Minister; or (a)
 - loss or expense incurred by the Minister in dealing with any claim against it including (b) legal costs and expenses on a solicitor/own client basis and the cost of time spent, resources used or disbursements paid by the Minister,

arising from:

- any act or omission by the Approved Sponsor or its Personnel in connection with this (c) Agreement; or
- any breach by the Approved Sponsor of its obligations or warranties under this (d) Agreement;

irrespective of whether there was fault on the part of the person whose conduct gave rise to that liability, loss or damage, or loss or expense.

- The Approved Sponsor's liability to indemnify the Minister under clause 29.1 will be reduced proportionately to the extent that any breach of this Agreement by the Minister or any act or omission involving fault on the part of the Minister contributed to the relevant cost, liability, loss, damage, or expense.
- The right of the Minister to be indemnified under clause 29.1 is in addition to, and not exclusive of, any other right, power or remedy provided by law, but the Minister is not entitled to be compensated in excess of the amount of the relevant cost, liability, loss, damage, or expense.
- 29.4 In clause 29.1:
 - (a)
- y other right, power or remedy provided by law, but the Minister is not entitled to be ensated in excess of the amount of the relevant cost, liability, loss, damage, or expense. use 29.1:

 "the Minister" includes officers, employees and agents of the Minister; and
 "Personnel" means a party's officers, employees, agents, contract staff or professional advisers engaged in, or in relation to, the performance or management of this Agreement are 29.1 will survive six (6) years from the expiration or termination of this Agreement.
- 29.5 Clause 29.1 will survive six (6) years from the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Information Act 1982 Freedom of er the

Schedule 1 Particulars

Item 1

Commonwealth Particulars

Name:

Department of Immigration and Border Protection

Address:

6 Chan Street, BELCONNEN ACT 2617

Telephone Number:

s22(1)(a)(ii)

Email Address:

Contact officer:

Director, Labour Agreement Section

Item 2

The Approved Sponsor's Particulars

Name:

Roverworth Pty Ltd ATF The Roverworth Trust

ACN:

112 266 421

ABN:

Business structure:

Trustee (Australian Proprietary company) for trust

Business Address:

302 Grantham Scrub Road, VERADILLA QLD 4347

Postal Address:

Telephone Number:

s47F

Email Address:

Contact officer:

The Approved Sponsor's Business

Business Undertaking:

Meat Processing

Industry segment:

Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing

Item 4

Item 3

Commencement and period

Effective Date:

The date signed by the Commonwealth.

Cease Date:

Five (5) years from 15 May 2014

Item 5

Commercial-in-Confidence Information

Party:

The Department of Immigration and Border Protection on behalf of

the Commonwealth

Roverworth Pty Ltd ATF The Roverworth Trust

The terms of this Agreement

All information provided to request and secure access to a Labour

Agreement

Schedule 2 Training and recruitment obligations

- 1. The Approved Sponsor must, throughout the term of this agreement, demonstrate a commitment to the provision of employment, training and career progression opportunities to Australians through compliance with this Schedule.
- 2. It is an obligation of the Agreement that the Approved Sponsor must undertake recruitment activities which afford Australians the first opportunity for employment, prior to nomination of positions covered by this Agreement.
- 3. It is an obligation of this Agreement that the Approved Sponsor must, over the term of each Year of the Agreement, ensure that:
 - (a) payments equivalent to at least two (2) per cent of the gross payroll of the Approved Sponsor are made to an industry training fund that operates in the same industry as the Approved Sponsor; or
 - (b) payments equivalent to at least one (1) per cent of the gross payroll of the Approved Sponsor are made for the provision of structured training for the Australian employees of the Approved Sponsor.
- 4. Expenditure that may count towards training expenditure for the purposes of this Agreement is outlined in Legislative Instrument IMMI 13/030, as varied from time to time.

Schedule 3 Occupations; Ceiling numbers; Location; Qualifications and Experience; and other Concessions covered by this Agreement

Item 1 Occupations, Ceiling Numbers, and Location

Occupation	ANZSCO	Ceiling numbers of Primary Sponsored Persons : subclass 457				Location of Work	Ceilin	Ceiling numbers of Primary Sponsored Persons : subclass 186				
		Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5		Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5
Skilled Meat Worker	070-299	. 47										

- The Minister may vary the ceiling number and occupation at any time.
- Before the subsequent years of the term of operation commence, the Approved Sponsor may request a ceiling for the subsequent year. The Commonwealth reserves the right to make the final decision as to the ceiling for each year of the Agreement.

Qualifications and Experience: Item 2

The Approved Sponsor may only nominate a nominee who holds the following qualifications and experience:

Skilled Meat Worker (code 070-299 – (occupation unknown)) who:

- has been assessed and verified by a MINTRAC registered assessor, or an assessor approved by the Commonwealth, with a Certificate IV in Training and Assessment experienced in meat processing, to be Skilled Meat Workers with a minimum skill level commensurate with the MINTRAC referenced AOF Certificate III in meat processing; and
- either:
- demonstrates a minimum of three (3) years skilled work experience obtained at a meat processing establishment acceptable to the Parties; or has been working in Australia on a Subclass 457 visa at an Australian Meat Processing Establishment acceptable to the Parties for at least nine (9) months prior to being nominated.

 Page | 22 of 32

Item 3 Concessions to TSMIT

Clauses 7.7(b), 7.8(c), 10.8(b) and 10.8(c) are varied as follows:

The Nominee will be paid, under the terms and conditions of employment referred to in clauses 7.7(a), 7.8(b), 10.8(a) and 10.8(b) respectively, no less than the TSMIT. Payments that can be considered for the purpose of meeting the TSMIT include any payments that are provided for under the Relevant Industrial Instrument, or the Migration Regulations, excluding bonus payments and payments for all time worked outside the ordinary working hours (including overtime and shifts) on any day. Payments of worker's compensation benefits to Primary Sponsored Person as compensation for loss of ordinary earnings and payments that are based on activity levels can also be considered for the purpose of meeting the TSMIT.

Item 4 Concessions to English language requirement

- 1. Clause 7.6(b) is varied to include:
 - (a) has achieved a minimum average score of at least five (5) on an IELTS test with no minimum test score: or
 - (b) is a Primary Sponsored Person who was not required to meet English language levels under previous meat industry labour agreements or a Standard Business Sponsorship
- 2. Clause 10.10(b) is varied to include:
 - (a) has achieved a minimum average score of at least five (5) on an IELTS test with no minimum test score; or
 - (b) for subclass 457 visa holders **who were not required** to provide evidence of English language proficiency at the time of grant of their subclass 457 visa, has completed, and provides evidence as prescribed in the Migration Regulations for meeting functional English..

Item 5 Concessions to age requirement (permanent residence)

Nil

Schedule 4 Concessions to tasks of occupations in ANZSCO

The duties and tasks of a skilled meat worker reflect the duties and tasks referenced by a National Meat Industry Training Advisory Council (MINTRAC) Certificate III. A skilled meat worker cannot be employed in a labouring position or undertake labouring or unskilled duties other than to the extent of circumstances prescribed below.

Tasks of a skilled meat worker, which include the duties of ANZSCO occupations Slaughterer and Meat Boner and Slicer, are:

- stuns and kills livestock, and prepares carcasses for further processing by removing internal organs and hides;
- operating switching controls to direct and drop carcasses and meat cuts from supply rails to boning tables;
- cutting meat to separate meat, fat and tissue from around bones;
- washing, scraping and trimming foreign material and blood from meat;
- cutting sides and quarters of meat into standard meat cuts, such as rumps, flanks and shoulders, and removing internal fat, blood clots, bruises and other matter to prepare them for packing and marketing;
- operating restrainer and stunning equipment;
- severing jugular veins of stunned animals to drain blood and facilitate dressing;
- trimming and removing head meat and severing animal heads;
- slitting open, eviscerating and trimming animal carcasses; and
- may slaughter livestock according to procedures required by religious customs.

Schedule 5 Additional requirements for nomination

Item 1 Subclass 457

The Approved Sponsor must meet the following requirements to the Commonwealth's satisfaction before a nomination will be approved:

- 1. The Approved Sponsor has attested as part of the nomination, in writing, that it has a strong record of, or a demonstrated commitment to employing local labour, and non-discriminatory employment practices.
- 2. The Approved Sponsor has certified as part of the nomination, in writing, that it has not:
 - i. permanently terminated the employment of not more than five percent of its Australia workforce at the Meat Processing Establishment approved under this Agreement (except in circumstances of demonstrated misconduct or unlawful conduct) within a period of three (3) months prior to the date of the nomination application; and
 - ii. stood down its workforce at the Meat Processing Establishment approved under this Agreement for more than seven (7) consecutive days at any single given time over a three (3) month period prior to the date of the nomination application; and
 - iii. reduced the shifts of its workforce at the Meat Processing Establishment approved under this Agreement to less than 50 per cent of the regular shift quota within a period of three (3) months prior to the date of the nomination application.
- 3. The requirement to make a certification does not apply if the Commonwealth is satisfied that compelling circumstances exist (for example, a natural disaster) which warrant the Approved Sponsor undertaking any of the actions outlined in Schedule 5, Item 1, Clause 2.
- 4. The Approved Sponsor must only make a nomination application in respect of a nominee that would work directly for them at a Meat Processing Establishment.
- 5. The Sponsor must provide evidence of labour market testing for skilled meat worker vacancies for the nominated occupation.

Item 2: Subclass 186

- 1. The Approved Sponsor may only nominate a Primary Sponsored Person who has been employed as a Primary 457 visa holder in the nominated occupation, for at least three (3) years and six (6) months before the nomination is made, and
- 2. The Approved Sponsor must only make a nomination application in respect of a Primary Sponsored Person that would work directly for them at a Meat Processing Establishment.

Schedule 6 Variation of sponsorship obligations2

Item 1 Obligation to cooperate with inspectors

The obligation in regulation 2.78 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 2 Obligation to ensure equivalent terms and conditions of employment

The obligation in regulation 2.79 of the Migration Regulations applies and, in accordance with subsection 140H(2) of the Migration Act, is varied in the following way:

Subregulation 2.79 (3A) does not apply, and the following applies:

- 1. The Primary Sponsored Person will be paid no less than the TSMIT over an Annual Salary period. Payments that can be considered for the purpose of meeting the TSMIT include any payments that are provided for under the Relevant Industrial Instrument, or the Migration Regulations, excluding bonus payments and payments for all time worked outside the ordinary working hours (including overtime and shifts) on any day. Payments of worker's compensation benefits to Primary Sponsored Person as compensation for loss of ordinary earnings and payments that are based on activity levels can also be considered for the purpose of meeting the TSMIT.
- 2. Where a Primary Sponsored Person is not provided with work for a period of time, whether because of a Stand Down, insufficient work or any other reason, the Approved Sponsor must pay the Primary Sponsored Person as follows³:
 - (a) if the Primary Sponsored Person is not provided with work for any period within a fortnight, and the Primary Sponsored Person does not earn an amount equal to one-half (50%) of the fortnightly TSMIT amount, then the Approved Sponsor must pay to the Primary Sponsored Person the difference between the amount actually earned and one-half (50%) of the fortnightly TSMIT amount;
 - (b) if the Primary Sponsored Person is not provided with work for a period greater than a fortnight, then the Approved Sponsor must pay to the Primary Sponsored Person an amount equal to one-half (50%) of the fortnightly TSMIT amount for the length of the Stand Down and to pay any shortfall of TSMIT calculated over an Annual Salary period ('Top up');
 - (c) A Top up payment will generally be made on an annual basis. However, where Primary Sponsored Person not being provided with work has resulted in the payment to a Primary Sponsored Person of less than the pro-rata TSMIT in three consecutive months, then the Commonwealth reserves the right to request that the Sponsor pay the Top up for that three month period at any time, and any balance owing for the period of time for which the Primary Sponsored Person was not provided with work, calculated over an Annual Salary period, at a later date as determined by the Commonwealth.
- 3. All other terms and conditions of this Agreement should be consistent with the Relevant Industrial Instrument. The Approved Sponsor must meet all their obligations under the Relevant Industrial Instrument and applicable Workplace law. To the extent that the Agreement provides additional benefits to the Primary Sponsored Person as an employee it operates in conjunction with the Relevant Industrial Instrument and applicable Workplace Law.

Roverworth Pty Ltd ATF The Roverworth Trust January 2016

² A summary of sponsorship obligations can be found at: http://www.border.gov.au/Trav/Visa-1/457-

³ If sufficient work for the Primary Sponsored Person to be engaged on a full-time and ongoing basis is not available for an extended period of time, Approved Sponsors should consider whether the Primary Sponsored Person should continue to be employed.

Item 3 Obligation to pay travel costs to enable sponsored persons to leave Australia

The obligation in regulation 2.80 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 4 Obligation to pay costs incurred by the Commonwealth to locate and remove unlawful non-citizens

The obligation in regulation 2.81 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 5 Obligation to keep records

The obligation in regulation 2.82 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 6 Obligation to provide records and information to the Minister

The obligation in regulation 2.83 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 7 Obligation to provide information to Immigration when certain events occur

The obligation in regulation 2.84 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 8 Obligation to ensure Primary Sponsored Person works or participates in nominated occupation, program or activity

The obligation in regulation 2.86 of the Migration Regulations applies and is varied in accordance with the following provisions:

- 1. The Approved Sponsor must ensure that the Primary Sponsored Persons are Skilled Meat Workers and that they will be employed only in skilled meat processing occupations except:
 - (a) where the Skilled Meat Worker is required to undertake suitable duties pursuant to the requirements of applicable Workers Compensation laws; or
 - (b) where the requirement is made for bona fide OH&S reasons to provide a worker with restricted duties consistent with existing medical opinion. The Meat Processing Company must notify the Commonwealth immediately if any period of restricted duties exceeds one week; or
 - (c) where a Skilled Meat Worker has completed his or her ordinary working hours, other duties outside of the 'Skilled Meat Worker' duties, including duties offered as part of Overtime, may be considered.

Item 9 Obligation not to recover, transfer or take actions that would result in another person paying for certain costs

The obligation in regulation 2.87 of the Migration Regulations applies and is varied in accordance with the following provisions. In addition to clause 7.87(1a), 7.57(1):

- 1. The Approved Sponsor cannot recover costs including but not limited to;
 - (a) the Approved Sponsor's recruitment costs;
 - (b) public health costs (or insurance to cover public health costs) for both Primary and Secondary Visa Holders where the visa grant was prior to 14 September 2009; and
 - (c) English language testing and/or training for Primary Sponsored Person;
- 2. Where the Approved Sponsor provides accommodation and/or board:
 - (a) it must not be compulsory for the Primary Sponsored Person to accept the accommodation and/or board;
 - (b) it can only be charged at a fair and reasonable market rate; and

- (c) charges for accommodation and/or board must satisfy the Commonwealth as being fair and reasonable and meet workplace laws;
- 3. The Approved Sponsor must only permit the Skilled Meat Workers to authorise the Approved Sponsor to make deductions from their gross salary where those authorised deductions are consistent with the Deductions Plan approved by the Commonwealth for that Approved Sponsor and is consistent with relevant State/Territory legislation and workplace laws;
- 4. The Approved Sponsor must be responsible for the costs incurred in accordance with **Schedule 6**, **Item 9 clause 1(c)**, as they relate to Primary Sponsored Person, and English language training to enable the Primary Sponsored Person to either achieve the English language level prescribed under clause 7.6 (b) or to complete a total of 500 actual hours of tuition in accredited English language training through an accredited training institution.

Item 10 Other sponsorship obligations

- 1. The Approved Sponsor must ensure that all Primary Sponsored Persons:
 - (a) are subject to integrity verification processes, including:
 - i. videotaping of the assessment undertaken; or
 - ii. where exceptional circumstances render videotaping impossible or impracticable; and a digital photograph of the Primary Sponsored Person submitted with the nomination and visa application. The Commonwealth may require the Approved Sponsor to provide evidence of the exceptional circumstances which render videotaping impossible or impracticable. Where the Commonwealth is not satisfied with the evidence the Approved Sponsor provides, the Commonwealth may impose conditions; and
 - (b) have skills and work experience as defined by Skilled Meat Worker, Schedule 3; and
 - (c) undergo induction training on arrival, which should cover specific processes, knowledge of equipment, production speed, OH&S requirements specific to the Meat Processing Establishment at which they are employed.
- 2. The Approved Sponsor must ensure that:
 - (a) for a Skilled Meat Worker who is the holder of a Subclass 457 visa and whose application for that visa was:
 - i. made and determined before 12 September 2009; or
 - ii. made on the basis that the employer was a Standard Business Sponsor;
 - (b) nominate the Skilled Meat Worker within 4 weeks of the effective date of this Agreement.
- 3. The Approved Sponsor must ensure that the integrity of the assessment process is maintained, including through:
 - (a) verifying within two (2) days of the Primary Sponsored Person's arrival that the Primary Visa Holder is the same person assessed in **Schedule 6**, **Item 10**, **Clause 2(a)** and in the digital photograph submitted with the nomination and visa application; and notifying the Commonwealth immediately of any inconsistency;
 - (b) notifying the Commonwealth within one (1) month of the Primary Sponsored Person's arrival where a Primary Visa Holder does not meet the requirements and, if those requirements are not met, proposing remedial action to the Commonwealth;

- (c) complying with any Commonwealth request for the Approved Sponsor to obtain at the Approved Sponsor's expense an independent audit, by an independent authority specified by the Commonwealth, such as use the services of any assessor associated with a skills assessment failure; and
- (d) reassessing any Primary Sponsored Person assessed by an assessor associated with a skills assessment failure.
- 4. The Approved Sponsor must ensure that nominees can provide evidence of health insurance cover at time of application.
- 5. Where a Primary Sponsored Person's English language proficiency is below the level of English language proficiency that is prescribed in clause 7.6 (b) or **Schedule 3**, **Item 4(1)**, the Approved Sponsor must continue to pay for accredited English language training for the Primary Sponsored Person until such time as the Primary Sponsored Person's English language proficiency is at least the level of English language proficiency that is prescribed in clause 7.6(b) or **Schedule 3**, **Item 4(1)**; except where:
 - (a) the Primary Sponsored Person is in Australia and holds a Subclass 457 visa, or is in Australia and the last substantive visa they held was a Subclass 457 visa, the Approved Sponsor must ensure that the Primary Sponsored Person's English language proficiency is at least the level of English language proficiency that is prescribed in clause 7.6(b) or **Schedule 3, Item 4(1)** in circumstances where sub-paragraphs 457.223(4)(eb)(i), (ii) and (iii) do not apply
- 6. When recruiting primary sponsored persons or secondary sponsored persons, the Approved Sponsor must make all reasonable inquiries to satisfy itself that the primary sponsored person or secondary sponsored persons do not owe money as a result of being recruited.
- 7. The Approved Sponsor must not nominate a nominee or secondary nominee who it has assessed, reasonably suspects or ought to reasonably suspect of owing money as a result of being recruited.
- 8. The Approved Sponsor must not cause or permit a change in control of the Approved Sponsor that would reasonably be regarded as inimical to the Approved Sponsor's capacity to perform its obligations under this Agreement.

Schedule 7 Variations to Reporting Requirements

None

under the Freedom of Inform

Schedule 8 Domestic Recruitment Efforts Template

Summary of domestic recruitment efforts by Roverworth Pty Ltd as the trustee for the Roverworth Trust:

List each occupations sought under the labour agreement	ANZSCO code (order numerically from lowest to highest)	List all advertising or recruitment efforts by your organisation in the last six months for the occupation ⁴	Period of advertising or recruitment	Geographical target audience	Number of applications received	Number of applicants that were hired	Reasons that candidates were not successful	How many Australians do you currently employ in this occupation?

I declare that the information I have provided in this document is true and correct and I am aware of the penalties for providing misleading or false information to the Commonwealth under section 137 of the Criminal Code Act 1995.

Signature:	
Name and position of authorised person:	Date

⁴ One method per table cell (e.g. Seek.com advertising). Please replicate the row if multiple methods have been used. You must attach examples of your efforts to recruit for each occupation.

Signing page

Signed for and on behalf of the Commonwealth under the written authority of the Minister for 1 mmigration and Border Protection:) s22(1)(a)(ii)	\$22(1)(a)(ii)
Print name and details of the Authorised Person	Signature of the Authorised Person
s22(1)(a)(ii) Signature of Witness	Date of signing: 20/10/16 dd/mm/yyyy
s22(1)(a)(ii) Print name of Witness	Date of signing: 20/.7//6. dd/mm/yyyy
Signed for and on behalf of Roverworth Pty Ltd ATF The Roverworth Trust)	
)	
ACN 112 266 421)	
In accordance with section 127 of the Corporations Act 2001 by:	\$47F
Signature of director/Authorised Person	Signature of Director/Secretary
Print name and details of the Authorised Person	Print name and details of the Authorised Person
Date of signing: 12///	Date of signing: 12./.7/.16 dd/mm/yyyy
Print name and details of the Approved Sponsor (if the Approved Sponsor is not a body corporate).	
Signature of Witness	×
Print name of Witness Date of signing://	

Released by Department of Home Affairs under the Freedom of Information Act 1982

Roverworth Pty Ltd ATF The Roverworth Trust January 2016



Australian Government Department of Home Affairs

LABOUR AGREEMENT – MEAT INDUSTRY

Under the Migration Act 1958

Between

Commonwealth of Australia as represented by the Minister for Citizenship and Multicultural Affairs (Minister)

and

Roverworth Pty Ltd

Table of Contents

Background	4
Operative Par	t4
1.	Definitions4
2.	Interpretation
3.	Agreement period
4.	Pre-contractual representations
Nomination of	Overseas Workers
5.	Nomination requirements
6.	Visa requirements
7.	Subclass 457 Visa Applications
8.	Visa period
9.	Sponsorship obligations
10.	Reporting
11.	Review
12.	Audits of this Agreement
Miscellaneous	Provisions 10
13.	Notices
14.	Variation and entire agreement
15.	Suspension11
16.	Termination 11
17.	Sanctions
18.	Relationship between the parties
19.	Assurances, counterparts and assignment12
20.	Dispute resolution
21.	Confidential information and information sharing
22.	Fettering and publishing
23.	Legal expenses
24.	Survival after termination
25.	Governing law and jurisdiction
26.	Indemnity

Schedule 1	Particulars	15
Schedule 2	Concessions relating to nomination criteria covered by this Agreement	16
Schedule 3	Additional requirements for nomination	18
Schedule 4	Concessions relating to visa criteria covered by this Agreement	19
Schedule 5	Variation of sponsorship obligations	20
Schedule 6	Additional sponsorship obligations specific to this Agreement	23
Schedule 7	Information to be provided to the Department	25
Signing page		26

Labour Agreement

Effective Date: Date signed by the Commonwealth being the last part to sign the Agreement.

Parties

The Commonwealth of Australia (the "Commonwealth") as represented by the Minister for Citizenship and Multicultural Affairs (the "Minister"). The Commonwealth's particulars are set out in **Item 1** of **Schedule 1**.

AND

The party specified in Item 2 of Schedule 1 (the "Sponsor"). The Sponsor's particulars are set out in Item 2 of Schedule 1.

Background

- A. This labour agreement (the "Agreement") is a "labour agreement" as defined in the Migration Regulations.
- B. This Agreement will be administered by the Department of Home Affairs ("the Department") on behalf of the Commonwealth.
- C. This Agreement sets out the terms and conditions by which the Sponsor may recruit, employ or engage the services of overseas workers who are intended to be employed or engaged by the Approved Sponsor as holders of Temporary Work (Skilled) visas (Subclass 457), Temporary Skill Shortage (TSS) visas or Employer Nomination Scheme (ENS) visa (Subclass 186) in its business undertaking as described in **Item 3** of **Schedule 1**.
- D. For the purposes of the subclass 457 and TSS visa programs, the Sponsor, by virtue of entering into this Agreement, will also be an "Approved Sponsor" as defined in the Migration Act.

Operative Part

1. Definitions

- 1.1 Unless the context indicates a contrary intention, words and phrases in this Agreement have the same meanings attributed to them in the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations.
- 1.2 In the event of any inconsistency between this Agreement and the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations, the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations will prevail.
- 1.3 In this Agreement:

Address means a party's address set out in Schedule 1.

Adverse Information has the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Agreement means this labour agreement, any schedules, attachments and any documents incorporated into this labour agreement by reference.

Annualised Salary means for the purpose of this Agreement remuneration paid to an Overseas Worker on an annualised basis from the date they commence employment, excluding periods that they are offshore on approved leave without pay.

ANZSCO means the Australian and New Zealand Standard Classification of Occupations.

Approved Sponsor has the same meaning as in the Migration Act.

AQF means the Australian Qualifications Framework.

Australian where the context so admits, means an Australian citizen (whether born in Australia or elsewhere) or a non-citizen who, being usually resident in Australia is the holder of a permanent visa granted under the Migration Act.

Base Rate of Pay has the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations. That is, it means the rate of pay payable to an employee for his or her full time ordinary hours of work, but not including any of the following:

- (a) incentive-based payments and bonuses;
- (b) loadings;

- (c) monetary allowances;
- (d) overtime or penalty rates;
- (e) any other separately identifiable amounts.

Ordinary hours of work is determined under the relevant state/territory or federal award.

Where there is no award, the full time ordinary hours will be 38 hours per week.

Business Day means a day on which business is generally conducted in the Australian Capital Territory, and excludes Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays.

Business Address means the physical address at which a business is located.

Confidential Information in relation to a Party, means information that is:

- (a) by its nature capable of being protected in law or equity as confidential;
- (b) designated by a Party as confidential in Item 5 of Schedule 1; or
- (c) in the case of the Commonwealth's Confidential Information, the Approved Sponsor knows or ought to know is confidential;

but does not include information:

- (d) which is or becomes public knowledge other than by breach of the Contract or any other confidentiality obligations; or
- (e) that has been independently developed or acquired without reference to the other Party's Confidential Information.

Concessions means any variations to the requirements prescribed in the Migration Legislation in relation to the skills, qualifications, employment background, level of English Language proficiency and the Temporary Skilled Migration Income Threshold (TSMIT) required for the nomination and grant of a Subclass 457 or TSS visa.

Damages means all liabilities, losses, damages, costs and expenses, including legal fees and disbursements and costs of investigation, litigation, settlement, judgment, interest and penalties.

Deductions Plan means a plan submitted by the Approved Sponsor to the Commonwealth, seeking approval of fair, reasonable and lawful deductions from the gross salary of Skilled Meat Workers (other than deductions required by Australian law or statute), which if approved by the Commonwealth, could be made available to the Company's Skilled Meat Workers should they freely choose to avail themselves of this opportunity to which the deductions relate.

Earnings has the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Employment period means the stay period that an Approved Sponsor requests for the Nominee in a Subclass 457 or TSS nomination application form.

Effective Date means:

- (a) the date (if any) specified in Item 4 of Schedule 1;
- (b) if no such date is specified, the date on which this Agreement is signed by the parties, or if signed on separate days, the date of the last signature.

Email Account means a party's email address set out in Schedule 1.

Full time means 38 hours or a period between 32 and 45 hours that is specified under the relevant industry award and is consistent with the National Employment Standards.

IELTS means the International English Language Testing System.

Industrial instrument means an instrument in force under a law of the Commonwealth or the State/Territory that regulates workplace relations and prescribes terms and conditions of employment between employers and employees including, but not limited to, an award or agreement made under the Commonwealth Fair Work Act 2009 (Cth) and an award or agreement made by a relevant State/Territory industrial tribunal or court.

MPE means a Meat Processing Establishment wholly or predominately concerned with any one or more of the activities of killing, dressing, boning, slicing, preparation and/or packing of fresh meat.

Migration Act means the Migration Act 1958, as amended from time to time.

Migration Legislation means the Migration Act and/or the Migration Regulations and / or any instruments made under the Migration Act or the Migration Regulations as amended from time to time.

Migration Regulations means the Migration Regulations 1994 made under the Migration Act 1958, as amended from time to time.

Minister means "the Minister" for Citizenship and Multicultural Affairs, the Assistant Minister, and his or her authorised representative performing relevant functions as the Minister under the Migration Legislation.

MINTRAC means the Meat Industry National Training Advisory Council.

Nominate means to lodge a nomination for a Subclass 457, TSS or Subclass 186 visa under Migration Legislation.

Nomination means a nomination referred to in section 140GB of the Migration Act.

Nomination Ceiling means the number of nominations that an Approved Sponsor can have approved for a specified Occupation as defined in Schedule 2.

Nominee means the Overseas Worker specified in a nomination.

Occupations means those occupations prescribed in Schedule 2.

On-hire¹ means a person's business activities which include activities relating to either or both of:

- (a) the recruitment of labour for supply to another business; and
- (b) the hiring of labour to another business;
- (c) the reference to 'another business' in paragraph (a) and (b) above, includes any other business that is related to a person's business.

Overseas Worker means the holder of, or an applicant or proposed applicant for, a Subclass 457, TSS or Subclass 186 visa, whether onshore or offshore.

Postal Address means the address to which mail is delivered.

Relevant Industrial Instrument means an industrial instrument that applies to a Primary Sponsored Person and regulates the terms and conditions of employment of that Primary Sponsored Person.

Secondary Sponsored Person takes the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Stand-down means "the employer has the right to deduct payment for any period on which an employee cannot be usefully employed, because of any industrial action (other than industrial action organised or engaged in by the employer), or through any breakdown of machinery if the employer cannot reasonably be held responsible for the breakdown or any stoppage of work for any cause for which the employer cannot reasonably be held responsible, or for any period which an employee cannot be usefully employed because of any industrial action in the meat industry".

Sponsor means the party to this Agreement specified in Item 2 of Schedule 1.

Standard Business Sponsor has the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Standard Skilled visa program requirements refers to the legislative requirements that must be met for the Subclass 457 or the TSS visa program (once introduced in March 2018) if the sponsor is a standard business sponsor, or under the Subclass 186 visa program if applying for permanent residence.

Subclass 186 visa means an Employer Nomination Scheme (ENS) visa (Subclass 186).

Subclass 457 visa means a Temporary Work (Skilled) visa (Subclass 457).

TSS visa means the Temporary Skill Shortage (TSS) visa.

Terms and Conditions of Employment takes the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

The Department means the Department of Home Affairs.

Top Up means an additional salary amount paid to an Overseas Workers to ensure that requirements under this Agreement are met as prescribed under clause 2, Item 2 of Schedule 6.

¹ An example of On-hire is where a person proposes to sponsor someone to come to Australia for the purpose of hiring out the visa holder's services to client organisations, rather than to work directly in the person's business.

TSMIT means the Temporary Skilled Migration Income Threshold, as amended from time to time, specified in an instrument made under the Migration Regulations.

TSMIT Fortnightly Rate means the (annual salary x 12) divided by 313.

TSMIT Hourly Rate means the TSMIT Weekly Rate divided by 38.

TSMIT Weekly Rate means the (annual salary x 6) divided by 313.

Workforce means the total number of Australian workers and temporary visa holders engaged by the Approved Sponsor (including as contractors).

Workplace Law means the *Fair Work Act 2009*, and relevant laws of the Commonwealth and of the relevant State or Territory relating to equal employment opportunity, unlawful discrimination and workplace health and safety legislation regulating the employment by the Approved Sponsor of its Primary Sponsored Persons.

Workforce Plan means a report that outlines the current, and where requested, projected future composition of an Approved Sponsor's workforce. It should include details of the total number of Australian workers (including permanent residents) and temporary visa holders engaged by the Approved Sponsor.

Year means the period of 12 months commencing on the day this Agreement commences, or a period of 12 months commencing on an anniversary of that day.

2. Interpretation

(corresponding meanings) a word that is derived from a defined word has a corresponding meaning.

(headings) clause headings, the table of contents and footnotes are inserted for convenience only and do not affect interpretation of this Agreement.

(references) a reference to a party, clause, paragraph or schedule is a reference to a party, clause, paragraph or schedule to, or of this Agreement.

(requirements) a requirement to do anything includes a requirement to cause that thing to be done, and a requirement not to do anything includes a requirement to prevent that thing being done.

(including) including and includes are not words of limitation, and a list of examples is not limited to those items or to items of a similar kind.

(rules of construction) neither this Agreement nor any part of it is to be construed against a party on the basis that the party or its lawyers were responsible for its drafting.

(singular and gender) the singular includes the plural and vice-versa, and words importing one gender include all other genders.

(legislation) a reference to any legislation or provision of legislation includes all amendments, consolidations or replacements and all regulations, directions or instruments issued under it.

(day) unless stated otherwise a reference to a day is a reference to a calendar day.

(month) a reference to a month is a reference to a calendar month.

(**person**) a reference to a person includes an individual, a body corporate, statutory corporation, partnership, body politic and permitted assigns, as the context requires.

(writing) a reference to a notice, consent, request, approval or other communication under this Agreement or an agreement between the parties means a written notice, request, consent, approval or agreement.

3. Agreement period

- 3.1 This Agreement commences from the Effective Date as specified in Item 4 of Schedule 1.
- 3.2 Unless terminated earlier in accordance with clause 16 of this Agreement, the period of this Agreement will be the time specified in **Item 4** of **Schedule 1**.

4. Pre-contractual representations

4.1 The Sponsor warrants that information supplied to the Commonwealth with respect to the Sponsor being a fit and proper person to enter into this Agreement and upon which the Commonwealth relied, was true and correct.

Nomination of Overseas Workers

5. Nomination requirements

- 5.1 The Sponsor may only nominate an Overseas Worker for:
 - visas outlined in Schedule 2:
 - (b) Occupations outlined in Schedule 2;
 - (c) up to the Nomination Ceiling specified in Schedule 2; and
 - an Occupation to be performed in a location listed in Schedule 2.
- The Sponsor acknowledges that the Minister may, in his/her absolute discretion, vary the: 5.2
 - Nomination Ceilings up or down;
 - (b) Concessions; or
 - Occupations. (c)
- If the Sponsor wishes to increase the Nomination Ceilings in any year during the period of this Agreement as set out in Schedule 2 to this Agreement, they must provide the Department with the information detailed in Schedule 7. A departmental decision-maker will then assess whether the Department will agree to proposed variations to the existing agreement.
- The Sponsor acknowledges that there is no guarantee that additional Nominations and increases in the Nomination ceilings will be agreed to and that the Commonwealth reserves the right to make the final decision as to the Nomination Ceiling for each year of the Agreement.
- 5.5 Before they nominate a Nominee under this Agreement, the Sponsor must take all reasonable steps to ensure that:
 - it recruits suitably skilled Australians who are available; and (a)
 - (b) the Overseas Worker will be able to meet any revised visa requirements outlined at Schedule 4.
- The Sponsor will aim to ensure that:
 - in any one Year period overseas workers do not comprise more than a third of their Workforce;
 - their reliance on overseas workers decreases during the life of this Agreement; and (b)
 - their reliance on temporary visas decreases where existing temporary visa holders have successfully (c) transitioned to permanent residence under this Agreement.
- 5.7 In addition to Subclass 457 nomination requirements outlined in the Migration Regulations, the Sponsor must demonstrate, through written evidence, when lodging a Subclass 457 nomination prior to the introduction of the TSS visa, that the Nominee will be:
 - (a) engaged full time;
 - paid a Base Rate of Pay that is equal to or greater than the TSMIT, unless varied in Schedule 2; and (b)
 - receive Terms and Conditions of Employment which are no less favourable than the terms or
- receive Terms and Conditions of Employment which are no less favourable than the terms or conditions of employment that are, or would be provided, to an Australian performing equivalent working the Approved Sponsor's workplace at the same location.

 dition to TSS or Subclass 186 nomination requirements outlined in the Migration Regulations, the sor must demonstrate, through written evidence, when lodging a TSS or Subclass 186 nomination that tandard skilled visa requirements as outlined in the Migration Regulations in relation to the TSMIT, ings and/or working hours, are met unless varied in Schedule 2.

 Sponsor must comply with any additional requirements for nomination that are stipulated by the ster in Schedule 3.

 requirements

 Sponsor acknowledges that as part of the visa application process, the Nominee will need to meet the ria for grant of a visa as outlined in the Migration Regulations. 5.8 In addition to TSS or Subclass 186 nomination requirements outlined in the Migration Regulations, the Sponsor must demonstrate, through written evidence, when lodging a TSS or Subclass 186 nomination that the Standard skilled visa requirements as outlined in the Migration Regulations in relation to the TSMIT, Earnings and/or working hours, are met unless varied in Schedule 2.
- The Sponsor must comply with any additional requirements for nomination that are stipulated by the 5.9 Minister in Schedule 3.

6. Visa requirements

6.1 The Sponsor acknowledges that as part of the visa application process, the Nominee will need to meet the criteria for grant of a visa as outlined in the Migration Regulations.

Freedom of Information Act 1982 the ē

- This may include: 6.2
 - requirements that the Nominee has the sufficient skills, experience and English proficiency to perform the nominated occupation, and demonstrated this where requested by the Department; and
 - if applying for permanent residence, any age requirements.
- In most cases, these requirements mirror Standard skilled visa program requirements 6.3
- 6.4 Where variations to regulatory or policy requirements apply for visa applicants who are being sponsored under this Agreement, because the Minister has agreed to certain Concessions, these are specified in Schedule 4.

7. **Subclass 457 Visa Applications**

- 7.1 No new Subclass 457 visa applications will be able to be lodged from March 2018 onwards, when the TSS visa is introduced.
- 7.2 Subclass 457 visas already granted will remain in effect.
- 7.3 Subclass 457 visa applications lodged prior to the introduction of the TSS will continue to be processed under the existing Subclass 457 regulatory framework.

8. Visa period

TSS visa

The Sponsor acknowledges that when nominating an Overseas Worker for a TSS visa, the Sponsor will 8.1 select a proposed employment period of up to a maximum of four (4) years. If approved, the TSS visa for the Nominee will be granted for the requested period, unless a different or more restricted period is specified in Schedule 4.

Subclass 457 visa

- The visa period for Subclass 457 visas granted under this Agreement is as follows:
 - For Subclass 457 visa holders who are Primary Sponsored Persons

Pursuant to the Migration Regulations, the period specified for a Subclass 457 visa granted to the Primary Sponsored Person is a period of four (4) years from the date of grant of the Subclass 457 visa.

For Subclass 457 visa holders who are Secondary Sponsored Persons (other than subsequent entrants)

Pursuant to the Migration Regulations, the period specified for a Subclass 457 visa granted to a person who:

- (i) made a combined application with a person who satisfied the primary criteria; and
- (ii) satisfied the secondary criteria on the basis of being a member of the family unit of the person who satisfied the primary criteria;

is a period of four (4) years from the date of grant of the Subclass 457 visa.

(c)

For subsequent entrants who satisfied the secondary criteria

Pursuant to the Migration Regulations, the period specified for a Subclass 457 visa granted to a person who:

- did not make a combined application with a person who satisfied the primary criteria; and (i)
- satisfied the secondary criteria on the basis of being a member of the family unit of the person who satisfied the primary criteria;

is the remainder of the visa period of the Subclass 457 visa held by the person who satisfied the primary criteria.

Subclass 186 visa

A permanent visa will be granted if all legislative requirements are met.

1982 Information Act of Department Freedom 2 Released ē

9. Sponsorship obligations

- 9.1 In relation to any subclass 457 and TSS visa holders, as an Approved Sponsor, the Sponsor must satisfy:
 - (a) it's sponsorship obligations in the Migration Regulations, including where varied (if at all), as outlined in Schedule 5;
 - (b) any additional obligations imposed in accordance with subsection 140H(3) of the Migration Act specified in **Schedule 6.**
- 9.2 The Sponsor must comply with Workplace Law, and immigration laws regulating employment of the Sponsor's sponsored Overseas Workers.

10. Reporting

10.1 The Sponsor must provide a report to the Department within 30 days following a request by the Minister. This report must include the items outlined at **Schedule 7** to this Agreement.

11. Review

11.1 This Agreement will be reviewed after three years and/or on an annual basis where additional Nominations increasing the Nomination Ceilings are sought by the Sponsor.

12. Audits of this Agreement

- 12.1 The Minister may, from time to time, audit the Sponsor's performance of its obligations under this Agreement and the Sponsor will cooperate with the Minister for the purpose of such audits.
- 12.2 Without limiting the generality of the preceding clause, the Sponsor will:
 - (a) liaise with and provide information and assistance to the Minister as reasonably required by the Minister for the purposes of such audits;
 - (b) comply with the Minister's reasonable requests or requirements for the purposes of such audits.
- 12.3 Unless specified otherwise in the Migration Legislation, the Sponsor will retain all records generated for the purposes of this Agreement for seven (7) years from the date of expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Miscellaneous Provisions

13. Notices

- 13.1 Any notice, demand, consent or other communication given or made under this Agreement:
 - (a) must be clearly readable;
 - (b) must, unless it is sent by email, be signed by the party giving or making it (or signed on behalf of that party by its authorised representative);
 - (c) must, unless it is sent by email, be left at the Address or sent by pre-paid security post (air mail if outside Australia) to the Business Address of the recipient; and
 - (d) may be sent by email to the receiving party's Email Account.
- 13.2 A notice to be served on the Commonwealth will be taken to be served if it is served on the Department's address in Item 1 of Schedule 1.
- 13.3 A party may change its Business Address, Postal Address or Email Account for the purpose of service by giving notice of that change to the other party in accordance with clause 13.1.
- 13.4 Any communication will be taken to be received by the recipient:
 - (a) in the case of a letter, on the third (seventh, if sent outside the country in which the letter is posted)
 Business Day after the date of posting;
 - (b) in the case of an email, at the end of the day in which the email is transmitted.

14. Variation and entire agreement

- 14.1 The contents of this Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the parties and supersede any prior negotiations, representations, understandings or arrangements made between the parties regarding the subject matter of this Agreement, whether orally or in writing.
- 14.2 Unless otherwise specified in this Deed, a provision of this Agreement can only be varied by a written document executed by or on behalf of all parties.

15. Suspension

- 15.1 The Minister may, in his/her absolute discretion, suspend this Agreement, in whole or in part, including in situations where Adverse Information regarding the Sponsor has been received, is being investigated and is not considered reasonable to disregard.
- 15.2 The Sponsor and other third parties are not entitled to any compensation or payments as a result of the Minister suspending this Agreement under clause 15.1.
- 15.3 Where the Minister suspends this Agreement in accordance with clause 15.1 the Minister will notify the Sponsor in writing.
- 15.4 For the avoidance of doubt, where the Minister notifies that this Agreement has been suspended in accordance with clause 15.3, the suspension shall take effect at the time the notice is taken to be received by the Sponsor, in accordance with clause 13.
- 15.5 Where the Minister suspends this Agreement in accordance with clause 15.1, the Minister may, in determining the order for considering and disposing of nomination applications and visa applications, give the lowest priority to applications made under this Agreement.
- 15.6 After a period of suspension, the Minister may, at his/her absolute discretion, choose to resume this Agreement by notifying the Sponsor in writing.
- 15.7 Where the Minister chooses to resume this Agreement in accordance with clause 15.6 and notifies the Sponsor, the Agreement will resume at the time the notice is taken to be received, in accordance with clause 13.
- 15.8 For the avoidance of doubt, any period of suspension will have no impact on and will not amend the period of this Agreement. The period of this Agreement will remain as specified in **Item 4** of **Schedule 1**.

16. Termination

- 16.1 The Minister may, in his/her absolute discretion, terminate this Agreement at any time including for reasons of public interest where:
 - (a) there is a change in policy or a change in government which results in a change in policy settings; or
 - (b) Adverse Information has been received by the Department regarding the Sponsor and it is not considered reasonable to disregard.
- 16.2 The Sponsor will not be entitled to any compensation or payments as a result of the Minister terminating this Agreement under clause 16.1.
- 16.3 Otherwise, if the Minister contends that the Sponsor is in default under this Agreement, the Minister may, without prejudice to any right of action or remedy which has accrued or which may accrue (including the Minister's entitlement to terminate in accordance with clause 16.1):
 - (a) suspend this Agreement in whole or in part; and
 - (b) serve notice on the Sponsor, advising that this Agreement is suspended and requiring the Sponsor to rectify to the satisfaction of the Minister, those aspects of the Sponsor's performance which are of concern to the Commonwealth; or
 - (c) terminate this Agreement without prejudice to any right of action or remedy which has accrued or which may accrue.
- 16.4 If as an Approved Sponsor, the Sponsor is in breach of a sponsorship obligations under the Migration Legislation, the Sponsor will be taken to be in default under this Agreement as if the statutory obligation was a contractual obligation of the Sponsor.

- 16.5 For the avoidance of doubt, a breach of the Sponsor's warranty given in clause 4.1 with respect to precontractual information, will entitle the Minister to suspend this Agreement and serve a notice under clause 16.3 and/or to take any other contractual redress in accordance with this Agreement.
- 16.6 A party may, in its discretion, terminate this Agreement early by giving 28 days' notice to the other party, whereupon this Agreement will be terminated with effect 28 days after the notice of termination is served. A party serving a notice of termination under this sub-clause:
 - (a) need not specify a reason for serving the notice;
 - (b) may withdraw the notice before the 28 days have elapsed; and
 - (c) will not be liable to compensate the other party for costs or damages that may arise from the early termination.
- 16.7 For the avoidance of doubt if this Agreement is terminated for any reason, or for no reason:
 - (a) the Sponsor will no longer be an Approved Sponsor under Migration Legislation and their approval as a sponsor for the purposes of this Agreement will be automatically terminated; and
 - (b) visas granted pursuant to this Agreement will be subject to the operation of the Migration Legislation.
- 16.8 A waiver by a party in respect of any breach of a condition or provision of this Agreement will not be deemed to be a waiver in respect of any continuing or subsequent breach of that provision, or breach of any other provision. The failure of a party to enforce at any time any of the provisions of this Agreement will in no way be interpreted as a waiver of such provision.

17. Sanctions

- 17.1 Instead of terminating this Agreement:
 - (a) the Commonwealth may, in its discretion, prevent or 'bar' the Sponsor from making further nominations under this Agreement for a specified period, or
 - (b) the Minister may, in his or her absolute discretion, give the lowest processing priority to nomination applications and visa applications made under this Agreement.
- 17.2 The Commonwealth may, in its discretion, instead of terminating this Agreement or in addition to terminating this Agreement, take action against the Sponsor for a breach of contract to recover damages and/or for injunctive relief.
- 1.7.3 The Commonwealth may, in its discretion, instead of taking any enforcement action under this Agreement or in addition to taking such enforcement action, pursue a civil penalty or issue an infringement notice under the Migration Legislation for failing to satisfy a sponsorship obligation.

18. Relationship between the parties

- 18.1 Nothing in this Agreement:
 - (a) constitutes a partnership between the parties; or
 - (b) except as expressly provided, makes a party an agent of another party for any purpose.
- 18.2 A party cannot in any way or for any purpose:
 - (a) bind another party; or
 - (b) contract in the name of another party.
- 18.3 If a party must fulfil an obligation and that party is dependent on another party, then that other party must do each thing reasonably within its power to assist the other in the performance of that obligation.
- 18.4 If the Sponsor is constituted by more than one legal entity (such as a partnership or an unincorporated association), each of those legal entities will be jointly and severally liable for performance under this Agreement.

19. Assurances, counterparts and assignment

- 19.1 Each party must promptly execute all documents and do all other things reasonably necessary or desirable to give effect to the arrangements recorded in this Agreement.
- 19.2 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts.

19.3 A party cannot assign or otherwise transfer its rights under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party.

20. Dispute resolution

- 20.1 The Parties will deal with any dispute arising during the course of this Agreement as follows:
 - (a) the party claiming that there is a dispute must notify the other party of the dispute;
 - (b) the parties will use reasonable endeavours to resolve the dispute by direct negotiation;
 - (c) the parties must allow 28 days from notification of the dispute to reach a resolution or to agree to refer the dispute to mediation in accordance with, and subject to, The Institute of Arbitrators and Mediators Australia Mediation Rules or some other form of alternative dispute resolution procedure agreed to in writing by the Parties; and
 - (d) in the event that:
 - (i) the Parties have attended mediation, or some other form of alternative dispute resolution procedure; and
 - (ii) no written settlement agreement is executed within 15 Business Days (or such extended time as the Parties may agree in writing before the expiration of the 15 Business days) of the conclusion of the mediation or some other form of alternative dispute resolution procedure

then either Party may commence legal proceedings or terminate this Agreement.

20.2 The Parties acknowledge that the Migration Review Tribunal and Administrative Appeals Tribunal may have jurisdiction to review decisions in relation to nomination applications and visa applications. This Agreement does not abrogate any rights of a merits review by the Migration Review Tribunal or the Administrative Appeals Tribunal.

21. Confidential information and information sharing

- 21.1 If a party's information is specified as Confidential Information in **Item 5** of **Schedule 1**, the other party will not disclose the information without the first party's prior written consent, except when disclosure of the information is required by law, statutory or portfolio duties.
- 21.2 The Sponsor consents to information concerning it which is relevant to the operation of this Agreement being shared by the Minister with:
 - (a) State or Territory government agencies in the State or Territory in which the Sponsor conducts business, where those agencies have regulatory or other relevant interests in the operation of this Agreement;
 - (b) Commonwealth agencies with regulatory or other relevant interests in the operation of this Agreement, including the Department of Jobs and Small Business.
- 21.3 The Sponsor will allow the disclosure of information related to this Agreement for various reporting and Commonwealth disclosure obligations. These disclosures include:
 - (a) disclosure of procurement information for the Department's annual reporting purposes;
 - (b) disclosure to the Parliament and its committees, as appropriate, in line with the Government Guidelines for Official Witnesses before Parliamentary Committees and Related Matters;
 - (c) disclosure of information consistent with the Freedom of Information Act 1982;
 - (d) disclosure of discoverable information that is relevant to a case before a court; and
 - (e) disclosure of information as required under other legislation or Commonwealth policy.
- 21.4 The Sponsor acknowledges that the Department will publish information on its website regarding this Agreement, with more sensitive business information contained in labour agreement requests and agreements, as specified at **Item 5** of **Schedule 1** to remain confidential.
- 21.5 The Sponsor must comply with any reasonable request by the Commonwealth for information to enable the Commonwealth to meet its obligations in this Agreement.
- 21.6 Clause 21.3 survives the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

Fettering and publishing

- 22.1 Nothing in this Agreement fetters or detracts from the Commonwealth's discretions, functions or powers under the Migration Legislation, Workplace Law or other relevant Commonwealth laws.
- 22.2 In the event the Commonwealth has published an outline of this Agreement, the published outline is an invitation to treat with prospective sponsors and is not an offer to enter into contractual relations with any such sponsor on the basis of the published outline.
- 22.3 The Commonwealth may grant or refuse to grant consent, in its absolute discretion, to any application by the Sponsor for consent to a change in control of the Sponsor that may be inimical to the Sponsor's performance under this Agreement, and the Commonwealth may attach such conditions on a consent as the Commonwealth sees fit.

23. Legal expenses

- 23.1 Each party must pay its own legal costs and disbursements in connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution and carrying into effect of this Agreement.
- 23.2 The Sponsor must pay any stamp duty assessed on or in relation to this Agreement and any instrument or transaction required by or necessary to give effect to this Agreement.

24. Survival after termination

24.1 Any provision of this Agreement which expressly or by implication from its nature is intended to survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement and any rights arising on termination or expiration will survive. including Confidential Information, and any sponsorship obligations as an Approved Sponsor.

Governing law and jurisdiction

- 25.1 The laws applicable in the Australian Capital Territory govern this Agreement.
- 25.2 The parties submit to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Australian Capital Territory and any courts competent to hear appeals from those courts.

26. Indemnity

- 26.1 The Sponsor agrees to indemnify the Minister from and against any:
 - cost or liability incurred by the Minister; or (a)
 - loss or expense incurred by the Minister in dealing with any claim against it including legal costs and expenses on a solicitor/own client basis and the cost of time spent, resources used or disbursements paid by the Minister,

arising from:

- any act or omission by the Sponsor or its Personnel in connection with this Agreement; or (c)
- any breach of its Sponsorship obligations as an Approved Sponsor or warranties under this Agreement; (d) any breach of its Sponsorship obligations as an Approved are irrespective of whether there was fault on the part of the person whose conduct gave rise to that liability, loss or damage, or loss or expense.
- 26.2 The Sponsor's liability to indemnify the Minister under clause 26.1 will be reduced proportionately to the extent that any breach of this Agreement by the Minister or any act or omission involving fault on the part of the Minister contributed to the relevant cost, liability, loss, damage, or expense.
- 26.3 The right of the Minister to be indemnified under clause 26.1 is in addition to, and not exclusive of, any other right, power or remedy provided by law, but the Minister is not entitled to be compensated in excess of the amount of the relevant cost, liability, loss, damage, or expense.
 26.4 In clause 26.1:

 (a) "the Minister" includes officers, employees agents contract stoff or professional.
 (b) "Personnel" means a party's officers, employees agents contract stoff or professional.
- - "Personnel" means a party's officers, employees, agents, contract staff or professional advisers (b) engaged in, or in relation to, the performance or management of this Agreement;
- 26.5 Clause 26.1 will survive six (6) years from the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Freedom of 2 Released

Schedule 1

Particulars

Item 1

Commonwealth Particulars

Name:

Department of Home Affairs

Address:

6 Chan Street, BELCONNEN ACT 2617

Telephone Number:

s22(1)(a)(ii)

Email Address: Contact officer:

Director, Economic and Skilled Visa Program Branch

Item 2

The Sponsor's Particulars

Name:

Roverworth Pty Ltd

ACN

112 266 421

ABN:

Business Structure:

Australian Private Company

Business Address:

302 Grantham Scrub Rd, Veradilla QLD 4347

Postal Address:

Telephone Number:

s47F

Email Address:

Contact Officer:

Item 3

The Sponsor's Business

Industry segment:

Meat Industry

Item 4

Commencement and period

Effective Date:

The date signed by the Commonwealth being the last party to sign

the Agreement and 15 May 2014

Cease Date:

14 May 2019

Item 5

Commercial-in-Confidence Information

The company specific information (i.e. non-template text) contained

in the Schedules to this Agreement.

All information provided to request and secure access to this

Agreement.

Freedom of Information Act 1982 Released by Department of Home Affairs the ē

Schedule 2 Concessions relating to nomination criteria covered by this Agreement

Item 1 Occupations, Nomination Ceiling and Location

The table below outlines the occupations that can be utilised under this Agreement for the visa programs specified. It also specifies the nomination ceilings per year for these Occupations, and where the nominated positions should be based (i.e. location of work).

Subclass 457 and/or TSS nomination ceilings

Occupation	Code		Nominat	T4:			
Occupation		Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Location of work
Skilled Meat Worker	070499	-s47					

Subclass 186 nomination ceilings

Occupation	Codo		Nominat	Tanadian of much			
Occupation	Code	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Location of work
Skilled Meat Worker	070499	T\$47					

Note:

- The Minister may vary the ceiling number and Occupations at any time, with ceiling numbers subject to annual review.
- If the Sponsor wishes to increase the ceilings specified above, they must seek a variation to this Agreement as outlined at clause 5.3 to this Agreement.

Item 2 **Concession to Occupation Tasks**

A Skilled Meat Work (Code: 070499) for the purposes of this agreement is responsible for undertaking the following tasks, which include the duties of the ANZSCO occupations Slaughterer and Meat Boner and Slicer:

- stuns and kills livestock

stuns and kills livestock
prepares carcasses for further processing by removing internal organs and hides;
operates switching controls to direct and drop carcasses and meat cuts from supply rails to boning tables;
cuts meat to separate meat, fat and tissue from around bones;
washes, scrapes and trims foreign material and blood from meat;
cuts sides and quarters of meat into standard meat cuts, such as rumps, flanks and shoulders, and removing internal fat, blood clots, bruises and other matter to prepare them for packing and marketing operates restrainer and stunning equipment;
severs jugular veins of stunned animals to drain blood and facilitate dressing;
trims and removes head meat and severs animal heads;
slits open, eviscerates and trims animal carcasses; and
may slaughter livestock according to procedures required by religious customs.

Important: A skilled meat worker employed under this Agreement may not undertake labouring, or unskilled duties, other than to the extent of circumstances prescribed above or where relevant in the context of the duties, other than to the extent of circumstances prescribed above or where relevant in the context of the circumstances outlined in Item 8 of Schedule 5 to this Agreement. This Agreement does not allow Overseas Workers to be placed in unskilled labouring positions.

Item 3 Concessions regarding salary requirements

Subclass 457

Payments that can be considered for the purpose of meeting the TSMIT include any payments that are provided for under the Relevant Industrial Instrument, or the Migration Regulations, excluding bonus payments and payments for all time worked outside the ordinary working hours (including overtime and shifts) on any day.

Payments of worker's compensation benefits to Primary Sponsored Person as compensation for loss of ordinary earnings and payments that are based on activity levels can also be considered for the purpose of meeting the TSMIT.

TSS and Subclass 186 visas

In addition to meeting Standard skilled visa requirements, the Sponsor must:

- (a) employ Overseas Workers in full-time positions only;
- (b) ensure that if the Overseas Worker is paid via an Annualised Salary that they receive a Top-Up if, over an annual period, an Australian worker performing equivalent work in the Sponsor's workplace at the same location under different salary arrangements receives a higher amount.

Schedule 3 Additional requirements for nomination

Item 1 Labour market testing arrangements

Subclass 457 and TSS visas

Evidence of labour market testing must accompany nominations lodged in accordance with this Agreement. The evidence provided should be equivalent to that required under Standard skilled visa program requirements.

Item 2 Local workforce requirements

Subclass 457 and TSS visas

Unless otherwise agreed by both Parties, the Sponsor must provide a statement, in writing, together with any nomination application lodged, which indicates that at the MPE approved under this Agreement, within a period of three months prior to the date of the application, they have **not** done any of the following:

- permanently terminated the employment of more than five percent of its Australian workforce (except in circumstances of demonstrated misconduct or unlawful conduct);
- · stood down its Australian workforce for more than seven consecutive days at any single given time; or
- reduced the shifts of its Australian workforce to less than 50 per cent of the regular shift quota and/or to parttime hours unless requested by the Australian employees.

Item 3 Direct Employment

All visas

The Sponsor must only make a nomination application in respect of a nominee that would work directly for them at an MPE.

Item 4 Time period required to hold temporary skilled visa

Subclass 186 visa

The Sponsor may only nominate an Overseas Worker for a Subclass 186 visa who has been employed:

- directly for them as a Primary Subclass 457 or TSS visa holder in the nominated occupation, for at least three (3) years before the nomination is made; or
- if they held a Subclass 457 visa before 18 March 2018, as a primary Subclass 457 or TSS visa holder in the nominated occupation, for at least three years before the nomination is made.

Item 5 Digital image required

All visas

The Sponsor must attach a digital photograph of the applicant to the nomination application in *ImmiAccount*.

Schedule 4 Concessions relating to visa criteria covered by this Agreement

Item 1 Qualifications and Experience

Overseas Workers nominated under this agreement must:

- (a) have been assessed and verified by a MINTRAC registered assessor, or an assessor approved by the Commonwealth, with a Certificate IV in Training and Assessment experienced in meat processing, to be Skilled Meat Workers with a minimum skill level commensurate with the MINTRAC referenced AQF Certificate III in meat processing; and
- (b) either:
 - (i) demonstrate a minimum of three years skilled work experience obtained at an MPE acceptable to the Parties; or
 - (ii) have been working in Australia on a Subclass 457 or TSS visa at an Australian MPE acceptable to the Parties for at least nine months prior to being nominated.

Item 2 English Language

Subclass 457 and TSS visas

Overseas Workers nominated under this Agreement, who are unable to meet Standard skilled visa program requirements, can be considered to have sufficient English to perform the nominated occupation if:

• they demonstrate an International English Language Testing System (IELTS) overall test score of at least 5.0 with no minimum test score:

01

• was not required to provide evidence of English language proficiency at the time of the grant of their most recent subclass 457 visa under previous meat industry labour agreements.

Subclass 186 visa

Overseas Workers nominated under this Agreement, who are unable to meet Standard skilled visa program requirements, can be considered to have sufficient English to perform the nominated occupation if:

• they demonstrate an International English Language Testing System (IELTS) overall test score of at least 5.0 with no minimum test score;

or

- are a current Subclass 457 visa holder who was not required to provide evidence of English language proficiency at the time of grant of their Subclass 457 visa; and
- provides evidence as prescribed in the Migration Regulations for meeting functional English.

Item 3 Age

The Sponsor may only nominate an Overseas Worker for a Subclass 186 visa who is under 50 years of age at the time of nomination and visa application lodgement.

Freedom of

Schedule 5 Variation of sponsorship obligations

Item 1 Obligation to cooperate with inspectors

The obligation in regulation 2.78 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 2 Obligation to ensure equivalent terms and conditions of employment

Subclass 457 visa holders

The obligation in regulation 2.79 of the Migration Regulations applies and, in accordance with subsection 140H(2) of the Migration Act, is varied in the following way:

- 1. The Primary Sponsored Person will be paid no less than the TSMIT over an Annual Salary period.
- 2. Payments that can be considered for the purpose of meeting the TSMIT include:
 - any payments that are provided for under the Relevant Industrial Instrument, or the Migration Regulations, excluding bonus payments and payments for all time worked outside the ordinary working hours (including overtime and shifts) on any day;
 - payments of worker's compensation benefits to Primary Sponsored Person as compensation for loss of ordinary earnings and payments that are based on activity levels can also be considered for the purpose of meeting the TSMIT.
- 3. Where a Primary Sponsored Person is not provided with work for a period of time, whether because of a Stand Down, insufficient work or any other reason, the Approved Sponsor must pay the Primary Sponsored Person as follows:
 - if the Primary Sponsored Person is not provided with work for any period within a fortnight, and the Primary Sponsored Person does not earn an amount equal to one-half (50%) of the fortnightly TSMIT amount, then the Approved Sponsor must pay to the Primary Sponsored Person the difference between the amount actually earned and one-half (50%) of the fortnightly TSMIT amount;
 - if the Primary Sponsored Person is not provided with work for a period greater than a (ii) fortnight, then the Approved Sponsor must pay to the Primary Sponsored Person an amount equal to one-half (50%) of the fortnightly TSMIT amount for the length of the Stand Down and to pay any shortfall of TSMIT calculated over an Annual Salary period ('Top up');
 - A Top up payment will generally be made on an annual basis. However, where Primary Sponsored Person not being provided with work has resulted in the payment to a Primary Sponsored Person of less than the pro-rata TSMIT in three consecutive months, then the Commonwealth reserves the right to request that the Sponsor pay the Top up for that three month period at any time, and any balance owing for the period of time for which the Primary Sponsored Person was not provided with work, calculated over an Annual Salary period, at a later date as determined by the Commonwealth.
- later date as determined by the Commonwealth.

 The Approved Sponsor must meet all their obligations under the Relevant Industrial Instrument and applicable Workplace law.

 wisa holders

 obligation in regulation 2.79 of the Migration Regulations applies and is varied to include the wing additional obligations.

 Approved Sponsor must:

 employ the Primary Sponsored Person on a full time basis;
 only deduct payments from the Primary Sponsored Person's salary with the consent and written permission of the Primary Sponsored Person;

TSS visa holders

The obligation in regulation 2.79 of the Migration Regulations applies and is varied to include the following additional obligations.

The Approved Sponsor must:

- (a)
- (b)

- (c) pay the Primary Sponsored Person a Top-Up if an equivalent Australian is paid more than the Primary Sponsored Person in any twelve month period for equivalent work:
 - (i) this amount should equal the difference between the amount paid to the equivalent Australian and the amount paid to the Primary Sponsored Person for the twelve month period; and
 - (ii) this amount is to be paid to the Primary Sponsored Person in the month following the twelve month period.

Item 3 Obligation to pay travel costs to enable sponsored persons to leave Australia

The obligation in regulation 2.80 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 4 Obligation to pay costs incurred by the Commonwealth to locate and remove unlawful non-citizens

The obligation in regulation 2.81 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 5 Obligation to keep records

The obligation in regulation 2.82 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 6 Obligation to provide records and information to the Minister

The obligation in regulation 2.83 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 7 Obligation to provide information to Immigration when certain events occur

The obligation in regulation 2.84 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 8 Obligation to ensure Primary Sponsored Person works or participates in nominated occupation, program or activity

The obligation in regulation 2.86 of the Migration Regulations applies and is varied in accordance with the following provisions.

The Approved Sponsor must ensure that the Primary Sponsored Persons are Skilled Meat Workers and that they will only be employed in the nominated occupations. Other duties can, however, be undertaken where an Overseas Worker:

- (a) is required to undertake other suitable duties pursuant to the requirements of applicable Workers Compensation laws; or
- (b) has been placed on restricted duties for a maximum period of a week (unless the Department has been notified and a longer period is agreed to) for bona fide OH&S reasons consistent with existing medical opinion.

Item 9 Obligation not to recover, transfer or take actions that would result in another person paying for certain costs

The obligation in regulation 2.87 of the Migration Regulations applies and is varied to include the following additional obligations.

- 1. The Approved Sponsor cannot recover costs including but not limited to;
 - (a) the Approved Sponsor's recruitment costs; and
 - (b) English language testing and/or training for Primary Sponsored Person.

- 2. Where the Approved Sponsor provides accommodation and/or board:
 - (a) it must not be compulsory for the Primary Sponsored Person to accept the accommodation and/or board;
 - (b) it can only be charged at a fair and reasonable market rate; and
 - (c) charges for accommodation and/or board must satisfy the Commonwealth as being fair and reasonable and meet workplace laws.
- 3. The Approved Sponsor must only permit the Skilled Meat Workers to authorise the Approved Sponsor to make deductions from their gross salary where those authorised deductions are consistent with the Deductions Plan approved by the Commonwealth for that Approved Sponsor and is consistent with relevant State/Territory legislation and workplace laws.

Schedule 6 Additional sponsorship obligations specific to this Agreement

The additional obligations listed below are applicable and commence when the Primary Sponsored Person commences his or her employment or engagement with the Approved Sponsor, and ends on the earlier of the day on which the Primary Sponsored Person:

- (a) is granted a further substantive visa that is:
 - (i) not a Subclass 457 or TSS visa; and
 - (ii) in effect; and
- (b) ceases employment or engagement with the Approved Sponsor.

Item 1 Obligations not to recruit where money owed

The Approved Sponsor must not nominate primary sponsored persons or secondary sponsored persons who it has assessed, reasonably suspects or ought reasonably suspect of owing money as a result of being recruited.

Item 2 Obligations to pay salary directly

An Approved Sponsor must pay the nominee directly, including taxes and superannuation. These payments must be made from the organisation's Australian bank account.

Item 3 Obligations regarding salary deductions

An Approved Sponsor may not deduct an amount from an amount payable to a primary sponsored person unless the deduction is authorised:

- (a) in writing by the employee and is principally for the employee's benefit; or
- (b) authorised by the employee in accordance with an enterprise agreement; or
- (c) authorised by or under a modern award or a Fair Work Act order; or
- (d) authorised by or under a law of the Commonwealth, a State or a Territory, or an order of a court.

Item 4 Induction Training

The Approved Sponsor must ensure that all Overseas Workers undergo induction training on arrival, which should cover specific processes, knowledge of equipment, production speed, OH&S requirements specific to the MPE at which they are employed.

Item 5 Verification requirements

The Approved Sponsor must:

- (a) ensure that skills assessments undertaken by Overseas Workers are videotaped unless exceptional circumstances render this impossible or impracticable, and understand that the Department may request evidence of such exceptional circumstances;
- (b) verify within two days of a Primary Sponsored Person's arrival that the Primary Visa Holder is the same person for which a visa application was lodged and a digital photograph was provided;
- (c) notify the Commonwealth immediately if there is any inconsistency identified in terms of the identity of the Primary Visa Holder;
- (d) notify the Commonwealth within one month if the Primary Sponsored Person does not have the skills required to work in the nominated position and propose remedial action to address any identified issues with the skills assessment process;
- (e) comply with any Commonwealth request by the Department for the Approved Sponsor to obtain at Approved Sponsor's expense an independent audit, by an independent authority specified by the Commonwealth, such as use the services of any assessor associated with a skills assessment failure;

- (f) re-assess any Primary Sponsored Person assessed by an assessor associated with a skills assessment failure; and
- (g) ensure that Primary Sponsored Persons and any Secondary Sponsored Persons have adequate arrangements for health insurance in place from their date of arrival in Australia.

Item 6 Labour hire providers and employment arrangements

The Approved Sponsor must ensure that where they utilised a labour hire or recruitment company to source Overseas Workers that such providers are licensed in accordance with any relevant state or territory legislation.

The Approved Sponsor must also ensure that any Overseas Workers work directly for them once employed.

Item 7 Training obligations

- 1. An Approved Sponsor must comply with the following training obligations up until the implementation of any new requirements to pay a contribution to the Skilling Australia Fund (SAF) at the time of nomination for a TSS visa.
- 2. The Approved Sponsor must, over the term of each Year of the Agreement, ensure that it meets at least one of the training obligations outlined below:
 - (i) Training expenditure* equating to 2.0 per cent of payroll of the business paid to an industry training fund; or
 - (ii) Training expenditure* equating to 1.0 per cent of total gross wages on training Australians.
- *Expenditure that may count towards training expenditure for the purposes of this Agreement is training expenditure that may count towards the 'training benchmarks' under Standard Temporary Skilled visa program requirements, as varied from time to time. These are currently outlined in Legislative Instrument IMMI 17/045.

Schedule 7 Information to be provided to the Department

The Sponsor must provide the following documentation to the Department when requested or when seeking additional Nomination Ceilings:

- (a) updated Workforce Plans;
- (b) evidence of labour market testing that has been undertaken during the last 12 months;
- (c) evidence that the Sponsor has a strong record of, or a demonstrated commitment to, employing local labour and non-discriminatory employment practices;
- (d) evidence of salary arrangements for, and amounts paid to, Primary Sponsored Persons;
- (e) details of any breaches of immigration or other Commonwealth or State laws;
- (f) the dates and numbers and occupations of any and all Australian workers who have been retrenched or made redundant in the past 12 month period; and
- (g) any additional information requested by the Minister.

Signing page

Signed for and on behalf of the Commonwealth under the written authority of the Minister for Citizenship and Multicultural Affairs: \$22(1)(a)(ii)	220/4 Vo Vii)
S22(1)(d)(ll)	s22(1)(a)(ii)
Senior Director Economic & Skilled Visa Program Branch Print name and details of the Authorised Person \$22(1)(a)(ii)	Signature of the Authorised Person Date of signing: [2, 6,]
	dd/mm/yyyy
Signature of Witness	
s22(1)(a)(ii)	Date of signing: 12, 6, 15
Print name of Witness	dd/mm/yyyy
Signed for and on behalf of Roverworth Pty Ltd)	
ACN 112 266 421)	
In accordance with section 127 of the Corporations Act 2001 by:	s47F
and all the all the same	
Signatyre of director/Authorised Person s47F	Signature of Director/Secretary
Print name and details of the Authorised Person	Print name and details of the Authorised Person
Date of signing: 241.5.1.18	Date of signing: $\frac{74}{5}$
Print name and details of the Sponsor (if the Sponsor is not a body corporate).	
Signature of Witness	
Print name of Witness	
Date of signing://	



Australian Government

Department of Home Affairs

LABOUR AGREEMENT - MEAT INDUSTRY

Under the Migration Act 1958

Between

Commonwealth of Australia as represented by the Minister for Immigration, Citizenship, Migrant Services and Multicultural Affairs

(Minister)

and

Roverworth Pty Ltd

Table of Contents

Background	4
Operative Par	t4
1.	Definitions4
2.	Interpretation
3.	Agreement period
4.	Pre-contractual representations
Nomination of	Overseas Workers
5.	Nomination requirements
6.	Visa requirements
7.	Visa period
8.	Sponsorship obligations
9.	Reporting9
10.	Review9
11.	Audits of this Agreement
Miscellaneous	Provisions 9
12.	Notices9
13.	Variation and entire agreement
14.	Suspension9
15.	Termination
16.	Sanctions
17.	Relationship between the parties
18.	Assurances, counterparts and assignment
19.	Dispute resolution
20.	Confidential information and information sharing
21.	Fettering and publishing
22.	Legal expenses
23.	Survival after termination
24.	Governing law and jurisdiction
25.	Indemnity
Schedule 1	Particulars14
Schedule 2	Ceilings and concessions relating to nomination criteria covered by this Agreement 15
Schedule 3	Additional requirements for nomination
Schedule 4	Concessions relating to visa criteria covered by this Agreement
Schedule 5	Variation of sponsorship obligations

Schedule 6	Additional sponsorship obligations specific to this Agreement	22
Schedule 7	Information to be provided to the Department	24
Signing page	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	25

Labour Agreement

Effective Date: Date signed by the Commonwealth being the last part to sign the Agreement.

Parties

The Commonwealth of Australia (the "Commonwealth") as represented by the Minister for Immigration, Citizenship and Multicultural Affairs (the "Minister"). The Commonwealth's particulars are set out in **Item 1** of **Schedule 1**.

AND

The party specified in **Item 2** of **Schedule 1** (the "Sponsor"). The Sponsor's particulars are set out in **Item 2** of **Schedule 1**.

Background

- A. This labour agreement (the "Agreement") is a "labour agreement" as defined in the Migration Regulations.
- B. This Agreement will be administered by the Department of Home Affairs ("the Department") on behalf of the Commonwealth.
- C. This Agreement sets out the terms and conditions by which the Sponsor may recruit, employ or engage the services of overseas workers who are intended to be employed or engaged by the Sponsor as holders of Skill Shortage (TSS) visas or Employer Nomination Scheme (ENS) visa in its business undertaking as described in **Item 3** of **Schedule 1**.
- D. For the purposes of the TSS visa programs, the Sponsor, by virtue of entering into this Agreement, will also be an "Approved Sponsor" as defined in the Migration Act.

Operative Part

1. Definitions

- 1.1 Unless the context indicates a contrary intention, words and phrases in this Agreement have the same meanings attributed to them in the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations.
- 1.2 In the event of any inconsistency between this Agreement and the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations, the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations will prevail.
- 1.3 In this Agreement:

Address means a party's address set out in Schedule 1.

Adverse Information has the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Agreement means this labour agreement, any schedules, attachments and any documents incorporated into this labour agreement by reference.

Annualised Salary means for the purpose of this Agreement remuneration paid to an Overseas Worker on an annualised basis from the date they commence employment, excluding periods that they are offshore on approved leave without pay.

ANZSCO means the Australian and New Zealand Standard Classification of Occupations.

Approved Sponsor has the same meaning as in the Migration Act.

AQF means the Australian Qualifications Framework.

Australian where the context so admits, means an Australian citizen (whether born in Australia or elsewhere) or a non-citizen who, being usually resident in Australia is the holder of a permanent visa granted under the Migration Act.

Business Day means a day on which business is generally conducted in the Australian Capital Territory, an excludes Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays.

Business Address means the physical address at which a business is located.

Confidential Information in relation to a Party, means information that is:

- (a) by its nature capable of being protected in law or equity as confidential;
- (b) designated by a Party as confidential in Item 5 of Schedule 1; or
- (c) in the case of the Commonwealth's Confidential Information, the Approved Sponsor knows or ought to know is confidential;

but does not include information:

- (d) which is or becomes public knowledge other than by breach of the Contract or any other confidentiality obligations; or
- that has been independently developed or acquired without reference to the other Party's Confidential Information.

Concessions means any variations to the requirements prescribed in the Migration Legislation in relation to the skills, qualifications, employment background, level of English Language proficiency and the Temporary Skilled Migration Income Threshold (TSMIT) required for the nomination and grant of a TSS visa.

Damages means all liabilities, losses, damages, costs and expenses, including legal fees and disbursements and costs of investigation, litigation, settlement, judgment, interest and penalties.

Deductions Plan means a plan submitted by the Approved Sponsor to the Commonwealth, seeking approval of fair, reasonable and lawful deductions from the gross salary of Skilled Meat Workers (other than deductions required by Australian law or statute), which if approved by the Commonwealth, could be made available to the Company's Skilled Meat Workers should they freely choose to avail themselves of this opportunity to which the deductions relate.

Earnings has the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Employment period means the stay period that a Sponsor requests for the Nominee in a TSS nomination application form.

Effective Date means:

- (a) the date (if any) specified in Item 4 of Schedule 1;
- (b) if no such date is specified, the date on which this Agreement is signed by the parties, or if signed on separate days, the date of the last signature.

Email Account means a party's email address set out in Schedule 1.

ENS visa means an Employer Nomination Scheme (ENS) visa (Subclass 186).

Full time means 38 hours or a period between 32 and 45 hours that is specified under the relevant industry award and is consistent with the National Employment Standards.

IELTS means the International English Language Testing System.

Industrial instrument means an instrument in force under a law of the Commonwealth or the State/Territory that regulates workplace relations and prescribes terms and conditions of employment between employers and employees including, but not limited to, an award or agreement made under the Commonwealth Fair Work Act 2009 (Cth) and an award or agreement made by a relevant State/Territory industrial tribunal or court.

MPE means a Meat Processing Establishment wholly or predominately concerned with any one or more of the activities of killing, dressing, boning, slicing, preparation and/or packing of fresh meat.

Migration Act means the Migration Act 1958, as amended from time to time.

Migration Legislation means the Migration Act and/or the Migration Regulations and / or any instruments made under the Migration Act or the Migration Regulations as amended from time to time.

Migration Regulations means the Migration Regulations 1994 made under the Migration Act 1958, as amended from time to time.

Minister means "the Minister" for Immigration, Citizenship and Multicultural Affairs, the Assistant Minister and his or her authorised representative performing relevant functions as the Minister under the Migration Legislation.

MINTRAC means the Meat Industry National Training Advisory Council.

Nominate means to lodge a nomination application for a TSS or ENS visa under Migration Legislation.

Nomination means a nomination referred to in section 140GB of the Migration Act.

Nomination Ceiling means the number of nominations that an Approved Sponsor can have approved in any Year for a specified Occupation as defined in Schedule 2.

Nominee means the Overseas Worker specified in a nomination.

Occupations means those occupations prescribed in Schedule 2.

On-hire¹ means a person's business activities which include activities relating to either or both of:

- (a) the recruitment of labour for supply to another business; and
- (b) the hiring of labour to another business;
- (c) the reference to 'another business' in paragraph (a) and (b) above, includes any other business that is related to a person's business.

Overseas Worker means the holder of, or an applicant or proposed applicant for, a TSS or ENS visa, whether onshore or offshore.

Postal Address means the address to which mail is delivered.

Relevant Industrial Instrument means an industrial instrument that applies to a Primary Sponsored Person and regulates the terms and conditions of employment of that Primary Sponsored Person.

Secondary Sponsored Person takes the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Stand-down means "the employer has the right to deduct payment for any period on which an employee cannot be usefully employed, because of any industrial action (other than industrial action organised or engaged in by the employer), or through any breakdown of machinery if the employer cannot reasonably be held responsible for the breakdown or any stoppage of work for any cause for which the employer cannot reasonably be held responsible, or for any period which an employee cannot be usefully employed because of any industrial action in the meat industry".

Sponsor means the party to this Agreement specified in Item 2 of Schedule 1.

Standard Business Sponsor has the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Standard Skilled visa program requirements refers to the legislative requirements that must be met for the TSS visa program if the sponsor is a standard business sponsor, or under the ENS visa program if applying for permanent residence.

Subclass 457 visa means the Temporary Work (Skilled) (Subclass 457) visa

TSS visa means the Temporary Skill Shortage (TSS) visa.

Terms and Conditions of Employment takes the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

The Department means the Department of Home Affairs.

Top Up means an additional salary amount paid to an Overseas Workers to ensure that requirements under this Agreement are met as prescribed under clause 2. **Item 2** of **Schedule 6**.

TSMIT means the Temporary Skilled Migration Income Threshold, as amended from time to time, specified in an instrument made under the Migration Regulations.

TSMIT Fortnightly Rate means the (annual salary x 12) divided by 313.

TSMIT Hourly Rate means the TSMIT Weekly Rate divided by 38.

TSMIT Weekly Rate means the (annual salary x 6) divided by 313.

Workforce means the total number of Australian workers and temporary visa holders engaged by the Approved Sponsor (including as contractors).

Workplace Law means the Fair Work Act 2009, and relevant laws of the Commonwealth and of the relevant State or Territory relating to equal employment opportunity, unlawful discrimination and workplace health and safety legislation regulating the employment by the Sponsor of its overseas workers.

Workforce Plan means a report that outlines the current, and where requested, projected future composition of an Approved Sponsor's workforce. It should include details of the total number of Australian workers

¹ An example of On-hire is where a person proposes to sponsor someone to come to Australia for the purpose of hiring out the visa holder's service to client organisations, rather than to work directly in the person's business.

(including permanent residents) and temporary visa holders engaged by the Sponsor.

Year means the period of 12 months commencing on the day this Agreement commences, or a period of 12 months commencing on an anniversary of that day.

2. Interpretation

(corresponding meanings) a word that is derived from a defined word has a corresponding meaning.

(headings) clause headings, the table of contents and footnotes are inserted for convenience only and do not affect interpretation of this Agreement.

(references) a reference to a party, clause, paragraph or schedule is a reference to a party, clause, paragraph or schedule to, or of this Agreement.

(requirements) a requirement to do anything includes a requirement to cause that thing to be done, and a requirement not to do anything includes a requirement to prevent that thing being done.

(including) including and includes are not words of limitation, and a list of examples is not limited to those items or to items of a similar kind.

(rules of construction) neither this Agreement nor any part of it is to be construed against a party on the basis that the party or its lawyers were responsible for its drafting.

(singular and gender) the singular includes the plural and vice-versa, and words importing one gender include all other genders.

(legislation) a reference to any legislation or provision of legislation includes all amendments, consolidations or replacements and all regulations, directions or instruments issued under it.

(day) unless stated otherwise a reference to a day is a reference to a calendar day.

(month) a reference to a month is a reference to a calendar month.

(person) a reference to a person includes an individual, a body corporate, statutory corporation, partnership, body politic and permitted assigns, as the context requires.

(writing) a reference to a notice, consent, request, approval or other communication under this Agreement or an agreement between the parties means a written notice, request, consent, approval or agreement.

3. Agreement period

- 3.1 This Agreement commences from the Effective Date as specified in Item 4 of Schedule 1.
- 3.2 Unless terminated earlier in accordance with clause 16 of this Agreement, the period of this Agreement will be the time specified in **Item 4** of **Schedule 1**.

4. Pre-contractual representations

4.1 The Sponsor warrants that information supplied to the Commonwealth with respect to the Sponsor being a proper person to enter into this Agreement and upon which the Commonwealth relied, was true and correct

Nomination of Overseas Workers

5. Nomination requirements

- 5.1 The Sponsor may only nominate an Overseas Worker for:
 - (a) visas outlined in Schedule 2;
 - (b) Occupations outlined in Schedule 2;
 - (c) up to the Nomination Ceiling specified in Schedule 2; and
 - (d) an Occupation to be performed in a location listed in Schedule 2.
- 5.2 The Sponsor acknowledges that the Minister may, in his/her absolute discretion, vary the:
 - (a) Nomination Ceilings up or down;
 - (b) Concessions; or
 - (c) Occupations.

- If the Sponsor wishes to increase the Nomination Ceilings in any year during the period of this Agreement as set out in Schedule 2 to this Agreement, they must provide the Department with the information detailed in Schedule 7. A departmental decision-maker will then assess whether the Department will agree to proposed variations to the existing agreement.
- The Sponsor acknowledges that there is no guarantee that additional Nominations and increases in the Nomination ceilings will be agreed to and that the Commonwealth reserves the right to make the final decision as to the Nomination Ceiling for each year of the Agreement.
- Before they nominate a Nominee under this Agreement, the Sponsor must take all reasonable steps to ensure 5.5 that:
 - it recruits suitably skilled Australians who are available; and (a)
 - the Overseas Worker will be able to meet any revised visa requirements outlined at Schedule 4. (b)
- 5.6 The Sponsor will aim to ensure that:
 - in any one Year period overseas workers do not comprise more than a third of their Workforce;
 - their reliance on overseas workers decreases during the life of this Agreement; and (b)
 - their reliance on temporary visas decreases where existing temporary visa holders have successfully transitioned to permanent residence under this Agreement.
- In addition to TSS or ENS nomination requirements outlined in the Migration Regulations, the Sponsor must demonstrate, through written evidence, when lodging a TSS or ENS nomination that the Standard skilled visa requirements as outlined in the Migration Regulations in relation to the TSMIT, Earnings and/or working hours, are met unless varied in Schedule 2.
- The Sponsor must comply with any additional requirements for nomination that are stipulated by the 5.8 Minister in Schedule 3.

6. Visa requirements

- 6.1 The Sponsor acknowledges that as part of the visa application process, the Nominee will need to meet the criteria for grant of a visa as outlined in the Migration Regulations.
- 6.2 This may include:
 - requirements that the Nominee has the sufficient skills, experience and English proficiency to perform the nominated occupation, and demonstrated this where requested by the Department; and
 - if applying for permanent residence, any age requirements.
- 6.3 In most cases, these requirements mirror Standard skilled visa program requirements.
- Where variations to regulatory or policy requirements apply for visa applicants who are being sponsored under 6.4 this Agreement, because the Minister has agreed to certain Concessions, these are specified in Schedule 4.

7. Visa period

TSS visa

The Sponsor acknowledges that when nominating an Overseas Worker for a TSS visa, the Sponsor will select a proposed employment period of up to a maximum of four (4) years. If approved, the TSS visa for the 7.1 Nominee will be granted for the requested period, unless a different or more restricted period is specified in Schedule 4.

ENS visa

A permanent visa will be granted if all legislative requirements are met. 7.2

8. Sponsorship obligations

- 8.1 In relation to any TSS visa holders, as an Approved Sponsor, the Sponsor must satisfy:
 - its sponsorship obligations in the Migration Regulations, including where varied (if at all), as outlined in Schedule 5: in Schedule 5;
 - any additional obligations imposed in accordance with subsection 140H(3) of the Migration Act (b) specified in Schedule 6.

ion. Department Freedom of the Released ē

8.2 The Sponsor must comply with Workplace Law, and immigration laws regulating employment of the Sponsor's sponsored Overseas Workers.

9. Reporting

9.1 The Sponsor must provide a report to the Department within 30 days following a request by the Minister. This report must include the items outlined at Schedule 7 to this Agreement.

10. Review

10.1 This Agreement will be reviewed after three years and/or on an annual basis where additional Nominations increasing the Nomination Ceilings are sought by the Sponsor.

11. Audits of this Agreement

- 11.1 The Minister may, from time to time, audit the Sponsor's performance of its obligations under this Agreement and the Sponsor will cooperate with the Minister for the purpose of such audits.
- 11.2 Without limiting the generality of the preceding clause, the Sponsor will:
 - liaise with and provide information and assistance to the Minister as reasonably required by the Minister for the purposes of such audits;
 - comply with the Minister's reasonable requests or requirements for the purposes of such audits.
- 11.3 Unless specified otherwise in the Migration Legislation, the Sponsor will retain all records generated for the purposes of this Agreement for seven (7) years from the date of expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Miscellaneous Provisions

12. Notices

- 12.1 Any notice, demand, consent or other communication given or made under this Agreement;
 - must be clearly readable; (a)
 - must, unless it is sent by email, be signed by the party giving or making it (or signed on behalf of that (b) party by its authorised representative);
 - must, unless it is sent by email, be left at the Address or sent by pre-paid security post (air mail if (c) outside Australia) to the Business Address of the recipient; and
 - may be sent by email to the receiving party's Email Account.
- 12.2 A notice to be served on the Commonwealth will be taken to be served if it is served on the Department's address in Item 1 of Schedule 1.
- 12.3 A party may change its Business Address, Postal Address or Email Account for the purpose of service by
- 12.4 Any communication will be taken to be received by the recipient:

13.

- A party may change its Business Address, Postal Address or Email Account for the purpose of service by giving notice of that change to the other party in accordance with clause 12.1.

 Any communication will be taken to be received by the recipient:

 (a) in the case of a letter, on the third (seventh, if sent outside the country in which the letter is posted) Business Day after the date of posting;

 (b) in the case of an email, at the end of the day in which the email is transmitted.

 Variation and entire agreement

 The contents of this Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the parties and supersede any prior negotiations, representations, understandings or arrangements made between the parties regarding the subject matter of this Agreement, whether orally or in writing.

 Unless otherwise specified in this Deed, a provision of this Agreement can only be varied by a written document executed by or on behalf of all parties. 13.1 The contents of this Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the parties and supersede any prior
- 13.2 Unless otherwise specified in this Deed, a provision of this Agreement can only be varied by a written

14. Suspension

14.1 The Minister may, in his/her absolute discretion, suspend this Agreement, in whole or in part, including in situations where Adverse Information regarding the Sponsor has been received, is being investigated and is

- not considered reasonable to disregard.
- 14.2 The Sponsor and other third parties are not entitled to any compensation or payments as a result of the Minister suspending this Agreement under clause 14.1.
- 14.3 Where the Minister suspends this Agreement in accordance with clause 15.1 the Minister will notify the Sponsor in writing.
- 14.4 For the avoidance of doubt, where the Minister notifies that this Agreement has been suspended in accordance with clause 14.3, the suspension shall take effect at the time the notice is taken to be received by the Sponsor, in accordance with clause 12.
- 14.5 Where the Minister suspends this Agreement in accordance with clause 14.1, the Minister may, in determining the order for considering and disposing of nomination applications and visa applications, give the lowest priority to applications made under this Agreement.
- 14.6 After a period of suspension, the Minister may, at his/her absolute discretion, choose to resume this Agreement by notifying the Sponsor in writing.
- 14.7 Where the Minister chooses to resume this Agreement in accordance with clause 14.6 and notifies the Sponsor, the Agreement will resume at the time the notice is taken to be received, in accordance with clause 12.
- 14.8 For the avoidance of doubt, any period of suspension will have no impact on and will not amend the period of this Agreement. The period of this Agreement will remain as specified in **Item 4** of **Schedule 1**.

15. Termination

- 15.1 The Minister may, in his/her absolute discretion, terminate this Agreement at any time including for reasons of public interest where:
 - (a) there is a change in policy or a change in government which results in a change in policy settings; or
 - (b) Adverse Information has been received by the Department regarding the Sponsor and it is not considered reasonable to disregard.
- 15.2 The Sponsor will not be entitled to any compensation or payments as a result of the Minister terminating this Agreement under clause 15.1.
- 15.3 Otherwise, if the Minister contends that the Sponsor is in default under this Agreement, the Minister may, without prejudice to any right of action or remedy which has accrued or which may accrue (including the Minister's entitlement to terminate in accordance with clause 15.1):
 - (a) suspend this Agreement in whole or in part; and
 - (b) serve notice on the Sponsor, advising that this Agreement is suspended and requiring the Sponsor to rectify to the satisfaction of the Minister, those aspects of the Sponsor's performance which are of concern to the Commonwealth; or
 - (c) terminate this Agreement without prejudice to any right of action or remedy which has accrued or which may accrue.
- 15.4 If as an Approved Sponsor, the Sponsor is in breach of a sponsorship obligations under the Migration Legislation, the Sponsor will be taken to be in default under this Agreement as if the statutory obligation was a contractual obligation of the Sponsor.
- 15.5 For the avoidance of doubt, a breach of the Sponsor's warranty given in clause 4.1 with respect to precontractual information, will entitle the Minister to suspend this Agreement and serve a notice under clause 15.3 and/or to take any other contractual redress in accordance with this Agreement.
- 15.6 A party may, in its discretion, terminate this Agreement early by giving 28 days' notice to the other party, whereupon this Agreement will be terminated with effect 28 days after the notice of termination is served. A party serving a notice of termination under this sub-clause:
 - (a) need not specify a reason for serving the notice;
 - (b) may withdraw the notice before the 28 days have elapsed; and
 - (c) will not be liable to compensate the other party for costs or damages that may arise from the early termination.
- 15.7 For the avoidance of doubt if this Agreement is terminated for any reason, or for no reason:

- the Sponsor will no longer be an Approved Sponsor under Migration Legislation and their approval (a) as a sponsor for the purposes of this Agreement will be automatically terminated; and
- visas granted pursuant to this Agreement will be subject to the operation of the Migration Legislation.
- 15.8 A waiver by a party in respect of any breach of a condition or provision of this Agreement will not be deemed to be a waiver in respect of any continuing or subsequent breach of that provision, or breach of any other provision. The failure of a party to enforce at any time any of the provisions of this Agreement will in no way be interpreted as a waiver of such provision.

16. Sanctions

- 16.1 Instead of terminating this Agreement:
 - the Commonwealth may, in its discretion, prevent or 'bar' the Sponsor from making further nominations under this Agreement for a specified period, or
 - the Minister may, in his or her absolute discretion, give the lowest processing priority to nomination applications and visa applications made under this Agreement.
- The Commonwealth may, in its discretion, instead of terminating this Agreement or in addition to terminating this Agreement, take action against the Sponsor for a breach of contract to recover damages and/or for injunctive relief.
- 16.3 The Commonwealth may, in its discretion, instead of taking any enforcement action under this Agreement or in addition to taking such enforcement action, pursue a civil penalty or issue an infringement notice under the Migration Legislation for failing to satisfy a sponsorship obligation.

17. Relationship between the parties

- 17.1 Nothing in this Agreement:
 - constitutes a partnership between the parties; or
 - except as expressly provided, makes a party an agent of another party for any purpose.
- 17.2 A party cannot in any way or for any purpose:
 - (a) bind another party; or
 - contract in the name of another party.
- 17.3 If a party must fulfil an obligation and that party is dependent on another party, then that other party must do each thing reasonably within its power to assist the other in the performance of that obligation.
- If the Sponsor is constituted by more than one legal entity (such as a partnership or an unincorporated association), each of those legal entities will be jointly and severally liable for performance under this Agreement.

Assurances, counterparts and assignment

- 18.1 Each party must promptly execute all documents and do all other things reasonably necessary or desirable give effect to the arrangements recorded in this Agreement.
- 18.2 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts.
- 18.3 A party cannot assign or otherwise transfer its rights under this Agreement without the prior written consen of the other party.

19. Dispute resolution

- 19.1 The Parties will deal with any dispute arising during the course of this Agreement as follows:
 - the party claiming that there is a dispute must notify the other party of the dispute;
 - (b) the parties will use reasonable endeavours to resolve the dispute by direct negotiation;
 - the parties must allow 28 days from notification of the dispute to reach a resolution or to agree to refer the dispute to mediation in accordance with, and subject to, The Institute of Arbitrators and Mediators Australia Mediation Rules or some other form of alternative dispute resolution procedure agreed to in writing by the Parties; and

Department of Home Affairs Information Act Freedom of Ē

- in the event that: (d)
 - the Parties have attended mediation, or some other form of alternative dispute resolution procedure; and
 - no written settlement agreement is executed within 15 Business Days (or such extended time as (ii) the Parties may agree in writing before the expiration of the 15 Business days) of the conclusion of the mediation or some other form of alternative dispute resolution procedure

then either Party may commence legal proceedings or terminate this Agreement.

19.2 The Parties acknowledge that the Migration Review Tribunal and Administrative Appeals Tribunal may have jurisdiction to review decisions in relation to nomination applications and visa applications. This Agreement does not abrogate any rights of a merits review by the Migration Review Tribunal or the Administrative Appeals Tribunal.

Confidential information and information sharing

- 20.1 If a party's information is specified as Confidential Information in Item 5 of Schedule 1, the other party will not disclose the information without the first party's prior written consent, except when disclosure of the information is required by law, statutory or portfolio duties.
- 20.2 The Sponsor consents to information concerning it which is relevant to the operation of this Agreement being shared by the Minister with:
 - State or Territory government agencies in the State or Territory in which the Sponsor conducts business, where those agencies have regulatory or other relevant interests in the operation of this Agreement:
 - Commonwealth agencies with regulatory or other relevant interests in the operation of this Agreement, including the Department of Jobs and Small Business.
- 20.3 The Sponsor will allow the disclosure of information related to this Agreement for various reporting and Commonwealth disclosure obligations. These disclosures include:
 - disclosure of procurement information for the Department's annual reporting purposes;
 - disclosure to the Parliament and its committees, as appropriate, in line with the Government (b) Guidelines for Official Witnesses before Parliamentary Committees and Related Matters;
 - disclosure of information consistent with the Freedom of Information Act 1982; (c)
 - (d) disclosure of discoverable information that is relevant to a case before a court; and
 - disclosure of information as required under other legislation or Commonwealth policy.
- 20.4 The Sponsor acknowledges that the Department will publish information on its website regarding this Agreement, with more sensitive business information contained in labour agreement requests and agreements, as specified at Item 5 of Schedule 1 to remain confidential.
- 20.5 The Sponsor must comply with any reasonable request by the Commonwealth for information to enable the Commonwealth to meet its obligations in this Agreement.

- Commonwealth to meet its obligations in this Agreement.

 20.6 Clause 20.3 survives the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

 21. Fettering and publishing

 21.1 Nothing in this Agreement fetters or detracts from the Commonwealth's discretions, functions or powers under the Migration Legislation, Workplace Law or other relevant Commonwealth laws.

 21.2 In the event the Commonwealth has published an outline of this Agreement, the published outline is an invitation to treat with prospective sponsors and is not an offer to enter into contractual relations with any such sponsor on the basis of the published outline.

 21.3 The Commonwealth may grant or refuse to grant consent, in its absolute discretion, to any application by the Sponsor for consent to a change in control of the Sponsor that may be inimical to the Sponsor's performance.
- Sponsor for consent to a change in control of the Sponsor that may be inimical to the Sponsor's performance under this Agreement, and the Commonwealth may attach such conditions on a consent as the Commonwealth sees fit.

Freedom of Information g Released er the

22. Legal expenses

- 22.1 Each party must pay its own legal costs and disbursements in connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution and carrying into effect of this Agreement.
- 22.2 The Sponsor must pay any stamp duty assessed on or in relation to this Agreement and any instrument or transaction required by or necessary to give effect to this Agreement.

23. Survival after termination

23.1 Any provision of this Agreement which expressly or by implication from its nature is intended to survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement and any rights arising on termination or expiration will survive, including Confidential Information, and any sponsorship obligations as an Approved Sponsor.

24. Governing law and jurisdiction

- 24.1 The laws applicable in the Australian Capital Territory govern this Agreement.
- 24.2 The parties submit to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Australian Capital Territory and any courts competent to hear appeals from those courts.

25. Indemnity

- 25.1 The Sponsor agrees to indemnify the Minister from and against any:
 - (a) cost or liability incurred by the Minister; or
 - (b) loss or expense incurred by the Minister in dealing with any claim against it including legal costs and expenses on a solicitor/own client basis and the cost of time spent, resources used or disbursements paid by the Minister,

arising from:

- (c) any act or omission by the Sponsor or its Personnel in connection with this Agreement; or
- (d) any breach of its Sponsorship obligations as an Approved Sponsor or warranties under this Agreement; irrespective of whether there was fault on the part of the person whose conduct gave rise to that liability, loss or damage, or loss or expense.
- 25.2 The Sponsor's liability to indemnify the Minister under clause 25.1 will be reduced proportionately to the extent that any breach of this Agreement by the Minister or any act or omission involving fault on the part of the Minister contributed to the relevant cost, liability, loss, damage, or expense.
- 25.3 The right of the Minister to be indemnified under clause 25.1 is in addition to, and not exclusive of, any other right, power or remedy provided by law, but the Minister is not entitled to be compensated in excess of the amount of the relevant cost, liability, loss, damage, or expense.

25.4 In clause 25.1:

- (a) "the Minister" includes officers, employees and agents of the Minister; and
- (b) "Personnel" means a party's officers, employees, agents, contract staff or professional advisers engaged in, or in relation to, the performance or management of this Agreement.
- 25.5 Clause 25.1 will survive six (6) years from the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Schedule 1

Particulars

Item 1

Commonwealth Particulars

Name:

Department of Home Affairs

Address:

6 Chan Street, BELCONNEN ACT 2617

Telephone Number:

s22(1)(a)(ii)

Email Address:

Contact officer:

Senior Director, Employer Sponsored Program Management

Item 2

The Sponsor's Particulars

Name:

Roverworth Pty Ltd

ACN

ABN:

40 276 321 817

Business Structure:

Australian private company

Business Address:

302 Grantham Scrub Road, Veradilla QLD 4347

Postal Address:

302 Grantham Scrub Road, Veradilla QLD 4347

Telephone Number:

Email Address:

Contact Officer:

Item 3

The Sponsor's Business

Industry segment:

Meat Industry

Item 4

Commencement and period

Effective Date:

The date signed by the Commonwealth being the last party to sign

the Agreement

Cease Date:

Five (5) years from the Effective Date

Item 5

Commercial-in-Confidence Information

The company specific information (i.e. non-template text) contained

in the Schedules to this Agreement.

All information provided to request and secure access to this Agreement.

Freedom of Information Act 1982 Released by Department of Home Affairs

Schedule 2 Ceilings and concessions relating to nomination criteria covered by this Agreement

Item 1 Occupations, Nomination Ceiling and Location

The table below outlines the occupations that can be utilised under this Agreement for the visa programs specified. It also specifies the nomination ceilings per Year for these Occupations, and where the nominated positions should be based (i.e. location of work).

TSS nomination ceilings

Occupation	Code		Nominat	Y			
		Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Location of work
Skilled Meat Worker	070499	s47					

Subclass 186 nomination ceilings

Occupation	Code		Nominat				
		Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Location of work
Skilled Meat Worker	070499	─s47					

Note:

- The Minister may vary the above ceiling numbers and Occupations at any time, with ceiling numbers subject to annual review.
- If the Sponsor wishes to increase the ceilings specified above, they must seek a variation to this Agreement as outlined at clause 5.3 to this Agreement.
- There is currently no ANZSCO code for the occupation of 'Skilled meat worker'. For administration purposes only, Sponsors should use code 070499 when nominating this position.

Item 2 Concession to Occupation Tasks

A Skilled Meat Work (Code: 070499) for the purposes of this agreement is responsible for undertaking the following tasks, which include the duties of the ANZSCO occupations Slaughterer and Meat Boner and Slicer:

- stuns and kills livestock:
- prepares carcasses for further processing by removing internal organs and hides;
- operates switching controls to direct and drop carcasses and meat cuts from supply rails to boning tables;
- cuts meat to separate meat, fat and tissue from around bones;
- washes, scrapes and trims foreign material and blood from meat;
- cuts sides and quarters of meat into standard meat cuts, such as rumps, flanks and shoulders, and removing internal fat, blood clots, bruises and other matter to prepare them for packing and marketing;
- operates restrainer and stunning equipment;
- severs jugular veins of stunned animals to drain blood and facilitate dressing;
- trims and removes head meat and severs animal heads;
- · slits open, eviscerates and trims animal carcasses; and
- may slaughter livestock according to procedures required by religious customs.

Important: A skilled meat worker employed under this Agreement may not undertake labouring, or unskilled duties, other than to the extent of circumstances prescribed above or where relevant in the context of the

circumstances outlined in **Item 8** of **Schedule 5** to this Agreement. This Agreement does not allow Overseas Workers to be placed in unskilled labouring positions.

Item 3 Concessions regarding salary requirements

In addition to meeting Standard skilled visa requirements, the Sponsor must:

- (a) employ Overseas Workers in full-time positions only;
- (b) ensure that if the Overseas Worker is paid via an Annualised Salary that they receive a Top-Up if, over an annual period, an Australian worker performing equivalent work in the Sponsor's workplace at the same location under different salary arrangements receives a higher amount.

Schedule 3 Additional requirements for nomination

Item 1 Labour market testing arrangements

TSS visas

Evidence of labour market testing must accompany nomination applications lodged in accordance with this Agreement. The evidence provided should be equivalent to that required under Standard skilled visa program requirements.

Item 2 Local workforce requirements

TSS visas

Unless otherwise agreed by both Parties, the Sponsor must provide a statement, in writing, together with any nomination application lodged, which indicates that at the MPE approved under this Agreement, within a period of three (3) months prior to the date of the application, they have **not** done any of the following:

- permanently terminated the employment of more than five (5) percent of its Australian workforce (except in circumstances of demonstrated misconduct or unlawful conduct);
- stood down its Australian workforce for more than seven (7) consecutive days at any single given time; or
- reduced the shifts of its Australian workforce to less than 50 per cent of the regular shift quota and/or to parttime hours unless requested by the Australian employees.

Item 3 Direct Employment

All visas

The Sponsor must only make a nomination application in respect of a nominee that would work directly for them at an MPE.

Item 4 Time period required to hold temporary skilled visa

ENS visa

The Sponsor may only nominate an Overseas Worker for a Subclass 186 visa who has been employed:

- directly for them as a Primary Subclass 457 or TSS visa holder in the nominated occupation, for at least three (3) years before the nomination is made; or
- if they held a Subclass 457 visa before 18 March 2018, as a primary Subclass 457 or TSS visa holder in the nominated occupation, for at least three (3) years before the nomination is made.

Item 5 Digital image required

All visas

The Sponsor must attach a digital photograph of the applicant to the nomination application in ImmiAccount.

Schedule 4 Concessions relating to visa criteria covered by this Agreement

Item 1 Qualifications and Experience

Overseas Workers nominated under this agreement must:

- (a) have been assessed and verified by a MINTRAC registered assessor, or an assessor approved by the Commonwealth, with a Certificate IV in Training and Assessment experienced in meat processing, to be Skilled Meat Workers with a minimum skill level commensurate with the MINTRAC referenced AQF Certificate III in meat processing; and
- (b) either:
 - (i) demonstrate a minimum of three (3) years skilled work experience obtained at an MPE acceptable to the Parties; or
 - (ii) have been working in Australia on a Subclass 457 or TSS visa at an Australian MPE acceptable to the Parties for at least nine (9) months prior to being nominated.

Item 2 English Language

TSS visas

Overseas Workers nominated under this Agreement, who are unable to meet Standard skilled visa program requirements, can be considered to have sufficient English to perform the nominated occupation if:

they demonstrate an IELTS overall test score of at least 5.0 with no minimum test score;

or

 was not required to provide evidence of English language proficiency at the time of the grant of their most recent subclass 457 visa under previous meat industry labour agreements.

ENS visa

Overseas Workers nominated under this Agreement, who are unable to meet Standard skilled visa program requirements, can be considered to have sufficient English to perform the nominated occupation if:

• they demonstrate an IELTS overall test score of at least 5.0 with no minimum test score;

01

- are a current Subclass 457 visa holder who was not required to provide evidence of English language proficiency at the time of grant of their Subclass 457 visa; and
- provides evidence as prescribed in the Migration Regulations for meeting functional English.

Item 3 Age

The Sponsor may only nominate an Overseas Worker for an ENS visa who is under 50 years of age at the time of nomination and visa application lodgement.

Schedule 5 Variation of sponsorship obligations

Item 1 Obligation to cooperate with inspectors

The obligation in regulation 2.78 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 2 Obligation to ensure equivalent terms and conditions of employment

The obligation in regulation 2.79 of the Migration Regulations applies and is varied to include the following additional obligations.

The Approved Sponsor must:

- (a) employ the Primary Sponsored Person on a full time basis;
- (b) only deduct payments from the Primary Sponsored Person's salary with the consent and written permission of the Primary Sponsored Person;
- (c) pay the Primary Sponsored Person a Top-Up if an equivalent Australian is paid more than the Primary Sponsored Person in any twelve month period for equivalent work:
 - (i) this amount should equal the difference between the amount paid to the equivalent Australian and the amount paid to the Primary Sponsored Person for the twelve month period; and
 - (ii) this amount is to be paid to the Primary Sponsored Person in the month following the twelve month period.

Item 3 Obligation to pay travel costs to enable sponsored persons to leave Australia

The obligation in regulation 2.80 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 4 Obligation to pay costs incurred by the Commonwealth to locate and remove unlawful non-citizens

The obligation in regulation 2.81 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 5 Obligation to keep records

The obligation in regulation 2.82 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 6 Obligation to provide records and information to the Minister

The obligation in regulation 2.83 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 7 Obligation to provide information to Immigration when certain events occur

The obligation in regulation 2.84 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 8 Obligation to ensure Primary Sponsored Person works or participates in nominated occupation, program or activity

The obligation in regulation 2.86 of the Migration Regulations applies and is varied in accordance with the following provisions.

The Approved Sponsor must ensure that the Primary Sponsored Persons are Skilled Meat Workers and that they will only be employed in the nominated occupations. Other duties can, however, be undertaken where an Overseas Worker:

(a) is required to undertake other suitable duties pursuant to the requirements of applicable Workers Compensation laws; or

(b) has been placed on restricted duties for a maximum period of a week (unless the Department has been notified and a longer period is agreed to) for bona fide Occupational Health and Safety (OH&S) reasons consistent with existing medical opinion.

Item 9 Obligation not to recover, transfer or take actions that would result in another person paying for certain costs

The obligation in regulation 2.87 of the Migration Regulations applies and is varied to include the following **additional** obligations.

- 1. The Approved Sponsor cannot recover costs including but not limited to;
 - (a) the Approved Sponsor's recruitment costs; and
 - (b) English language testing and/or training for Primary Sponsored Person.
- 2. Where the Approved Sponsor provides accommodation and/or board:
 - it must not be compulsory for the Primary Sponsored Person to accept the accommodation and/or board;
 - (b) it can only be charged at a fair and reasonable market rate; and
 - (c) charges for accommodation and/or board must satisfy the Commonwealth as being fair and reasonable and meet workplace laws.
- 3. The Approved Sponsor must only permit the Skilled Meat Workers to authorise the Approved Sponsor to make deductions from their gross salary where those authorised deductions are consistent with the Deductions Plan approved by the Commonwealth for that Approved Sponsor and is consistent with relevant State/Territory legislation and workplace laws.

Item 10 Obligation not to engage in discriminatory work practices

The obligation in regulation 2.87C of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

me on

eedon

the

Relea under

Schedule 6 Additional sponsorship obligations specific to this Agreement

The additional obligations listed below are applicable and commence when the Primary Sponsored Person commences his or her employment or engagement with the Approved Sponsor, and ends on the earlier of the day on which the Primary Sponsored Person:

- (a) is granted a further substantive visa that is:
 - (i) not a TSS visa; and
 - (ii) in effect; and
- (b) ceases employment or engagement with the Approved Sponsor.

Item 1 Obligations not to recruit where money owed

The Approved Sponsor must not nominate primary sponsored persons or secondary sponsored persons who it has assessed, reasonably suspects or ought reasonably suspect of owing money as a result of being recruited.

Item 2 Obligations to pay salary directly

An Approved Sponsor must pay the nominee directly, including taxes and superannuation. These payments must be made from the organisation's Australian bank account.

Item 3 Obligations regarding salary deductions

An Approved Sponsor may not deduct an amount from an amount payable to a primary sponsored person unless the deduction is authorised:

- (a) in writing by the employee and is principally for the employee's benefit; or
- (b) authorised by the employee in accordance with an enterprise agreement; or
- (c) authorised by or under a modern award or a Fair Work Act order; or
- (d) authorised by or under a law of the Commonwealth, a State or a Territory, or an order of a court.

Item 4 Induction Training

The Approved Sponsor must ensure that all Overseas Workers undergo induction training on arrival, which should cover specific processes, knowledge of equipment, production speed, OH&S requirements specific to the MPE at which they are employed.

Item 5 Verification requirements

The Approved Sponsor must:

- (a) ensure that skills assessments undertaken by Overseas Workers are videotaped unless exceptional circumstances render this impossible or impracticable, and understand that the Department may request evidence of such exceptional circumstances;
- (b) verify within two (2) days of a Primary Sponsored Person's arrival that the Primary Visa Holder is the same person for which a visa application was lodged and a digital photograph was provided;
- (c) notify the Commonwealth immediately if there is any inconsistency identified in terms of the identity of the Primary Visa Holder;
- (d) notify the Commonwealth within one (1) month if the Primary Sponsored Person does not have the skills required to work in the nominated position and propose remedial action to address any identified issues with the skills assessment process;
- (e) comply with any Commonwealth request by the Department for the Approved Sponsor to obtain at the Approved Sponsor's expense an independent audit, by an independent authority specified by the Commonwealth, such as use the services of any assessor associated with a skills assessment failure;

- (f) re-assess any Primary Sponsored Person assessed by an assessor associated with a skills assessment failure; and
- (g) ensure that Primary Sponsored Persons and any Secondary Sponsored Persons have adequate arrangements for health insurance in place from their date of arrival in Australia.

Item 6 Labour hire providers and employment arrangements

The Approved Sponsor must ensure that where they utilised a labour hire or recruitment company to source Overseas Workers that such providers are licensed in accordance with any relevant state or territory legislation.

The Approved Sponsor must also ensure that any Overseas Workers work directly for them once employed.

Schedule 7 Information to be provided to the Department

The Sponsor must provide the following documentation to the Department when requested or when seeking additional Nomination Ceilings:

- (a) updated Workforce Plans;
- (b) evidence of labour market testing that has been undertaken during the last 12 months;
- (c) evidence that the Sponsor has a strong record of, or a demonstrated commitment to, employing local labour and non-discriminatory employment practices;
- (d) evidence of salary arrangements for, and amounts paid to, Primary Sponsored Persons;
- (e) details of any breaches of immigration or other Commonwealth or State laws;
- (f) the dates and numbers and occupations of any and all Australian workers who have been retrenched or made redundant in the past 12 month period; and
- (g) any additional information requested by the Minister.

Released by Department of Home Affairs under the Freedom of Information Act 1982

Signing page

SIGNED for and on behalf of the

COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA under

the written authority of the Minister for Immigration, Citizenship and

Multicultural Affairs by its duly authorised delegate

in the presence of

s22(1)(a)(ii)		s22(1)(a)(ii)	
Signature of delega	ate	Signature of witness	
s22(1)(a)(ii)		s22(1)(a)(ii)	
Name and position	of delegate	Name of witness	>
17/6/201	9	17/6/2019	,
Date	dd/mm/yyyy	Date	dd/mm/vvv

EXECUTED by Roverworth Pty Ltd ABN 40 276 321 817

in accordance with section 127 of the Corporations Act 2011 (Cth)

s47F	Solutions Act 2011 (Ctil)
	s47F
Signatyre of director	Signature of director/company secretary s47F
Name of director	Name of director/company secretary

14 6 2019 ·
Date dd/mm/yyyy

14- b- 19
Date dd/mm/yyyy



Australian Government

Department of Home Affairs

LABOUR AGREEMENT – MEAT INDUSTRY

Under the Migration Act 1958

Between

Commonwealth of Australia as represented by the Minister for Immigration, Citizenship and Multicultural Affairs (Minister)

and

Seven Point Pork Pty Ltd

Table of Contents

Background	4
Operative Par	rt4
1.	Definitions4
2.	Interpretation
3.	Agreement period
4.	Pre-contractual representations
Nomination of	f Overseas Workers
5.	Nomination requirements
6.	Visa requirements
7.	Visa period
8.	Sponsorship obligations
9.	Reporting9
10.	Review9
11.	Audits of this Agreement9
Miscellaneous	Provisions9
12.	Notices9
13.	Variation and entire agreement9
14.	Suspension9
15.	Termination
16.	Sanctions
17.	Relationship between the parties
18.	Assurances, counterparts and assignment
19.	Dispute resolution
20.	Confidential information and information sharing
21.	Fettering and publishing
22.	Legal expenses
23.	Survival after termination
24.	Governing law and jurisdiction
25.	Indemnity
Schedule 1	Particulars
Schedule 2	Ceilings and concessions relating to nomination criteria covered by this Agreement 15
Schedule 3	Additional requirements for nomination18
Schedule 4	Concessions relating to visa criteria covered by this Agreement
Schedule 5	Variation of sponsorship obligations

Schedule 6	Additional sponsorship obligations specific to this Agreement
Schedule 7	Information to be provided to the Department
Signing page	25

Labour Agreement

Effective Date: Date signed by the Commonwealth being the last part to sign the Agreement.

Parties

The Commonwealth of Australia (the "Commonwealth") as represented by the Minister for Citizenship and Multicultural Affairs (the "Minister"). The Commonwealth's particulars are set out in **Item 1** of **Schedule 1**.

AND

The party specified in Item 2 of Schedule 1 (the "Sponsor"). The Sponsor's particulars are set out in Item 2 of Schedule 1.

Background

- A. This labour agreement (the "Agreement") is a "labour agreement" as defined in the Migration Regulations.
- B. This Agreement will be administered by the Department of Home Affairs ("the Department") on behalf of the Commonwealth.
- C. This Agreement sets out the terms and conditions by which the Sponsor may recruit, employ or engage the services of overseas workers who are intended to be employed or engaged by the Sponsor as holders of Skill Shortage (TSS) visas or Employer Nomination Scheme (ENS) visa in its business undertaking as described in **Item 3** of **Schedule 1**.
- D. For the purposes of the TSS visa programs, the Sponsor, by virtue of entering into this Agreement, will also be an "Approved Sponsor" as defined in the Migration Act.

Operative Part

1. Definitions

- 1.1 Unless the context indicates a contrary intention, words and phrases in this Agreement have the same meanings attributed to them in the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations.
- 1.2 In the event of any inconsistency between this Agreement and the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations, the Migration Act and the Migration Regulations will prevail.
- 1.3 In this Agreement:

Address means a party's address set out in Schedule 1.

Adverse Information has the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Agreement means this labour agreement, any schedules, attachments and any documents incorporated into this labour agreement by reference.

Annualised Salary means for the purpose of this Agreement remuneration paid to an Overseas Worker on an annualised basis from the date they commence employment, excluding periods that they are offshore on approved leave without pay.

ANZSCO means the Australian and New Zealand Standard Classification of Occupations.

Approved Sponsor has the same meaning as in the Migration Act.

AQF means the Australian Qualifications Framework.

Australian where the context so admits, means an Australian citizen (whether born in Australia or elsewhere) or a non-citizen who, being usually resident in Australia is the holder of a permanent visa granted under the Migration Act.

Business Day means a day on which business is generally conducted in the Australian Capital Territory, and excludes Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays.

Business Address means the physical address at which a business is located.

Confidential Information in relation to a Party, means information that is:

(a) by its nature capable of being protected in law or equity as confidential;

- (b) designated by a Party as confidential in Item 5 of Schedule 1; or
- (c) in the case of the Commonwealth's Confidential Information, the Approved Sponsor knows or ought to know is confidential:

but does not include information:

- (d) which is or becomes public knowledge other than by breach of the Contract or any other confidentiality obligations; or
- (e) that has been independently developed or acquired without reference to the other Party's Confidential Information.

Concessions means any variations to the requirements prescribed in the Migration Legislation in relation to the skills, qualifications, employment background, level of English Language proficiency and the Temporary Skilled Migration Income Threshold (TSMIT) required for the nomination and grant of a TSS visa.

Damages means all liabilities, losses, damages, costs and expenses, including legal fees and disbursements and costs of investigation, litigation, settlement, judgment, interest and penalties.

Deductions Plan means a plan submitted by the Approved Sponsor to the Commonwealth, seeking approval of fair, reasonable and lawful deductions from the gross salary of Skilled Meat Workers (other than deductions required by Australian law or statute), which if approved by the Commonwealth, could be made available to the Company's Skilled Meat Workers should they freely choose to avail themselves of this opportunity to which the deductions relate.

Earnings has the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Employment period means the stay period that a Sponsor requests for the Nominee in a TSS nomination application form.

Effective Date means:

- (a) the date (if any) specified in Item 4 of Schedule 1;
- (b) if no such date is specified, the date on which this Agreement is signed by the parties, or if signed on separate days, the date of the last signature.

Email Account means a party's email address set out in Schedule 1.

ENS visa means an Employer Nomination Scheme (ENS) visa (Subclass 186).

Full time means 38 hours or a period between 32 and 45 hours that is specified under the relevant industry award and is consistent with the National Employment Standards.

IELTS means the International English Language Testing System.

Industrial instrument means an instrument in force under a law of the Commonwealth or the State/Territory that regulates workplace relations and prescribes terms and conditions of employment between employers and employees including, but not limited to, an award or agreement made under the Commonwealth Fair Work Act 2009 (Cth) and an award or agreement made by a relevant State/Territory industrial tribunal or court.

MPE means a Meat Processing Establishment wholly or predominately concerned with any one or more of the activities of killing, dressing, boning, slicing, preparation and/or packing of fresh meat.

Migration Act means the Migration Act 1958, as amended from time to time.

Migration Legislation means the Migration Act and/or the Migration Regulations and / or any instruments made under the Migration Act or the Migration Regulations as amended from time to time.

Migration Regulations means the Migration Regulations 1994 made under the Migration Act 1958, as amended from time to time.

Minister means "the Minister" for Citizenship and Multicultural Affairs, the Assistant Minister, and his or her authorised representative performing relevant functions as the Minister under the Migration Legislation

MINTRAC means the Meat Industry National Training Advisory Council.

Nominate means to lodge a nomination application for a TSS or ENS visa under Migration Legislation.

Nomination means a nomination referred to in section 140GB of the Migration Act.

Nomination Ceiling means the number of nominations that an Approved Sponsor can have approved in any Year for a specified Occupation as defined in Schedule 2.

Nominee means the Overseas Worker specified in a nomination.

Occupations means those occupations prescribed in Schedule 2.

On-hire¹ means a person's business activities which include activities relating to either or both of:

- (a) the recruitment of labour for supply to another business; and
- (b) the hiring of labour to another business;
- (c) the reference to 'another business' in paragraph (a) and (b) above, includes any other business that is related to a person's business.

Overseas Worker means the holder of, or an applicant or proposed applicant for, a TSS or ENS visa, whether onshore or offshore.

Postal Address means the address to which mail is delivered.

Relevant Industrial Instrument means an industrial instrument that applies to a Primary Sponsored Person and regulates the terms and conditions of employment of that Primary Sponsored Person.

Secondary Sponsored Person takes the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Stand-down means "the employer has the right to deduct payment for any period on which an employee cannot be usefully employed, because of any industrial action (other than industrial action organised or engaged in by the employer), or through any breakdown of machinery if the employer cannot reasonably be held responsible for the breakdown or any stoppage of work for any cause for which the employer cannot reasonably be held responsible, or for any period which an employee cannot be usefully employed because of any industrial action in the meat industry".

Sponsor means the party to this Agreement specified in Item 2 of Schedule 1.

Standard Business Sponsor has the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

Standard Skilled visa program requirements refers to the legislative requirements that must be met for the TSS visa program if the sponsor is a standard business sponsor, or under the ENS visa program if applying for permanent residence.

Subclass 457 visa means the Temporary Work (Skilled) (Subclass 457) visa

TSS visa means the Temporary Skill Shortage (TSS) visa.

Terms and Conditions of Employment takes the same meaning as in the Migration Regulations.

The Department means the Department of Home Affairs.

Top Up means an additional salary amount paid to an Overseas Workers to ensure that requirements under this Agreement are met as prescribed under clause 2, **Item 2** of **Schedule 6**.

TSMIT means the Temporary Skilled Migration Income Threshold, as amended from time to time, specified in an instrument made under the Migration Regulations.

TSMIT Fortnightly Rate means the (annual salary x 12) divided by 313.

TSMIT Hourly Rate means the TSMIT Weekly Rate divided by 38.

TSMIT Weekly Rate means the (annual salary x 6) divided by 313.

Workforce means the total number of Australian workers and temporary visa holders engaged by the Approved Sponsor (including as contractors).

Workplace Law means the Fair Work Act 2009, and relevant laws of the Commonwealth and of the relevant State or Territory relating to equal employment opportunity, unlawful discrimination and workplace health and safety legislation regulating the employment by the Sponsor of its overseas workers.

and safety legislation regulating the employment by the Sponsor of its overseas workers.

Workforce Plan means a report that outlines the current, and where requested, projected future composition of an Approved Sponsor's workforce. It should include details of the total number of Australian workers (including permanent residents) and temporary visa holders engaged by the Sponsor.

Year means the period of 12 months commencing on the day this Agreement commences, or a period of

An example of On-hire is where a person proposes to sponsor someone to come to Australia for the purpose of hiring out the visa holder's service to client organisations, rather than to work directly in the person's business.

Department of Home Affairs

Freedom of

ē

12 months commencing on an anniversary of that day.

2. Interpretation

(corresponding meanings) a word that is derived from a defined word has a corresponding meaning.

(headings) clause headings, the table of contents and footnotes are inserted for convenience only and do not affect interpretation of this Agreement.

(references) a reference to a party, clause, paragraph or schedule is a reference to a party, clause, paragraph or schedule to, or of this Agreement.

(requirements) a requirement to do anything includes a requirement to cause that thing to be done, and a requirement not to do anything includes a requirement to prevent that thing being done.

(including) including and includes are not words of limitation, and a list of examples is not limited to those items or to items of a similar kind.

(rules of construction) neither this Agreement nor any part of it is to be construed against a party on the basis that the party or its lawyers were responsible for its drafting.

(singular and gender) the singular includes the plural and vice-versa, and words importing one gender include all other genders.

(legislation) a reference to any legislation or provision of legislation includes all amendments, consolidations or replacements and all regulations, directions or instruments issued under it.

(day) unless stated otherwise a reference to a day is a reference to a calendar day.

(month) a reference to a month is a reference to a calendar month.

(person) a reference to a person includes an individual, a body corporate, statutory corporation, partnership, body politic and permitted assigns, as the context requires.

(writing) a reference to a notice, consent, request, approval or other communication under this Agreement or an agreement between the parties means a written notice, request, consent, approval or agreement.

3. Agreement period

- This Agreement commences from the Effective Date as specified in Item 4 of Schedule 1. 3.1
- Unless terminated earlier in accordance with clause 16 of this Agreement, the period of this Agreement will 3.2 be the time specified in Item 4 of Schedule 1.

4. Pre-contractual representations

The Sponsor warrants that information supplied to the Commonwealth with respect to the Sponsor being a fit and 4.1 proper person to enter into this Agreement and upon which the Commonwealth relied, was true and correct.

Nomination of Overseas Workers

5. Nomination requirements

- 5.1 The Sponsor may only nominate an Overseas Worker for:
 - visas outlined in Schedule 2; (a)
 - (b) Occupations outlined in Schedule 2;
 - up to the Nomination Ceiling specified in Schedule 2; and (c)
 - an Occupation to be performed in a location listed in Schedule 2. (d)
- 5.2 The Sponsor acknowledges that the Minister may, in his/her absolute discretion, vary the:
 - Nomination Ceilings up or down; (a)
 - (b) Concessions; or
 - (c) Occupations.
- If the Sponsor wishes to increase the Nomination Ceilings in any year during the period of this Agreement as 5.3 set out in Schedule 2 to this Agreement, they must provide the Department with the information detailed in 500 Relea

Page | 7 of 25

- Schedule 7. A departmental decision-maker will then assess whether the Department will agree to proposed variations to the existing agreement.
- 5.4 The Sponsor acknowledges that there is no guarantee that additional Nominations and increases in the Nomination ceilings will be agreed to and that the Commonwealth reserves the right to make the final decision as to the Nomination Ceiling for each year of the Agreement.
- 5.5 Before they nominate a Nominee under this Agreement, the Sponsor must take all reasonable steps to ensure
 - (a) it recruits suitably skilled Australians who are available; and
 - (b) the Overseas Worker will be able to meet any revised visa requirements outlined at Schedule 4.
- 5.6 The Sponsor will aim to ensure that:
 - in any one Year period overseas workers do not comprise more than a third of their Workforce;
 - (b) their reliance on overseas workers decreases during the life of this Agreement; and
 - their reliance on temporary visas decreases where existing temporary visa holders have successfully (c) transitioned to permanent residence under this Agreement.
- In addition to TSS or ENS nomination requirements outlined in the Migration Regulations, the Sponsor must demonstrate, through written evidence, when lodging a TSS or ENS nomination that the Standard skilled visa requirements as outlined in the Migration Regulations in relation to the TSMIT, Earnings and/or working hours, are met unless varied in Schedule 2.
- The Sponsor must comply with any additional requirements for nomination that are stipulated by the 5.8 Minister in Schedule 3.

6. Visa requirements

- 6.1 The Sponsor acknowledges that as part of the visa application process, the Nominee will need to meet the criteria for grant of a visa as outlined in the Migration Regulations.
- 6.2 This may include:
 - requirements that the Nominee has the sufficient skills, experience and English proficiency to perform the nominated occupation, and demonstrated this where requested by the Department; and
 - if applying for permanent residence, any age requirements.
- 6.3 In most cases, these requirements mirror Standard skilled visa program requirements.
- 6.4 Where variations to regulatory or policy requirements apply for visa applicants who are being sponsored under this Agreement, because the Minister has agreed to certain Concessions, these are specified in Schedule 4.

7. Visa period

TSS visa

The Sponsor acknowledges that when nominating an Overseas Worker for a TSS visa, the Sponsor will 7.1 select a proposed employment period of up to a maximum of four (4) years. If approved, the TSS visa for the Nominee will be granted for the requested period, unless a different or more restricted period is specified in... Schedule 4.

ENS visa

A permanent visa will be granted if all legislative requirements are met.

8. Sponsorship obligations

- 8.1 In relation to any TSS visa holders, as an Approved Sponsor, the Sponsor must satisfy:
- manent visa will be granted for the requested period, unless a different or more restricted period is specified in dule 4.

 manent visa will be granted if all legislative requirements are met.

 asorship obligations

 ation to any TSS visa holders, as an Approved Sponsor, the Sponsor must satisfy:

 its sponsorship obligations in the Migration Regulations, including where varied (if at all), as outline in Schedule 5;

 any additional obligations imposed in accordance with subsection 140H(3) of the Migration Act specified in Schedule 6.
 - (b)
- 8.2 The Sponsor must comply with Workplace Law, and immigration laws regulating employment of the Sponsor's sponsored Overseas Workers.

982 (ffairs Freedom of Information Released the ē

9. Reporting

9.1 The Sponsor must provide a report to the Department within 30 days following a request by the Minister. This report must include the items outlined at **Schedule** 7 to this Agreement.

10. Review

10.1 This Agreement will be reviewed after three years and/or on an annual basis where additional Nominations increasing the Nomination Ceilings are sought by the Sponsor.

11. Audits of this Agreement

- 11.1 The Minister may, from time to time, audit the Sponsor's performance of its obligations under this Agreement and the Sponsor will cooperate with the Minister for the purpose of such audits.
- 11.2 Without limiting the generality of the preceding clause, the Sponsor will:
 - (a) liaise with and provide information and assistance to the Minister as reasonably required by the Minister for the purposes of such audits;
 - (b) comply with the Minister's reasonable requests or requirements for the purposes of such audits.
- 11.3 Unless specified otherwise in the Migration Legislation, the Sponsor will retain all records generated for the purposes of this Agreement for seven (7) years from the date of expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Miscellaneous Provisions

12. Notices

- 12.1 Any notice, demand, consent or other communication given or made under this Agreement:
 - (a) must be clearly readable;
 - (b) must, unless it is sent by email, be signed by the party giving or making it (or signed on behalf of that party by its authorised representative);
 - (c) must, unless it is sent by email, be left at the Address or sent by pre-paid security post (air mail if outside Australia) to the Business Address of the recipient; and
 - (d) may be sent by email to the receiving party's Email Account.
- 12.2 A notice to be served on the Commonwealth will be taken to be served if it is served on the Department's address in **Item 1** of **Schedule 1**.
- 12.3 A party may change its Business Address, Postal Address or Email Account for the purpose of service by giving notice of that change to the other party in accordance with clause 12.1.
- 12.4 Any communication will be taken to be received by the recipient:
 - (a) in the case of a letter, on the third (seventh, if sent outside the country in which the letter is posted) Business Day after the date of posting;
 - (b) in the case of an email, at the end of the day in which the email is transmitted.

13. Variation and entire agreement

- 13.1 The contents of this Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the parties and supersede any prior negotiations, representations, understandings or arrangements made between the parties regarding the subject matter of this Agreement, whether orally or in writing.
- 13.2 Unless otherwise specified in this Deed, a provision of this Agreement can only be varied by a written document executed by or on behalf of all parties.

14. Suspension

- 14.1 The Minister may, in his/her absolute discretion, suspend this Agreement, in whole or in part, including in situations where Adverse Information regarding the Sponsor has been received, is being investigated and in not considered reasonable to disregard.
- 14.2 The Sponsor and other third parties are not entitled to any compensation or payments as a result of the

- Minister suspending this Agreement under clause 14.1.
- 14.3 Where the Minister suspends this Agreement in accordance with clause 15.1 the Minister will notify the Sponsor in writing.
- 14.4 For the avoidance of doubt, where the Minister notifies that this Agreement has been suspended in accordance with clause 14.3, the suspension shall take effect at the time the notice is taken to be received by the Sponsor, in accordance with clause 12.
- 14.5 Where the Minister suspends this Agreement in accordance with clause 14.1, the Minister may, in determining the order for considering and disposing of nomination applications and visa applications, give the lowest priority to applications made under this Agreement.
- 14.6 After a period of suspension, the Minister may, at his/her absolute discretion, choose to resume this Agreement by notifying the Sponsor in writing.
- 14.7 Where the Minister chooses to resume this Agreement in accordance with clause 14.6 and notifies the Sponsor, the Agreement will resume at the time the notice is taken to be received, in accordance with clause 12.
- 14.8 For the avoidance of doubt, any period of suspension will have no impact on and will not amend the period of this Agreement. The period of this Agreement will remain as specified in **Item 4** of **Schedule 1**.

15. Termination

- 15.1 The Minister may, in his/her absolute discretion, terminate this Agreement at any time including for reasons of public interest where:
 - (a) there is a change in policy or a change in government which results in a change in policy settings; or
 - (b) Adverse Information has been received by the Department regarding the Sponsor and it is not considered reasonable to disregard.
- 15.2 The Sponsor will not be entitled to any compensation or payments as a result of the Minister terminating this Agreement under clause 15.1.
- 15.3 Otherwise, if the Minister contends that the Sponsor is in default under this Agreement, the Minister may, without prejudice to any right of action or remedy which has accrued or which may accrue (including the Minister's entitlement to terminate in accordance with clause 15.1):
 - (a) suspend this Agreement in whole or in part; and
 - (b) serve notice on the Sponsor, advising that this Agreement is suspended and requiring the Sponsor to rectify to the satisfaction of the Minister, those aspects of the Sponsor's performance which are of concern to the Commonwealth; or
 - (c) terminate this Agreement without prejudice to any right of action or remedy which has accrued or which may accrue.
- 15.4 If as an Approved Sponsor, the Sponsor is in breach of a sponsorship obligations under the Migration Legislation, the Sponsor will be taken to be in default under this Agreement as if the statutory obligation was a contractual obligation of the Sponsor.
- 15.5 For the avoidance of doubt, a breach of the Sponsor's warranty given in clause 4.1 with respect to precontractual information, will entitle the Minister to suspend this Agreement and serve a notice under clause 15.3 and/or to take any other contractual redress in accordance with this Agreement.
- 15.6 A party may, in its discretion, terminate this Agreement early by giving 28 days' notice to the other party, whereupon this Agreement will be terminated with effect 28 days after the notice of termination is served. A party serving a notice of termination under this sub-clause:
 - (a) need not specify a reason for serving the notice;
 - (b) may withdraw the notice before the 28 days have elapsed; and
 - (c) will not be liable to compensate the other party for costs or damages that may arise from the early termination.
- 15.7 For the avoidance of doubt if this Agreement is terminated for any reason, or for no reason:
 - (a) the Sponsor will no longer be an Approved Sponsor under Migration Legislation and their approval as a sponsor for the purposes of this Agreement will be automatically terminated; and

- visas granted pursuant to this Agreement will be subject to the operation of the Migration Legislation. (b)
- 15.8 A waiver by a party in respect of any breach of a condition or provision of this Agreement will not be deemed to be a waiver in respect of any continuing or subsequent breach of that provision, or breach of any other provision. The failure of a party to enforce at any time any of the provisions of this Agreement will in no way be interpreted as a waiver of such provision.

16. **Sanctions**

- 16.1 Instead of terminating this Agreement:
 - the Commonwealth may, in its discretion, prevent or 'bar' the Sponsor from making further nominations under this Agreement for a specified period, or
 - (b) the Minister may, in his or her absolute discretion, give the lowest processing priority to nomination applications and visa applications made under this Agreement.
- 16.2 The Commonwealth may, in its discretion, instead of terminating this Agreement or in addition to terminating this Agreement, take action against the Sponsor for a breach of contract to recover damages and/or for injunctive relief.
- The Commonwealth may, in its discretion, instead of taking any enforcement action under this Agreement or in addition to taking such enforcement action, pursue a civil penalty or issue an infringement notice under the Migration Legislation for failing to satisfy a sponsorship obligation.

17. Relationship between the parties

- 17.1 Nothing in this Agreement:
 - constitutes a partnership between the parties; or
 - except as expressly provided, makes a party an agent of another party for any purpose. (b)
- 17.2 A party cannot in any way or for any purpose:
 - bind another party; or
 - (b) contract in the name of another party.
- 17.3 If a party must fulfil an obligation and that party is dependent on another party, then that other party must do each thing reasonably within its power to assist the other in the performance of that obligation.
- 17.4 If the Sponsor is constituted by more than one legal entity (such as a partnership or an unincorporated association), each of those legal entities will be jointly and severally liable for performance under this Agreement.

- 18.1 Each party must promptly execute all documents and do all other things reasonably necessary or desirable give effect to the arrangements recorded in this Agreement.
- 18.3 A party cannot assign or otherwise transfer its rights under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party.
 19. Dispute resolution
 19.1 The Parties will deal with any dispute arising during the course of this Agreement as follows:

 (a) the party claiming that there is a dispute must notify the other party of the dispute;
 (b) the parties will use reasonable endeavours to resolve the dispute by direct negotiation;

- - the parties must allow 28 days from notification of the dispute to reach a resolution or to agree to refer the dispute to mediation in accordance with, and subject to, The Institute of Arbitrators and Mediators Australia Mediation Rules or some other form of alternative dispute resolution procedure agreed to inwriting by the Parties; and
 - (d) in the event that:

Information Act 1982 Freedom 9 the eleased

- (i) the Parties have attended mediation, or some other form of alternative dispute resolution procedure; and
- (ii) no written settlement agreement is executed within 15 Business Days (or such extended time as the Parties may agree in writing before the expiration of the 15 Business days) of the conclusion of the mediation or some other form of alternative dispute resolution procedure

then either Party may commence legal proceedings or terminate this Agreement.

19.2 The Parties acknowledge that the Migration Review Tribunal and Administrative Appeals Tribunal may have jurisdiction to review decisions in relation to nomination applications and visa applications. This Agreement does not abrogate any rights of a merits review by the Migration Review Tribunal or the Administrative Appeals Tribunal.

20. Confidential information and information sharing

- 20.1 If a party's information is specified as Confidential Information in Item 5 of Schedule 1, the other party will not disclose the information without the first party's prior written consent, except when disclosure of the information is required by law, statutory or portfolio duties.
- 20.2 The Sponsor consents to information concerning it which is relevant to the operation of this Agreement being shared by the Minister with:
 - State or Territory government agencies in the State or Territory in which the Sponsor conducts business, where those agencies have regulatory or other relevant interests in the operation of this Agreement;
 - (b) Commonwealth agencies with regulatory or other relevant interests in the operation of this Agreement. including the Department of Jobs and Small Business.
- 20.3 The Sponsor will allow the disclosure of information related to this Agreement for various reporting and Commonwealth disclosure obligations. These disclosures include:
 - disclosure of procurement information for the Department's annual reporting purposes; (a)
 - disclosure to the Parliament and its committees, as appropriate, in line with the Government Guidelines for Official Witnesses before Parliamentary Committees and Related Matters;
 - (c) disclosure of information consistent with the Freedom of Information Act 1982;
 - (d) disclosure of discoverable information that is relevant to a case before a court; and
 - (e) disclosure of information as required under other legislation or Commonwealth policy.
- 20.4 The Sponsor acknowledges that the Department will publish information on its website regarding this Agreement, with more sensitive business information contained in labour agreement requests and agreements, as specified at Item 5 of Schedule 1 to remain confidential.
- 20.5 The Sponsor must comply with any reasonable request by the Commonwealth for information to enable the
- 20.6 Clause 20.3 survives the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

21.

- 21.1 Nothing in this Agreement fetters or detracts from the Commonwealth's discretions, functions or powers
- The Sponsor must comply with any reasonable request by the Commonwealth for information to enable the Commonwealth to meet its obligations in this Agreement.

 Clause 20.3 survives the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

 Fettering and publishing

 Nothing in this Agreement fetters or detracts from the Commonwealth's discretions, functions or powers under the Migration Legislation, Workplace Law or other relevant Commonwealth laws.

 In the event the Commonwealth has published an outline of this Agreement, the published outline is an invitation to treat with prospective sponsors and is not an offer to enter into contractual relations with any such sponsor on the basis of the published outline.

 The Commonwealth may grant or refuse to grant consent, in its absolute discretion, to any application by the Sponsor for consent to a change in control of the Sponsor that may be inimical to the Sponsor's performance. 21.2 In the event the Commonwealth has published an outline of this Agreement, the published outline is an
- Sponsor for consent to a change in control of the Sponsor that may be inimical to the Sponsor's performances under this Agreement, and the Commonwealth may attach such conditions on a consent as the Commonwealth sees fit.

22. Legal expenses

22.1 Each party must pay its own legal costs and disbursements in connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution and carrying into effect of this Agreement.

Information Act Freedom Dep 2 the Released Ē

22.2 The Sponsor must pay any stamp duty assessed on or in relation to this Agreement and any instrument or transaction required by or necessary to give effect to this Agreement.

23. Survival after termination

23.1 Any provision of this Agreement which expressly or by implication from its nature is intended to survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement and any rights arising on termination or expiration will survive, including Confidential Information, and any sponsorship obligations as an Approved Sponsor.

24. Governing law and jurisdiction

- 24.1 The laws applicable in the Australian Capital Territory govern this Agreement.
- 24.2 The parties submit to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Australian Capital Territory and any courts competent to hear appeals from those courts.

25. Indemnity

- 25.1 The Sponsor agrees to indemnify the Minister from and against any:
 - (a) cost or liability incurred by the Minister; or
 - (b) loss or expense incurred by the Minister in dealing with any claim against it including legal costs and expenses on a solicitor/own client basis and the cost of time spent, resources used or disbursements paid by the Minister,

arising from:

- (c) any act or omission by the Sponsor or its Personnel in connection with this Agreement; or
- (d) any breach of its Sponsorship obligations as an Approved Sponsor or warranties under this Agreement; irrespective of whether there was fault on the part of the person whose conduct gave rise to that liability, loss or damage, or loss or expense.
- 25.2 The Sponsor's liability to indemnify the Minister under clause 25.1 will be reduced proportionately to the extent that any breach of this Agreement by the Minister or any act or omission involving fault on the part of the Minister contributed to the relevant cost, liability, loss, damage, or expense.
- 25.3 The right of the Minister to be indemnified under clause 25.1 is in addition to, and not exclusive of, any other right, power or remedy provided by law, but the Minister is not entitled to be compensated in excess of the amount of the relevant cost, liability, loss, damage, or expense.
- 25.4 In clause 25.1:
 - (a) "the Minister" includes officers, employees and agents of the Minister; and
 - (b) "Personnel" means a party's officers, employees, agents, contract staff or professional advisers engaged in, or in relation to, the performance or management of this Agreement.
- 25.5 Clause 25.1 will survive six (6) years from the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Schedule 1

Particulars

Item 1

Commonwealth Particulars

Name:

Department of Home Affairs

Address:

6 Chan Street, BELCONNEN ACT 2617

Telephone Number:

s22(1)(a)(ii)

Email Address:
Contact officer:

Senior Director, Employer Sponsored Program Management

Item 2

The Sponsor's Particulars

Name:

Seven Point Pork Pty Ltd

ACN

ABN:

31 088 688 975

Business Structure:

Company

Business Address:

62 McRoyle St., Wacol QLD 4076

Postal Address:

62 McRoyle St., Wacol QLD 4076

Telephone Number:

47F

Email Address:

Contact Officer:

Item 3

The Sponsor's Business

Industry segment:

Meat Industry

Item 4

Commencement and period

The date signed by the Commonwealth being the last party to sign

Effective Date:

the Agreement

Cease Date:

Five (5) years from the Effective Date

Item 5

Commercial-in-Confidence Information

The company specific information (i.e. non-template text) contained

in the Schedules to this Agreement.

All information provided to request and secure access to this

Agreement.

Schedule 2 Ceilings and concessions relating to nomination criteria covered by this Agreement

Item 1 Occupations, Nomination Ceiling and Location

The table below outlines the occupations that can be utilised under this Agreement for the visa programs specified. It also specifies the nomination ceilings per Year for these Occupations, and where the nominated positions should be based (i.e. location of work).

TSS nomination ceilings

Occupation	Code		Nominat	I4			
	Code	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Location of work
Skilled Meat Worker	070499	s47					

Subclass 186 nomination ceilings

Occupation	Code		Nominat	ion Ceilings	Location of work		
		Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Location of work
Skilled Meat Worker	070499	s47					

Note:

- The Minister may vary the above ceiling numbers and Occupations at any time, with ceiling numbers subject to annual review.
- If the Sponsor wishes to increase the ceilings specified above, they must seek a variation to this Agreement as outlined at clause 5.3 to this Agreement.
- There is currently no ANZSCO code for the occupation of 'Skilled meat worker'. For administration purposes only, Sponsors should use code 070499 when nominating this position.

Item 2 Concession to Occupation Tasks

A Skilled Meat Work (Code: 070499) for the purposes of this agreement is responsible for undertaking the following tasks, which include the duties of the ANZSCO occupations Slaughterer and Meat Boner and Slicer:

- stuns and kills livestock;
- prepares carcasses for further processing by removing internal organs and hides;
- operates switching controls to direct and drop carcasses and meat cuts from supply rails to boning tables;
- cuts meat to separate meat, fat and tissue from around bones;
- washes, scrapes and trims foreign material and blood from meat;
- cuts sides and quarters of meat into standard meat cuts, such as rumps, flanks and shoulders, and removing internal fat, blood clots, bruises and other matter to prepare them for packing and marketing;
- operates restrainer and stunning equipment;
- severs jugular veins of stunned animals to drain blood and facilitate dressing;
- trims and removes head meat and severs animal heads:
- slits open, eviscerates and trims animal carcasses; and
- may slaughter livestock according to procedures required by religious customs.

Important: A skilled meat worker employed under this Agreement may **not** undertake labouring, or unskilled duties, other than to the extent of circumstances prescribed above or where relevant in the context of the

Released by Department of Home Affairs under the Freedom of Information Act 1982

circumstances outlined in **Item 8** of **Schedule 5** to this Agreement. This Agreement does not allow Overseas Workers to be placed in unskilled labouring positions.

Released by Department of Home Affairs under the Freedom of Information Act 1982

Item 3 Concessions regarding salary requirements

In addition to meeting Standard skilled visa requirements, the Sponsor must:

- (a) employ Overseas Workers in full-time positions only;
- (b) ensure that if the Overseas Worker is paid via an Annualised Salary that they receive a Top-Up if, over an annual period, an Australian worker performing equivalent work in the Sponsor's workplace at the same location under different salary arrangements receives a higher amount.

Schedule 3 Additional requirements for nomination

Item 1 Labour market testing arrangements

TSS visas

Evidence of labour market testing must accompany nomination applications lodged in accordance with this Agreement. The evidence provided should be equivalent to that required under Standard skilled visa program requirements.

Item 2 Local workforce requirements

TSS visas

Unless otherwise agreed by both Parties, the Sponsor must provide a statement, in writing, together with any nomination application lodged, which indicates that at the MPE approved under this Agreement, within a period of three (3) months prior to the date of the application, they have **not** done any of the following:

- permanently terminated the employment of more than five (5) percent of its Australian workforce (except in circumstances of demonstrated misconduct or unlawful conduct):
- stood down its Australian workforce for more than seven (7) consecutive days at any single given time; or
- reduced the shifts of its Australian workforce to less than 50 per cent of the regular shift quota and/or to part-time hours unless requested by the Australian employees.

Item 3 Direct Employment

All visas

The Sponsor must only make a nomination application in respect of a nominee that would work directly for them at an MPE.

Item 4 Time period required to hold temporary skilled visa

ENS visa

The Sponsor may only nominate an Overseas Worker for a Subclass 186 visa who has been employed:

- directly for them as a Primary Subclass 457 or TSS visa holder in the nominated occupation, for at least three (3) years before the nomination is made; or
- if they held a Subclass 457 visa before 18 March 2018, as a primary Subclass 457 or TSS visa holder in the nominated occupation, for at least three (3) years before the nomination is made.

Item 5 Digital image required

All visas

The Sponsor must attach a digital photograph of the applicant to the nomination application in *ImmiAccount*,

Schedule 4 Concessions relating to visa criteria covered by this Agreement

Item 1 Qualifications and Experience

Overseas Workers nominated under this agreement must:

- (a) have been assessed and verified by a MINTRAC registered assessor, or an assessor approved by the Commonwealth, with a Certificate IV in Training and Assessment experienced in meat processing, to be Skilled Meat Workers with a minimum skill level commensurate with the MINTRAC referenced AQF Certificate III in meat processing; and
- (b) either:
 - (i) demonstrate a minimum of three (3) years skilled work experience obtained at an MPE acceptable to the Parties; or
 - (ii) have been working in Australia on a Subclass 457 or TSS visa at an Australian MPE acceptable to the Parties for at least nine (9) months prior to being nominated.

Item 2 English Language

TSS visas

Overseas Workers nominated under this Agreement, who are unable to meet Standard skilled visa program requirements, can be considered to have sufficient English to perform the nominated occupation if:

• they demonstrate an IELTS overall test score of at least 5.0 with no minimum test score;

or

• was not required to provide evidence of English language proficiency at the time of the grant of their most recent subclass 457 visa under previous meat industry labour agreements.

ENS visa

Overseas Workers nominated under this Agreement, who are unable to meet Standard skilled visa program requirements, can be considered to have sufficient English to perform the nominated occupation if:

• they demonstrate an IELTS overall test score of at least 5.0 with no minimum test score;

or

- are a current Subclass 457 visa holder who was not required to provide evidence of English language proficiency at the time of grant of their Subclass 457 visa; and
- provides evidence as prescribed in the Migration Regulations for meeting functional English.

Item 3 Age

The Sponsor may only nominate an Overseas Worker for an ENS visa who is under 50 years of age at the time of nomination and visa application lodgement.

Schedule 5 Variation of sponsorship obligations

Item 1 Obligation to cooperate with inspectors

The obligation in regulation 2.78 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 2 Obligation to ensure equivalent terms and conditions of employment

The obligation in regulation 2.79 of the Migration Regulations applies and is varied to include the following additional obligations.

The Approved Sponsor must:

- (a) employ the Primary Sponsored Person on a full time basis:
- (b) only deduct payments from the Primary Sponsored Person's salary with the consent and written permission of the Primary Sponsored Person;
- pay the Primary Sponsored Person a Top-Up if an equivalent Australian is paid more than the (c) Primary Sponsored Person in any twelve month period for equivalent work:
 - this amount should equal the difference between the amount paid to the equivalent Australian (i) and the amount paid to the Primary Sponsored Person for the twelve month period; and
 - this amount is to be paid to the Primary Sponsored Person in the month following the twelve (ii) month period.

Item 3 Obligation to pay travel costs to enable sponsored persons to leave Australia

The obligation in regulation 2.80 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 4 Obligation to pay costs incurred by the Commonwealth to locate and remove unlawful non-citizens

The obligation in regulation 2.81 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Obligation to keep records Item 5

The obligation in regulation 2.82 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

Item 6 Obligation to provide records and information to the Minister

The obligation in regulation 2.83 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied. Item 7 Obligation to provide information to Immigration when certain events occur The obligation in regulation 2.84 of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied. Item 8 Obligation to ensure Primary Sponsored Person works or participates in nominated occupation, program or activity The obligation in regulation 2.86 of the Migration Regulations applies and is varied in accordance with the following provisions.

following provisions.

The Approved Sponsor must ensure that the Primary Sponsored Persons are Skilled Meat Workers and that they will only be employed in the nominated occupations. Other duties can, however, be undertaken where an Overseas Worker:

is required to undertake other suitable duties pursuant to the requirements of applicable Workers (a) Compensation laws; or

Freedom 2 the Released

Item 9 Obligation not to recover, transfer or take actions that would result in another person paying for certain costs

The obligation in regulation 2.87 of the Migration Regulations applies and is varied to include the following **additional** obligations.

- 1. The Approved Sponsor cannot recover costs including but not limited to;
 - (a) the Approved Sponsor's recruitment costs; and
 - (b) English language testing and/or training for Primary Sponsored Person.
- 2. Where the Approved Sponsor provides accommodation and/or board:
 - (a) it must not be compulsory for the Primary Sponsored Person to accept the accommodation and/or board;
 - (b) it can only be charged at a fair and reasonable market rate; and
 - (c) charges for accommodation and/or board must satisfy the Commonwealth as being fair and reasonable and meet workplace laws.
- 3. The Approved Sponsor must only permit the Skilled Meat Workers to authorise the Approved Sponsor to make deductions from their gross salary where those authorised deductions are consistent with the Deductions Plan approved by the Commonwealth for that Approved Sponsor and is consistent with relevant State/Territory legislation and workplace laws.

Item 10 Obligation not to engage in discriminatory work practices

The obligation in regulation 2.87C of the Migration Regulations applies and is not varied.

at

Freedom

Schedule 6 Additional sponsorship obligations specific to this Agreement

The additional obligations listed below are applicable and commence when the Primary Sponsored Person commences his or her employment or engagement with the Approved Sponsor, and ends on the earlier of the day on which the Primary Sponsored Person:

- (a) is granted a further substantive visa that is:
 - (i) not a TSS visa; and
 - (ii) in effect; and
- (b) ceases employment or engagement with the Approved Sponsor.

Item 1 Obligations not to recruit where money owed

The Approved Sponsor must not nominate primary sponsored persons or secondary sponsored persons who it has assessed, reasonably suspects or ought reasonably suspect of owing money as a result of being recruited.

Item 2 Obligations to pay salary directly

An Approved Sponsor must pay the nominee directly, including taxes and superannuation. These payments must be made from the organisation's Australian bank account.

Item 3 Obligations regarding salary deductions

An Approved Sponsor may not deduct an amount from an amount payable to a primary sponsored person unless the deduction is authorised:

- (a) in writing by the employee and is principally for the employee's benefit; or
- (b) authorised by the employee in accordance with an enterprise agreement; or
- (c) authorised by or under a modern award or a Fair Work Act order; or
- (d) authorised by or under a law of the Commonwealth, a State or a Territory, or an order of a court.

Item 4 Induction Training

The Approved Sponsor must ensure that all Overseas Workers undergo induction training on arrival, which should cover specific processes, knowledge of equipment, production speed, OH&S requirements specific to the MPE at which they are employed.

Item 5 Verification requirements

The Approved Sponsor must:

- (a) ensure that skills assessments undertaken by Overseas Workers are videotaped unless exceptional circumstances render this impossible or impracticable, and understand that the Department may request evidence of such exceptional circumstances;
- (b) verify within two (2) days of a Primary Sponsored Person's arrival that the Primary Visa Holder is the same person for which a visa application was lodged and a digital photograph was provided;
- (c) notify the Commonwealth immediately if there is any inconsistency identified in terms of the identity of the Primary Visa Holder;
- (d) notify the Commonwealth within one (1) month if the Primary Sponsored Person does not have the skills required to work in the nominated position and propose remedial action to address any identified issues with the skills assessment process;
- (e) comply with any Commonwealth request by the Department for the Approved Sponsor to obtain at the Approved Sponsor's expense an independent audit, by an independent authority specified by the Commonwealth, such as use the services of any assessor associated with a skills assessment failure:

- (f) re-assess any Primary Sponsored Person assessed by an assessor associated with a skills assessment failure; and
- (g) ensure that Primary Sponsored Persons and any Secondary Sponsored Persons have adequate arrangements for health insurance in place from their date of arrival in Australia.

Item 6 Labour hire providers and employment arrangements

The Approved Sponsor must ensure that where they utilised a labour hire or recruitment company to source Overseas Workers that such providers are licensed in accordance with any relevant state or territory legislation.

The Approved Sponsor must also ensure that any Overseas Workers work directly for them once employed.

Schedule 7 Information to be provided to the Department

The Sponsor must provide the following documentation to the Department when requested or when seeking additional Nomination Ceilings:

- (a) updated Workforce Plans;
- (b) evidence of labour market testing that has been undertaken during the last 12 months;
- (c) evidence that the Sponsor has a strong record of, or a demonstrated commitment to, employing local labour and non-discriminatory employment practices;
- (d) evidence of salary arrangements for, and amounts paid to, Primary Sponsored Persons;
- (e) details of any breaches of immigration or other Commonwealth or State laws;
- (f) the dates and numbers and occupations of any and all Australian workers who have been retrenched or made redundant in the past 12 month period; and
- (g) any additional information requested by the Minister.

Signing page

Signed for and on behalf of the Commonwealth under the written authority of the Minister for) Immigration, Citizenship and Multicultural Affairs:) 822(1)(a)(ii) A/g Assistant Secretary Skilled and Family Visa Program branch Print name and details of the Authorised Person	Signature of the Authorised Person Date of signing:
Signature of Witness	
s22(1)(a)(ii)	Date of signing: 18, 9,0018 dd/mm/yyyy
Act 2001 bv: Signosture of Director/Authorised Person F	Signature of Director/Secretary
Print name and details of the Authorised Person	Print name and details of the Authorised Person
Date of signing: 17.109.12018 dd/mm/yyyy Print name and details of the Sponsor (if the Sponsor is not a body corporate).	Date of signing:/ dd/mm/yyy epartment of Home Affairs
Signature of Witness	ment
Print name of Witness	—
Date of signing 17.1.9.118. dd/mm/yyyy	Dep



Australian Government Department of Home Affairs

DEED OF VARIATION No. 1

BETWEEN

COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA

AND

Seven Point Pork Pty Ltd (ABN: 31088688975)

DEED OF VARIATION

BETWEEN

COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA (the Commonwealth) represented by the Department of Home Affairs, of 6 Chan Street, Belconnen, ACT 2617 (the Department)

and

Seven Point Pork Pty Ltd - 31088688975 – 62 McRoyle St. Wacol QLD 4076.

RECITALS:

- (a) The Parties entered into a contract dated 18/09/2018 (the Agreement) to enable the sponsorship of overseas workers for the occupation of Skilled meat worker.
- (b) The Parties have agreed to certain variations to the rights and obligations contained in the Agreement.
- (c) The Parties wish to formally record those variations in the form of this Deed of Variation (No. 1).

IT IS AGREED:

- 1. This Deed:
 - (a) is interpreted and adopts the definitions as specified in the Agreement;
 - (b) is a part of the entire agreement between the parties in relation to the subject matter of the Agreement; and
 - (c) commences on the day and year this Deed is signed by the Department.

- 2. This Deed makes the following variations to the Agreement:
 - (a) Remove Schedule 2 Item 1 Nomination Ceilings:

Current ceilings (noting that ceilings for years 2 - 5 are frozen)

	ANZSCO	X //			Year			
Occupation		Visa	1	2	3	4	5	Locations
Skilled meat worker	070499	TSS	s47					
Skilled meat worker	070499	186						

(b) Replace Schedule 2 Item 1 Nomination Ceiling:

Requested / recommended ceilings

					Үеаг			
Occupation ANZ	ANZSCO	ANZSCO Visa	1	2	3	4	5	Locations
Skilled meat worker	070499	TSS	s47					
Skilled meat worker	070499	186						

3. In all other respects the terms and conditions of the Agreement remain unaltered.

Signed as a Deed for and on behalf of the Commonwealth under the written authority of the Minister for Immigration, Citizenship, Migrant Services and Multicultural Affairs		
\$22(1)(a)(ii)	s22(1)(a)(ii)	
A/g Director		
Employer Sponsored Program Management	Signature of Authorised Pers	
Name and Position of Authorised Person	Signature of Authoriseu Ters	ion
	Date of signing: 04/10/2	019
Name of Witness	s22(1)(a)(ii) hature of Within	gess
Approved Sponsor Signature Signed for and on behalf of Seven Point Pork		_
Pty Ltd ABN: 31088688975		
in accordance with section 127 of the Corporations Act 2001 by: 847F	s47F	
Name and details of Director/Se cretary ! 847F	Signature of Director/Se cret	
54/Γ	Date of signing: 3/10//	st 1982
Name and details of Director/Secretary/Witness	Signature of Director/Secretary/Withe	7225
	Date of signing://	00
	Department of Ho	
¹ Unless the Approved Sponsor is a sole Director who is also the Con and a Company Secretary must sign the Labour Agreement. If the A	npany Secretary, at least two Directors or a Director approved Sponsor is a sole Director who is also the	Fre
Company Secretary, a witness signature must be provided.	Page 4	er the

¹ Unless the Approved Sponsor is a sole Director who is also the Company Secretary, at least two Directors or a Director and a Company Secretary must sign the Labour Agreement. If the Approved Sponsor is a sole Director who is also the Company Secretary, a witness signature must be provided.